
Wednesday, May 18, 2022
1:00 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

NVTA Board of Directors

     ******************************************COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE*****************************************

PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES FOR PARTICIPATING VIA PHONE/VIDEO CONFERENCING

Consistent with California Assembly Bill 361 and Government Code Section 54953, due to the 

COVID-19 State of Emergency and the recommendations for physical distancing, the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board meeting will be held remotely via Zoom and in person at the 
JoAnn Busenbark Boardroom located at 625 Burnell Street, Napa CA. Members of the public may observe 

and participate in the meeting from home or in person. The public is invited to participate telephonically or 

electronically via the methods below:

1) To join the meeting via Zoom video conference from your PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: go to 

https://zoom.us/join and enter meeting ID 997 5007 2830

2) To join the Zoom meeting by phone: dial 1-669-900-6833, enter meeting ID: 997 5007 2830 If asked 

for the participant ID or code, press #.

3) Watch live on YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrpjLcW9uRmA0EE6w-eKZyw?

app=desktop

Public Comments:  Members of the public may comment on matters within the subject matter of 

the Board’s jurisdiction that are not on the meeting agenda during the general public comment item at 

the beginning of the meeting.  Comments related to a specific item on the agenda must be reserved until 

the time the agenda item is considered and the Chair invites public comment. (Members of the public 

are welcome to address the Board, however, under the Brown Act Board members may not 

deliberate or take action on items not on the agenda, and generally may only listen.)

Instructions for submitting a Public Comment are on the next page.

Agenda - Final

Meeting is being held remote via Zoom and in person at 
625 Burnell Street, Napa CA 94559



Members of the public may submit a public comment in writing by emailing info@nvta .ca.gov by 10:00 

a.m. on the day of the meeting with PUBLIC COMMENT as the subject line (for comments related to an 

agenda item, please include the item number). All written comments should be 350 words or less, which 

corresponds to approximately 3 minutes or less of speaking time. Public comments emailed to 

info@nvta.ca.gov after 10 a.m. the day of the meeting will be entered into the record but not read out 

loud.  If authors of the written correspondence would like to speak, they are free to do so and should

raise their hand and the Chair will call upon them at the appropriate time.

1. To comment during a virtual meeting (Zoom), click the “Raise Your Hand” button (click on the 

“Participants” tab) to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda item.  You 

must unmute yourself when it is your turn to make your comment for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted 

time, you will then be re-muted.  Instructions for how to “Raise Your Hand” is available at 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

2. To comment by phone, press “*9” to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the 

Agenda item.  You must unmute yourself by pressing “*6” when it is your turn to make your comment, 

for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted time, you will be re-muted.

I n s t r u c t i o n s  o n  h o w  t o  j o i n  a  v i d e o  c o n f e r e n c e  a r e  a v a i l a b l e  a t : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting

Ins t ruc t ions  on  how to  jo in  a  meet ing  by  phone a re  ava i lab le  a t : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone

Note: The methods of observing, listening, or providing public comment to the meeting may be altered 

due to technical difficulties or the meeting may be cancelled, if needed.    

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of 

Directors are posted on the NVTA website 72 hours prior to the meeting at : 

https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx  or by emailing  info@nvta.ca.gov to request a copy of the 

agenda. 

Materials distributed to the members of the Board present at the meeting will be available for public 

inspection after the meeting. Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does 

not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 

6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate 

formats to persons with a disability.  Persons requesting a disability -related modification or 

accommodation should contact Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during 

regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the time of the meeting.

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 

discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del ingl és quienes quieran dirigirse a la 

Autoridad.  Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259-8633.  Requerimos que solicite 

asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin 

ang mga ito, ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang 

Ingles, na nais na matugunan ang mga bagay-bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA Board.  Para sa mga 

tulong sa akomodasyon o pagsasalin-wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259-8633.  Kakailanganin 

namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang inyong 

kahilingan.



May 18, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Adoption of the Agenda

5. Public Comment

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7. Director's Update

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

8. PRESENTATIONS

8.1 Introduction of Electric Buses 

8.2 Oxbow Book of Poetry

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

9.1 Meeting Minutes of April 20, 2022 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 10-14)

Board action will approve the April 20, 2022 meeting minutes.Recommendation:

1:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft MinutesAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 5/11/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a478fa65-9718-468c-8e74-16c4705c427c.pdf


May 18, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

9.2 AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings (Osman Mufti) 
(Pages 15-20)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution 22-14 making findings and declaring it intent to continue remote 

teleconference meetings in accordance with Government Code section 

54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 State of Emergency 

Proclamation. 

Recommendation:

1:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.3 Resolution No. 22-16 Operations and Maintenance Agreement 

between State of California Department of Transportation and the 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, 

and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System (Rebecca 

Schenck) (Pages 21-31)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt 

Resolution No. 22-16 (Attachment 1) approving Operations and 

Maintenance Agreement C21 (Attachment 2) with Caltrans and authorize 

the Executive Director, or designee, to sign the Operations and 

Maintenance Agreement and make minor modifications to the agreement 

for the State Route 29 Project.

Recommendation:

1:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.4 Resolution No. 22-13, Revised Authorization for the Execution of 
the Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms 
for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 
(Roxanna Moradi) (pages 32-37)

That the NVTA Board approve Revised, Resolution No. 22-13 (Attachment 

1) for the FY 2021-22 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 

Zero Emission Bus project.

Recommendation:

1:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 5/11/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6eca1386-4649-495c-8ada-0b49409ad104.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f138995f-fa78-42c5-b63c-61444450f2d6.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ad0a7309-64aa-42c6-975e-dabde4abb41a.pdf


May 18, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

10.1 Chair and Vice Chair Nominating Committee for Fiscal Year (FY) 

2022-23 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 38-40)

Board action will appoint three Board members to nominate a Chair and 

Vice Chair for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23

Recommendation:

1:35 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.2 Resolution No. 22-15 Adopting the Napa Valley Transportation 

Authority (NVTA) Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years (FY) 2022-23 

and 2023-24 (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 41-59)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution No. 22-15 adopting: 

1) FY 2022-23 (FY23) NVTA consolidated budget of $75,111,800, and 

approve the FY23 appropriations limit of $75,111,800 and

2) FY 2023-24 (FY24) NVTA annual operating of $36,283,900 and 

approve the FY 2024 appropriations limit of $36,283,900.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.3 Delegated Authority to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
Policy Manual Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy  

(Antonio Onorato) (Pages 60-162)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

refinements to the delegated signature authority dollar amount increase(s) 

to NVTA Policy Manual Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy.

Recommendation:

2:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 5/11/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c02bd68f-fbe0-4f5c-a0cf-2fd282319938.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7240543-a67a-48de-8431-06a5132b5a2f.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=48b37187-087a-405b-9142-a63d2c25f8b7.pdf


May 18, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.4 Amendment 7 to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

Agreement No. NVTA 12-08 for the Position of Executive Director 

(Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 163-167) 

Board action will approve Amendment 7 to NVTA Agreement No. NVTA 

12-08 amending certain sections of the Executive Director contract.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority's (NVTA) Fiscal Year (FY) 

2021-22 Q3 Financial Review and Delegated Authority Matrix 

(Roxanna Moradi) (Pages 168-184) 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

FY 2021-22 Q3 Review and Delegated Authority Matrix.

Recommendation:

2:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.6 Vine Transit Update (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 185-192) 

That the NVTA Board receives a third quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit 

update.

Recommendation:

2:35 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.7 One Bay Area Grant Cycle 3 (OBAG 3) Call for Projects (Alberto 

Esqueda) (Pages 193-199)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board open the One 

Bay Area Grant (OBAG) 3 Call for Projects and adopt the related materials 

including the OBAG 3 Application and Evaluation Criteria.

Recommendation:

2:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 5/11/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6929cc50-e4cb-4ea2-8446-50a66b4408f2.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=56399374-8490-4798-a7a1-3b52a79e10e0.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fcde2879-4fa9-41ec-943c-4bc0e76d84af.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2bbf4cd4-e314-404e-bc9e-d6f57c1fd7ea.pdf


May 18, 2022NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.8 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 200-226)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

Federal Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors 

and the State Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors and act 

on bills included on the State Bill Matrix.

Recommendation:

2:50 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1  Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of June 15, 2022 and Adjournment

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely

accessible to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by

5:00 p.m. by Friday, May 13th.

____________________________________

Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 7 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 5/11/2022

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ca726b9e-b191-4738-8b79-1f7a18993175.pdf


Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ACFR Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

APA American Planning Association 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
ATP Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BAB  Build America Bureau 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BIL Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (IIJA) 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 
CAP Climate Action Plan  
CAPTI Climate Action Plan for Transportation 

Infrastructure  
Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CASA Committee to House the Bay Area 

CBTP Community Based Transportation Plan 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California State Transportation Agency 

CTA California Transit Association 
CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  
CTC California Transportation Commission 

CY Calendar Year 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

EPC Equity Priority Communities  

ETID Electronic Transit Information Displays 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 
GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  
HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  
HTF  Highway Trust Fund  
HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

HVIP  Hybrid & Zero-Emission Truck and Bus 
Voucher Incentive Program 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  
LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

LTF  Local Transportation Fund  

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  
NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 
PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  
PIR Project Initiation Report 

PMS Pavement Management System  
Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 

gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RAISE Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 
Sustainability and Equity 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  
RM 2 Regional Measure 2 Bridge Toll 

RM 3 Regional Measure 3 Bridge Toll 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW (R/W) Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TIFIA Transportation Infrastructure Finance and 
Innovation Act  

TIRCP Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  
TOC Transit Oriented Communities 

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  
TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 



Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/27/2022 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 

Napa, CA 94559 

Meeting Minutes 

NVTA Board of Directors 

REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE 
Wednesday, April 20, 2022 1:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

Vice Chair Alessio called the meeting to order at 1:21pm. 

2. Roll Call

Roll call was confirmed at the preceding NVTA-TA meeting with four absences of voting 
members and one non voting member.  

Leon Garcia 

Chris Canning 

Paul Dohring 

Mark Joseph 

John F. Dunbar 

Geoff Ellsworth 

Liz Alessio 

Gary Kraus 

Absent: 

Alfredo Pedroza 

Belia Ramos 

Scott Sedgley 

Doug Weir 

Joe Tagliaboschi 

3. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by CANNING to APPROVE adoption of the agenda as 

amended to remove Closed Session Item 11.1. Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 

Aye: 14 -  Garcia, Canning, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Ellsworth, Alessio, and Kraus 

Absent: 10 -  Pedroza, Ramos, Sedgley, Weir, and Tagliaboschi 

4. Public Comment

None 

5. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation

Commissioner's, and Association of Bay Area Governments Update 

MTC Update 

-update was provided by Director Miller on recent MTC activities

ABAG Update 

-update was provided by Director Garcia on recent ABAG activities

10



Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/27/2022 

6. Director's Update

Director Miller reported: 

-Transit mask mandate update

-In Person Board meetings

-FTA Spending bill and $1.6 million Small Transit Intensive Cities Award

-Announced SR29 PID Public meeting on 4/20/22

-Announced Bike to Wherever Day on 5/20/22

-Announced Vine Trail Month of Movement

-Staff recognition

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

7.1 Public Hearing and Review of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

Biennial Budget for FY 2022-23 (FY23) and FY 2023-24 (FY24) (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 

10-28)

Attachments: Public Hearing & Staff Report 

Information only 

Vice Chair Alessio requested that the PowerPoint presentation be distributed to the Board via 

email.  

Director Dunbar inquired about the timing of allocated funding sources throughout the year. 

Director Joseph inquired about the intended plan for the office remodel and Director Canning 

expressed concern about such line item. 

Action was taken to close the Public Hearing at 2:16pm. 

Aye: 14 -  Garcia, Canning, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Ellsworth, Board Member Alessio, and Kraus 

Absent: 10 -  Pedroza, Ramos, Sedgley, Weir, and Tagliaboschi 

8. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Motion MOVED by CANNING, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE Consent Items 8.1-8.9. 

Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 

Aye: 14 -  Garcia, Canning, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Ellsworth, Board Member Alessio, and Kraus 

Absent: 10 -  Pedroza, Ramos, Sedgley, Weir, and Tagliaboschi 

8.1 Meeting Minutes of March 16, 2022 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 29-32) 

Attachments: Draft Minutes 

8.2 AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings (DeeAnne Gillick) (Pages 33-38) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

8.3 Resolution No. 22-13 Authorization for the Execution of the Certifications and 

Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

(LCTOP) (Roxanna Moradi) (pages 39-44) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

11

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2be2c159%1e119f%1e4f49%1e8ee7%1e8939717c1842.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=612522a4%1ec22d%1e497b%1ebbf1%1ef95960b8fab7.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a62175ee%1eb409%1e4384%1ea0e4%1e9560d3a4e7d6.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7bd023e4%1ecf53%1e44a4%1ea66a%1eb7dd4369c210.pdf


Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/27/2022 

8.4 Agreement No. 17-15 with Kimley Horn and Associates for Architectural and 

Engineering Design Services to include Building Commissioning Services for the Vine Bus 

Maintenance Facility (Kate Miller) (Pages 45-53) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

8.5 Amendment #3 to Project Work Order No. E-10 to NVTA Agreement No. 18-20 with 

Kimley-Horn and Associates to provide Professional Engineering services for 

construction on the Imola Express Bus Improvements Project (Alberto Esqueda) 

(Pages 54-62) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

8.6 State Route 29 Project Initiation Document (PID) (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 63-71) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

8.7 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Fund Call for Projects 

Fiscal Years Ending (FYE) in 2023-2025 (Diana Meehan) (Pages 72-124) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

8.8 Lost and Found Policy for Vine Transit (Libby Payan) (Pages 125-130) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

8.9 Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 

131-142)

Attachments: Staff Report 

9. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

9.1 Agreement 22-C17 with Transloc. Inc to Acquire an Automated Demand-Response 

Dispatch System (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 143-181) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Director Dunbar inquired about data collection and contract verbiage regarding proprietary 

information.  

Public comment was made by Justin Hole. 

Motion MOVED by CANNING, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Item 9.1. Motion carried by the 

following roll call vote: 

Aye: 14 -  Garcia, Canning, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Ellsworth, Board Member Alessio, and Kraus 

Absent: 10 -  Pedroza, Ramos, Sedgley, Weir, and Tagliaboschi 

9.2 2022 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 

182-185)

12

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9bcef293%1ef9db%1e4a5d%1e8635%1e49f405b0ab9b.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=81627e25%1e05c0%1e4909%1eb36b%1e5d9d8f1ae333.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a75170e5%1e9319%1e4113%1ea399%1e0009e8d4d303.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=04f36d06%1e93b6%1e423e%1eb426%1ee9c94b230883.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=14dd8db3%1eefd6%1e4346%1e95e0%1e3d6278777d73.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84dddabc%1e62b0%1e46b2%1e94dc%1eca0bf2164041.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=319b08bf%1e23d7%1e41e5%1eaf89%1e739419ecd7ac.pdf


 

 Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/27/2022 

 Attachments: Staff Report 
 
 

 Public comment made by Justin Hole. 

 

 Director Canning inquired about contingencies. 

 Director Garcia inquired requested for the Vine Trail to present the Board with economic  

 contributions to the Napa Valley. 

 

 Motion MOVED by DOHRING, SECONDED by CANNING to Approve Item 9.2. Motion carried by the  

 following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 14 -  Garcia, Canning, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Ellsworth, Board Member Alessio, and Kraus 
 
 
 Absent: 10 -   Pedroza, Ramos, Sedgley, Weir, and Tagliaboschi 
 
 

9.3 Solar Photovoltaic System for the Vine Bus Maintenance Facility (Antonio Onorato)  

 (Pages 186-212) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
 
 

 Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE Item 9.3. Motion moved by the  

 following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 14 -  Garcia, Canning, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Ellsworth, Board Member Alessio, and Kraus 
 
 
 Absent: 10 -  Pedroza, Ramos, Sedgley, Weir, and Tagliaboschi 
 

 

9.4 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 213-243) 
 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
 
 

 Motion MOVED by DUNBAR, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE Item 9.4. Motion carried by the  

 following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 14 -  Garcia, Canning, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Ellsworth, Board Member Alessio, and Kraus 
 
 
 
 Absent: 10 -  Pedroza, Ramos, Sedgley, Weir, and Tagliaboschi 
 
 

 
10.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
 -Vine Trail Presentation 

 

 

11.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
 

11.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code Section  

 54957(b)(1)) 

 Title: Executive Director 

 

 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code Section 54957.6)) 

 Authority Designated Representative: Authority Chair  

 Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director 
 
 This Closed Session was continued. 
 

13

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31b6d7c8%1e3e21%1e4c81%1e9d21%1e7e580163ea5b.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1cabf87f%1ed2a8%1e426a%1e8559%1e424ed7d7af84.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e4b0c8df%1eda89%1e4b60%1eaea8%1e0664ca60966b.pdf


Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/27/2022 

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1  Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of May 18, 2022 and Adjournment 

Vice Chair Alessio adjourned the meeting at 3:04pm. 

____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

14



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: April 20, 2022 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 22-14 
making findings and declaring its intent to continue remote teleconference meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 
State of Emergency Proclamation.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

AB 361 allows local legislative bodies to hold remote meetings during a proclaimed state 
of emergency, if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures that 
warrant holding meetings remotely.   

On September 27, 2021 the Napa County Executive Officer and Public Health Officer 
issued a recommendation that all public boards and commissions that wish to continue 
meeting remotely to help minimize the spread and transmission of COVID-19 be 
permitted to do so.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

15



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: April 20, 2022 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Laura Sanderlin, Office Manager/Board Secretary 

(707) 259-8633 / Email: lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 22-14 
making findings and declaring its intent to continue remote teleconference meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 
State of Emergency Proclamation.  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None  

BACKGROUND 

AB 361 allows local legislative bodies to hold remote meetings during a proclaimed state 
of emergency, if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures that 
warrant holding meetings remotely.   

If the Board desires to continue to meet utilizing the relaxed teleconference meeting rules, 
AB 361 requires an ongoing finding every 30 days that the Board has reconsider the 
circumstances of the state of emergency and that the  emergency continues to impact the 
ability to “meet safely in person,” or that state or local officials continue to recommend 
measures to promote social distancing.   Gov. Code § 54953(e)(3). 

On September 27, 2021 the Napa County Executive Officer and Public Health Officer 
issued a recommendation that all public boards and commissions that wish to continue 
meeting remotely to help minimize the spread and transmission of COVID-19 be 
permitted to do so.  This Local Order remains effective through June 30, 2022.   

In response to improving conditions, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-04-22 
on February 25, 2022, which lifted many of the provisions related to the emergency while 

16

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 9.2 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
maintaining certain measures to support the ongoing response and recovery effort.  
Although a portion of the emergency provisions have been lifted the Governor’s March 4. 
2020 State of Emergency Proclamation as it related to the COVID-19 pandemic remains 
active. 
 
NVTA staff is monitoring the status of the Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, 
state and local orders related to social distancing, and health and safety conditions related 
to COVID-19, and confirm that said conditions continue to exist that warrant remote only 
meetings pursuant to the provisions of paragraph Government Code section 54953, 
subdivision (e)(3). COVID cases are decreasing and regulations are relaxing; however, 
there remains local and state recommendations for social distancing and remote meeting 
attendance and all are encouraged to isolate when not feeling well.   Remote meetings 
allow for these precautions to be implemented.   Staff recommends the Board extend the 
time during which it may continue to meet by teleconference without compliance with 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953 of the Brown Act. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to approve Resolution 22-14 which would put the NVTA 
Board of Director’s meeting out of government compliance.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 

1) Resolution 22-14 

17



ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 9.2 

RESOLUTION No. 22-14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

MAKING FINDINGS REAUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 
AND DECLARING ITS INTENT TO CONTINUE REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

MEETINGS PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953  

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board;  

WHEREAS, all legislative body meetings of NVTA are open and public, as required by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the 
public may attend, participate, and observe the Commission conduct its business; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom signed AB 361, amending the Brown Act, including 
Government Code section 54953(e), which makes provisions for remote teleconferencing 
participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain 
conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition of AB 361 is that a state of emergency is declared by 
the Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of 
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the 
state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the State, specifically, the Governor of the 
State of California proclaimed a state of emergency on March 4, 2020, related to the 
threat of COVID-19, which remains partially in effect ; and 

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2021, the Napa County Executive Officer and Public 
Health Officer jointly recommended social distancing measures and that all boards and 
commissions continue meeting remotely, in whole or in part, in order to help minimize the 
spread and transmission of COVID-19 and its variants, and this local order remains 
effective through June 30, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Board  found on October 20, 2021 pursuant to Resolution 21-28 that 
the COVID-19 emergency has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to 
the safety of persons that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, 
equipment, and facilities of NVTA, and found that meeting in person for meetings of all 
NVTA legislative bodies would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, 

18



 
Resolution No. 22-14 

Page 2 of 3 
 

and thus the Board invoked the provisions of AB 361 to allow for remote teleconference 
meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that emergency conditions 

continue to persist within the County of Napa due to the COVID-19 emergency, the state 
of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in 
person, and the Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, state regulations and local 
recommendations related to social distancing and remote meetings continue.   

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE NAPA VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION BOARD DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER 
AS FOLLOWS:    
 

1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 
 

 2. The Board hereby finds that it has considered the state of the emergency and that 
meeting in person for meetings of all NVTA related legislative bodies subject to the Ralph 
M. Brown Act would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees.   

 
3.  Staff is hereby directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and 

purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public meetings of the Board 
and all NVTA legislative bodies in accordance with Government Code section 54953, 
subdivision (e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act for remote only 
teleconference meetings. 
 

4.  Staff is further directed to continue to monitor the health and safety conditions 
related to COVID-19, the status of the Governor’s state of emergency, the state 
regulations related to social distancing, and the local orders related to health and safety, 
and present to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting the related information 
and recommendations for remote only meetings pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 
Government Code section 54953, subdivision (e)(3), and to consider extending the time 
during which the Commission may continue to meet by teleconference without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by 

the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on May 18, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair      Ayes: 
 
 
                 

19



Resolution No. 22-14 
Page 3 of 3 

      Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

20



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Resolution No. 22-16 Operations and Maintenance Agreement between State of 
California Department of Transportation and the Napa Valley Transportation Authority for 
Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt Resolution No. 22-16 
(Attachment 1) approving Operations and Maintenance Agreement C21 (Attachment 2) 
with Caltrans and authorize the Executive Director, or designee, to sign the Operations 
and Maintenance Agreement and make minor modifications to the agreement and 
amendments for the State Route 29 Project. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Transit Signal Priority (TSP) reduces travel time and increases bus reliability by giving 
priority to buses at intersections when a bus is behind schedule. Installation of equipment 
is need on buses as well as inside of traffic control cabinets to activate TSP. The Napa 
County TSP project along SR -29 includes five intersections in American Canyon from 
Napa Junction Road to American Canyon Road. These five intersections were part of the 
Preferred Corridor Plan from the State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor 
Plan in May 2020. This Operations and Maintenance Agreement is a standard Caltrans 
document used by Caltrans for other TSP Projects in Caltrans District 4. This Agreement 
covers the installation, operation, and maintenance of TSP within the Caltrans traffic 
control cabinet.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no direct Fiscal Impact associated with this Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement. NVTA plans on going out for an Invitation to Bid for the installation of TSP 
equipment on NVTA buses and in the Caltrans traffic control cabinets, which will have a 
cost. The contract for installation will be presented to the NVTA Board for its consideration 
of approval at a future meeting. 

21



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 22-16 Operations and Maintenance Agreement   
between State of California Department of Transportation and the  
Napa Valley Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and 
Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt Resolution No. 22-16 
(Attachment 1) approving Operations and Maintenance Agreement C21 (Attachment 2) 
with Caltrans and authorize the Executive Director, or designee, to sign the Operations 
and Maintenance Agreement and make minor modifications to the agreement and 
amendments for the State Route 29 Project. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

The NVTA Board adopted the Final State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor 
Plan (SR 29 CMCP) on May 20, 2020. The CMCP identified preferred SR 29 corridor 
concept and associated infrastructure improvements that will best meet both the local 
and regional goals, while providing the highest return on investment of limited regional 
transportation funding for the next 20 years. A Transit Signal Priority System (TSP) was 
one of the preferred infrastructure improvements along the corridor from American 
Canyon from Napa Junction Road to American Canyon Road. 

22

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 9.3 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

This planned improvement is now possible because Caltrans installed adaptive signal 
controller technology in American Canyon. Caltrans awarded a contract at the end of June 
2019 to Kimley Horn and fully implemented the project in April of 2020. The adaptive 
signal controller can accommodate TSP and the next step to making TSP a reality in the 
SR-29 corridor is the execution of this Operations and Maintenance Agreement. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The NVTA could decide not to enter into this Operations and Maintenance Agreement 
and therefore Caltrans would not allow NVTA proceed with implementing TSP along the 
corridor. NVTA Routes 11, 11X and 29 would continue poor on-time performance in the 
SR 29 Corridor in American Canyon. 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability 

Due to frequent stops to pick-up and drop-off passengers, transit trips typically take longer 
than car trips.  By implementing TSP along a congested corridor, the Vine buses will be 
able to be more competitive with cars drive times. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

(1) Resolution 22-16

(2) Draft Operations and Maintenance Agreement C21 between State of California
Department of Transportation and the Napa Valley Transportation Authority for
Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System

23



ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 9.3 

MAY 18, 2022 
 

RESOLUTION No. 22-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION, OPERATION AND 

MAINTENANCE OF TRANSIT SIGNAL PRIORITY SYSTEM 
 
 
  WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority plans to install a traffic 
signal priority system in the State of California, Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) owned traffic signals; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Caltrans requires an implementing agency to execute an 
agreement with the Department before it can complete the installation; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to delegate 
authorization to execute these agreements and any amendments thereto to the 
Executive Director. 
 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the NVTA Board hereby 
authorizes the Executive Director or designee to execute the Operations and 
Maintenance Agreement for Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit 
Signal Priority System and any Amendments thereto with the California Department 
of Transportation. 
 
Passed and Adopted the 18th day of May 2022.  
 
______________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair       Ayes: 
                 
 
 

                 Nays: 
 
 
                 Absent: 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
               
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

24



ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 9.3 

MAY 18, 2022 

5/2/2022, v1 Page 1 of 5 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT between State of 
California Department of Transportation and the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of 
Transit Signal Priority System  

(C21) 

I. INTRODUCTION:

This is an Agreement between the State of California, Department of Transportation (CALTRANS) and 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA), covering installation, operation and maintenance 
responsibilities for the transit signal priority (TSP) system at certain CALTRANS-owned traffic signals 
identified in Exhibit A. This document outlines the intentions and policies of the parties involved. It is not 
intended to authorize funding or project effort. 

II. PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:

NVTA desires to synchronize CALTRANS traffic signals identified in Exhibit A on the involved 
transportation corridors.  

III. EQUIPMENT INSTALLED IN CALTRANS RIGHT-OF-WAY:

CALTRANS owns the right-of-way and all new equipment installed in CALTRANS right-of-
way, in perpetuity, except Transit Signal Priority (TSP) equipment. See attached Exhibit A for a 
listing of new equipment to be installed on CALTRANS facilities. Exhibit A may be revised at 
any time by mutual written consent of CALTRANS and NVTA. 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

IV. TERMS OF MAINTENANCE:

1. CALTRANS will maintain all equipment located in the CALTRANS’s right-of-way, at the
locations identified in Exhibit A, with the exception of TSP equipment which will be provided by
NVTA.

2. CALTRANS will temporarily disable TSP equipment if a quick repair is not possible.
CALTRANS will resume operation when a repair is complete.

3. CALTRANS will notify NVTA and the involved local public entities within forty-eight (48)
hours regarding any changes to the TSP systems. NVTA understands that workload and staffing
factors may affect the actual amount of time prior to notification. In cases of emergencies,
CALTRANS will notify the involved local public entities and NVTA as soon as practicable.

25



OPERATIONS AGREEMENT between State of California Department of Transportation and Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System  

5/2/2022, v1 Page 2 of 5 

4. NVTA will provide necessary TSP equipment to support maintenance of TSP system, and all
associated cables and equipment after the initial deployment.

5. NVTA will only access the CALTRANS’ facilities with a CALTRANS’ representative from
either the Electrical Maintenance or Traffic Operations units present. Contact information will be
provided. NVTA shall notify at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of need to access the
CALTRANS’ facilities.

6. Nothing in the provisions of this Agreement is intended to create duties or obligations to or rights
in any third party beneficiaries of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, any of the
involved local public entities, or to affect the legal liability of either NVTA or CALTRANS by
imposing any standard of care respecting the maintenance of State highways different from the
standard of care imposed by law.

7. NVTA shall clearly mark, label, and identify all equipment and cables associated with the TSP
systems.

8. NVTA shall provide and maintain a laminated printed list in cabinet for CALTRANS
Maintenance personnel to follow in event of incident or problems with TSP equipment, including
how to disconnect/disable equipment. NVTA emergency maintenance contact information shall
also be provided.

V. TERMS OF INTERSECTION OPERATION:

Unless otherwise specified herein, all traffic signal timing settings including those associated with
TSP shall remain as configured by CALTRANS.  NVTA will submit TSP equipment parameters to
CALTRANS for pre-approval. Any changes to the signal settings shall be made exclusively by, or as
directed by CALTRANS. Any requests for changes to signal or adaptive system settings desired by
NVTA shall be submitted to CALTRANS for approval. In the event that the TSP system exacerbates
congestion and queuing conditions, CALTRANS will temporarily disable the system and resume
normal operations while under review. The following responsibilities have been identified and
agreed upon by both parties:

VI. MUTUALLY AGREED:

1. Equipment and devices shall be reviewed and approved by CALTRANS prior to installation.

2. NVTA will maintain an inventory of at least one TSP replacement unit for all CALTRANS
intersections.

3. NVTA shall not alter, adjust, modify, remove, replace, disconnect, activate, or deactivate
CALTRANS equipment without written authorization from CALTRANS. NVTA is not
authorized to access the CALTRANS’s facilities without a CALTRANS representative present.

4. CALTRANS shall respond to all malfunctions of the TSP system, CALTRANS may, without
prior notice, temporarily deactivate TSP equipment remotely or locally at any time if problems
appear that are suspected to be caused or exacerbated by TSP. CALTRANS will make a

26



OPERATIONS AGREEMENT between State of California Department of Transportation and Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System  

5/2/2022, v1 Page 3 of 5 

reasonable effort to notify NVTA within forty-eight (48) hours regarding any changes to the TSP 
system as soon as possible, prior to action if feasible. NVTA understands that workload and 
staffing factors may affect the actual amount of time prior to notification. Care shall be taken to 
ensure Emergency Vehicle Preemption (EVP) system is not affected by turning off TSP system. 

5. FACILITIES DAMAGE: CALTRANS shall provide emergency response and replace/restore all
CALTRANS equipment to proper operation. CALTRANS will deactivate and disconnect and
remove any damaged TSP equipment, if necessary. CALTRANS will make a reasonable effort to
notify NVTA and the involved local public entities within forty-eight (48) hours regarding any
damage to TSP system or failure of TSP system components. NVTA understands that workload
and staffing factors may affect the actual amount of time prior to notification.

6. The parties shall work together in the spirit of good faith and cooperation to successfully
implement this Agreement. To the extent there are disagreements between CALTRANS and
NVTA, those disagreements shall immediately be raised between the parties. Prior to initiating
any legal action, the parties hereto agree to meet in good faith to attempt to resolve any dispute.

7. This Agreement shall commence as of the date signed by both CALTRANS and NVTA and shall
continue in effect until CALTRANS and NVTA reach a mutually agreeable date for termination
of the Agreement.

VII. HOLD HARMLESS:

Neither CALTRANS nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury, damage or 
liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by NVTA under or in connection 
with any work, authority or jurisdiction conferred upon NVTA under this Agreement. It is understood 
and agreed that NVTA will fully defend, indemnify, and save harmless CALTRANS and all its 
officers and employees from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind and description brought 
forth under, including, but not limited to, tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation or other 
theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by 
NVTA under this Agreement. 

Neither NVTA nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury, damage or liability 
occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by CALTRANS, under or in connection 
with any work, authority or jurisdiction conferred upon CALTRANS under this Agreement. It is 
understood and agreed that CALTRANS will fully defend, indemnify, and save harmless NVTA and 
all its officers and employees from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind and description 
brought forth under, including, but not limited to, tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation or 
other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by 
CALTRANS under this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates indicated below, the 
latest of which shall be deemed the effective date of this Agreement.  

State of California Department of Transportation 

27



OPERATIONS AGREEMENT between State of California Department of Transportation and Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System  

5/2/2022, v1  Page 4 of 5 

(CALTRANS) 

Signed by: 

 

 

           

S. Sean Nozzari,  Date 
District Deputy Director, Traffic Operations 
District 4 
 

Approved as to form and content:  

 

 

By:        

Attorney 
Department of Transportation  

28



OPERATIONS AGREEMENT between State of California Department of Transportation and Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System  

5/2/2022, v1 Page 5 of 5 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

(NVTA) 

Signed by: 

_____________  _____________  ___________ 

Kate Miller Date 
Executive Director 

Approved as to form and content: 

_________________ _______  ___________ 

Osman Mufti Date 
General Counsel for NVTA 

29



OPERATIONS AGREEMENT between State of California Department of Transportation and Napa Valley Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, 
and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System  

5/2/2022, v1 Page 6 of 5 

Exhibit A: Caltrans Signalized Intersections with New TSP Equipment Installed (Phase Selector, Auxiliary Panel, GPS Radio Antenna, 
cabling and associated accessories) 

NO. 

LOCATION 

OWNED 

MAINTAINED (IF 
DIFFERENT FROM 

OWNED) Intersection Name City County PROJECT 

1 Napa Junction Road 
American 
Canyon Napa Caltrans _ SR 29 Adaptive Signal Control System 

2 Eucalyptus Drive 
American 
Canyon Napa Caltrans _ SR 29 Adaptive Signal Control System 

3 Rio Del Mar 
American 
Canyon Napa Caltrans _ SR 29 Adaptive Signal Control System 

4 Donaldson Way E 
American 
Canyon Napa Caltrans _ SR 29 Adaptive Signal Control System 

5 American Canyon Rd 
American 
Canyon Napa Caltrans _ SR 29 Adaptive Signal Control System 

30



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Resolution No. 22-13, Revised, Authorizing the Execution of the Certifications and 
Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 
(LCTOP).  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the NVTA Board approve Resolution No. 22-13, Revised (Attachment 1) for the FY 
2021-22 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) Zero Emission Bus project.   
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is eligible to receive funds totaling 
$391,096 in FY 2021-22 for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).  
These funds are disbursed on a formula basis by the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) and on a population bases by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC).  Funding is generated from Assembly Bill 32 Cap & Trade proceeds. 
Caltrans requires that recipients provide a board-approved resolution annually to receive 
the funds. Resolution 22-13, revised, applies the FY 2021-22 LCTOP funds will towards 
the procurement of a new, second 40’ zero emission buses (ZEB). The original resolution 
applied the funds to an existing ZEB procurement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
NVTA will receive $391,096 to acquire a zero emission bus upon Board approval of the 
attached Resolution. 
 

32



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Roxanna Moradi, Senior Financial Analyst 

(707) 259-8781 / Email: rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 22-13, Revised Authorizing the Execution of the 
Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for the 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the NVTA Board approve Resolution No. 22-13, Revised (Attachment 1) for the FY 
2021-22 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) Zero Emission Bus project.   

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None  

BACKGROUND 

At its April 20, 2022 meeting, the NVTA Board approved   Resolution 22-13 to execute 
FY 2021-22 LCTOP certifications and assurances  for funds applied towards an existing 
zero emission bus (ZEB) procurement.  During the application review process, LCTOP 
staff recommended to instead apply the funds towards a new ZEB procurement.   

In 2018, the California Air Resources Board (CARB) approved the Innovative Clean 
Transit regulation, which requires small public transit providers, like NVTA, with fewer 
than 100 buses to transition ZEBs beginning in June of 2023 and to reach a fully ZEB 
fleet by 2040. Early acquisition of zero emission buses prior to the regulation going into 
effect allows NVTA to use certain fund sources to replace its existing fleet with ZEBs that 
would otherwise be unavailable due to policy restrictions. Those funds sources include 
LCTOP and Hybrid Voucher Incentive Program (HVIP) funds. This approach will 
significantly reduce the cost of electrifying the Vine Transit fleet.   

33

mailto:rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                      Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
The cost of electric buses is roughly 40 percent more than standard diesel buses, 
therefore, competitive fund sources and creative financing are essential to accomplish 
this unfunded mandate.   
 
On March 23, 2022, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) approved MTC 
Resolution No. 4273, Revised and adopted the FY 2021-22 Cap and Trade Low Carbon 
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).  MTC allocated $362,031 (population-based 
allocation) to NVTA and $29,065 was apportioned to NVTA on the revenue formula which 
is administered by Caltrans for a total of $391,096). Caltrans requires that recipients 
provide an approved resolution to receive these funds annually.   
 
Funds from FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 will be used for the existing, approved ZEB 
project from last year (one 40 ft ZEB). This year’s application has been revised to reflect 
procuring a new ZEB that uses the LCTOP FY22 funding allocation along with 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) to match the federal funding. Table 1 provides a 
summary of the funding plan and Table 2 shows the expenditure plan to acquire an 
additional 40 ft ZEB. 
 
Table 1:  Funding Plan 
Fund Source Amount 

LCTOP FY2021-22 391,096 

FTA 5339b 597,123 

 TDA 111,781 

Total Funding   $1,100,000 
 
Table 2:  Expenditure Plan 
Capital Project Amount 
    40’ Zero Emission Electric Bus   900,000 
    Options & Charging Equipment  200,000 
Total Expenses   $1,100,000 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to adopt Resolution 22-13, Revised, which would result in 
not receiving the FY2021-22 LCTOP funds, hampering the Vine fleet electrification which 
will further impact the agency’s other fund sources.   
 
 
 
 

34



NVTA Agenda Letter                      Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.    
 
LCTOP funding supplements the budget for ZEB purchases.  Without this funding source, 
NVTA would need to use TDA funds as a local match - funding that could be used for 
other projects.  
 
Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods.  
 
The agency Short Range Transit Plan and Countywide Transportation Plan accelerate 
the replacement of the diesel and gasoline vehicles with zero emission vehicles. The 
LCTOP funding will help the agency meet that goal. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution No. 22-13, Revised 
 

35



ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 9.4 

May 18, 2022 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION No. 22-13, REVISED 

 
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE 

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS 
FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) 

FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT: 
NVTA ZERO EMISSION BUS PROCUREMENT PROJECT; $391,096 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is an eligible project sponsor 
and may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for 
transit projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or 

regional implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation 
(Department) as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering 
and distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to delegate 
authorization to execute these documents and any amendments thereto to Kate Miller, 
Executive Director; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to implement the LCTOP 
project(s) listed below, 

 
WHEREAS, this resolution was revised on May 18, 2022, to amend the Fiscal Year 

(FY) 2022 LCTOP application to apply FY22 LCTOP funds totaling $391,096 to a new, second 
zero-emission bus procurement project rather than contribute towards the existing LCTOP 
project.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority agrees to comply with all conditions and requirements set forth in the 
Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent documents and applicable statutes, 
regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded transit projects. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Kate Miller, Executive Director 
be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any 
Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 
 

36



Resolution No. 22-13, Revised 
Page 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following project 
nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in FY 2021-22 LCTOP funds: 

(Continued to next page) 

Project Name: NVTA Zero Emission Bus Procurement Project 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $391,096 
Short description of project: NVTA will purchase one (1) new forty-foot zero-emission battery 
electric transit bus and procure and install related charging infrastructure. 
Benefit to a Priority Population:  AB 1550 Census Tracts – 6055202000, 6055201601, 
6055201200, 6055200704, 6055200501, 6055200505, 6055200503 & 6055200301 
Contributing Sponsors:  Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 

Passed and adopted the 18th day of May, 2022. 

________________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair Ayes: 

     Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

37



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Chair and Vice Chair Nominating Committee for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board appoint three Board 
members to nominate a Chair and Vice Chair for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The term for Chair Pedroza and Vice Chair Alessio will end in June of this year.  Staff is 
requesting that the Board appoint three Board members to nominate a Chair and Vice 
Chair for FY 2022-23. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No. 

38



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Laura Sanderlin, Board Secretary/Office Manager 

(707) 259-8633 / Email: lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Chair and Vice Chair Nominating Committee for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2022-23 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board appoint three Board 
members to nominate a Chair and Vice Chair for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The NVTA bylaws, adopted in July 1998, require an annual election of Chair and Vice 
Chair at the first annual meeting.  The Chair and Vice Chair hold office for one year or 
until their successors have been appointed.  In June of 2000, the Board adopted, a policy 
that allows a two-year term for the Chair and Vice Chair with an annual vote of approval 
by the Board.  The Board terms are consistent with the agency’s fiscal year and begin on 
July 1 and end on June 30. 

The term for Chair Pedroza and Vice Chair Alessio will end in June of this year.  Staff is 
requesting that the Board appoint three Board members to nominate a Chair and Vice 
Chair for FY 2022-23.  The Board will elect a Chair and Vice Chair for FY 2022-23 at the 
June 15th meeting. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to appoint a subcommittee for nominating a Chair and Vice 
Chair. If no subcommittee is appointed, the Board would be required to present a 
recommendation for nominating a Chair and Vice Chair at its July 20 meeting.  

39

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter  Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 2 of 2 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Not applicable  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

None 

40



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Resolution No. 22-15 Adopting the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years (FY) 2022-23 and 2023-24 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
15 adopting:  
 

1) FY 2022-23 (FY23) NVTA consolidated budget of $75,111,800, and approve the 
FY23 appropriations limit of $75,111,800, and 
 
2) FY 2023-24 (FY24) NVTA annual operating of $36,283,900 and approve the FY 
2024 appropriations limit of $36,283,900. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
NVTA staff is presenting the two-year biennial budget financial program for FYs 2022-23 
and 2023-24 for review, comment and adoption.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?   Yes, upon adoption of the budget will result in expenditures of 
up to $75,111,800 for FY 2022-23 and $36,283,900 for FY 2023-24. 
 
Element FY2022-23 Budget FY 2023-24 Budget 
CMA (General Fund) $13,968,100 $13,211,500 
Transit Operations (Enterprise Fund) $14,563,700 $15,202,400 
Capital Budget $43,510,000 $4,300,000 
Depreciation $3,070,000 $3,570,000 
Total $75,111,800 $36,283,900 

 

41



 

May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 22-15 Adoption of the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority Biennial Budget for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24  

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 22-
15 adopting:  
 

1) FY 2022-23 (FY23) NVTA consolidated budget of $75,111,800, and approve the 
FY23 appropriations limit of $75,111,800, and 
 
2) FY 2023-24 (FY24) NVTA annual operating of $36,283,900 and approve the FY 
2024 appropriations limit of $36,283,900. 

 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Paratransit Coordinating Council reviewed the Vine Go paratransit budget on May 5, 
2022. No comments were received. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
After consideration of comments provided by the Board and various stakeholders, the 
overall budget for the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is $75.1 million in FY 2022-
23 and $36.3 million in FY 2023-24. The biennial budget outlines NVTA’s plan for how 
resources will be used to achieve the agency’s goals and objectives over the next two 
years.  Adoption of the spending appropriation provides the legal authority to expend 
revenues for the outlined objectives.   
 

42

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                                Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
The two year fiscal plan is a balanced budget achieved by linking expenditures and 
funding operations with anticipated operating and grants revenues.  The budget provides 
funding for all NVTA program objectives and reflects the efforts made to meet the 
agency’s new and existing responsibilities to the community while minimizing costs.  
 
Staff anticipates these goals and objectives are achievable with resources available. That 
said, any expanded project delivery role over the next two to three years may require 
additional staff resources and support.  Reallocation of staff to address new 
responsibilities such as new projects and programs, maintaining the efficiency of transit 
services, delivering large capital projects, and assisting with Priority Development Area 
improvements may also be necessary.  
 
Revisions to the Preliminary Budget 
 
Since the April 20th NVTA Board meeting and public hearing, a few minor modifications 
were made to the budget:   
 

1) Improvements at the Soscol Gateway Transit Center’s upper floor office acoustic 
partitioning and the ground floor office suite build out has been reduced from $3 
million to $860,000 for interim improvements, and 

2) Federal award of medium sized vehicles has been added in the amount of 288,000 
in federal funds and $112,000 in local matching funds. 

 
Soscol Gateway Transit Center Improvements 
At the first reading on April 20, 2022, several board members commented on the Transit 
Center/Office Modifications build out placeholder item.  This budgetary line item was 
intended for two purposes:   
 
The first is to modify the upper floor workstations to include noise cancelling acoustical 
partitions and other solutions for an environment conducive for virtual meetings without 
the need to use a separate office space. This improvement was to support staff members 
participating in meetings at their desks without impacting other staff members.   
 
The second purpose is to convert the ground level storage area to usable office space. 
Plans were shelved at the time of construction back in 2012 as a cost savings measure 
since the extra space was not needed at the time since NVTA had only twelve full time 
employees.  Now, there are 16 FTE’s and two summer interns and the upper floor has 
exceeded its capacity.  .  The refined cost also includes a wellness room and restroom 
for staff on the first floor. 
 
During the budget development process, $3 million was used as a placeholder as the 
costs at the time were unknown. In speaking with two interior design consultants, the 
actual costs estimates for the improvements are in the range of $750,000 to $3.5 million. 
The original concept would have also reconfigured the upper floor to privatize 
workstations and to create more work spaces for the expanded staff.   NVTA has identified 

43



NVTA Agenda Letter                                Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Transportation Development Act Funds to pay for these expenditures. Staff will return to 
the board for its consideration of proposed contracts to complete the work at a future date.    
 
Federal award for vehicle bus procurement 
On May 5, 2022, NVTA received notification from the California Department of 
Transportation that the agency was selected to receive an award of $288,000 for four (4) 
medium buses through the Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 competitive grant 
program. Two of the four vehicles will be purchased for the Calistoga Shuttle. The award 
was added to the Capital Investments Budget. 
 
NVTA’s top five budgetary expenditures are:  

1. Capital Investments 
2. Purchased Transportation  
3. Professional Fees  
4. Personnel Costs  
5. Fuel  

 
Table 1 summarizes the proposed biennial budget. 
 
Table 1:  Biennial Budget FY23 and FY24  

Fiscal Year FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 
CMA $13,968,100 $13,211,500 
Transit Operations $14,563,700 $15,202,400 
Capital $43,510,000 $4,300,000 
Depreciation $3,070,000 $3,570,000 
Total Budget $75,111,800 $36,283,900 

 
 
General Fund (CMA)- Planning and Administration  NVTA’s administrative and planning 
budget is supported by Transportation Development Act (TDA) Funds, One Bay Area 
Grant planning funds distributed by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), 
Federal Highway Funds administered by Caltrans, membership fees, and contributions 
from the Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition.  The biennial operations budget for the CMA 
is shown in Table 2.  
 
Table 2:  Congestion Management Agency (General Fund) 
Fiscal Year FY2023 FY2024 
Operating Budget $13,968,100 $13,211,500 

* Unused appropriation in FY23 will be carried over to FY24 
 
Table 3:  Operating Expenses Details 
Fiscal Year FY2023 FY2024 
Personnel Costs $3,517,700 $3,650,500 
Administration $853,400 $894,000 

44



NVTA Agenda Letter                                Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Professional Fees/Project 
Delivery 

$9,597,000 $8,667,000 

TOTAL CMA $13,968,100 $13,211,500 
 
The personnel costs include agency’s 16 approved full time equivalent employee 
positions and administration expenditures related to managing the agency’s operations.  
A list of general fund programs and projects is included as Attachment 1. The top 6 
projects incurring Professional Fees include: 
 
1. SR29 Improvements/ Napa Forward ($6,200,000) 
2. Soscol Junction ($5,000,000) 
3. SR29 Improvements/ American Canyon ($1,500,000) 
4. SR29/SR12/Airport Environmental ($1,000,000) 
5. Upstairs/Ground Floor Office Improvements ($860,000) 
6. All other projects/programs less than $1 million 
 
A list of general fund programs and projects is included as Attachment 1.  
 
Public Transit (Enterprise) Fund  The transit operating budget represents the cost for 
deploying the Vine, Vine Go, community shuttle services in American Canyon, Yountville, 
the St. Helena, and Calistoga. Table 4 shows the biennial budget for the next two years.  
Table 5 presents the Capital Projects the agency intends to undertake in the next two 
fiscal years. 
 
Table 4:  Public Transit Fund 
Fiscal Year FY2023 FY2024 
Operating Budget        $14,563,700 $15,202,400 
   Depreciation        $3,070,000 $3,570,000 
   Total Budget        $17,633,700 $18,772,400 
   
Capital Budget* $43,510,000 $4,300,000 

* Unused appropriation in FY23 will be carried over to FY24. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board must adopt a budget by June 30, 2022 for the next fiscal year.   
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.   
 
The budget appropriation is the legal spending authority approved by the Board of 
Directors which allows the NVTA to coordinate resources for the implementation of 
policies, operations and project delivery. A budget must be adopted for the next fiscal 
year. 

45



NVTA Agenda Letter                                Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution 22-15 
(2) Detailed FY23 and FY24 Budgets 

46



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

May 18, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 22-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 
ADOPTING THE FY 2022-23 AND FY2023-24 BUDGETS  

AND APPROPRIATIONS LIMITS  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is designated the 
countywide transportation planning agency responsible for Highway, Streets and Roads, 
transit planning and programming, capital development, and project delivery within Napa 
County, and 
 

WHEREAS, on an routine basis the Board reviews and approves a budget for all 
transit services including fixed route, deviated route, paratransit, and other mobility 
services as well as NVTA administration and planning, and  

 
WHEREAS, certain Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Congestion 

Management Authority, Transportation for Clean Air, Federal Transit Administration, 
State Transit Assistance, Regional Measure 2, Caltrans, and Transportation 
Development Act funds, and other grants are passed through NVTA, and 

 
WHEREAS, NVTA held a public hearing on April 20th, 2022, to consider public 

input on the proposed budget: 
 
WHEREAS, the bi-annual budget is front loaded in the first year with the 

expectation that unused balances will rollover in the successive year; and  
 

WHEREAS, the funding is available to NVTA, but an additional allocation request 
is needed for the use of funds; 

 
WHEREAS, projects and programs will commence once funding has been clearly 

identified and secured, 
 

 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Napa Valley Transportation and 

Authority adopt the FY 2022-23 Consolidated Budget in the amount of $75,111,800 and 
FY 2023-24 Consolidated Budget in the amount of $36,283,900 and authorizes the 
Executive Director to take all necessary actions to secure indicated Federal, State, 
Regional, and Local resources, and to execute contracts with Member Agencies or 
funding entities as necessary. 
 

47



 
Resolution No. 22-15 

Page 2 of 2 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Napa Valley Transportation and Authority 
authorizes the Executive Director or designee to take all necessary actions to secure 
indicated Federal, State, Regional, and Local resources, and to execute contracts with 
Member Agencies or funding entities as necessary. 
 
 
Passed and Adopted the 18th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair      Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                Nays: 
 
 
 
                Absent: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED:  
 
_______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

48



Budget Inputs - Consolidated: Vine Transit Services
Fuel cost per mile 0.61 0.52 0.54 0.58 0.82 0.95 

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$  48.00$  49.63$  51.34$  58.00$  60.00$  

FY19 FY20

Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals  Actuals  Budget  Budget  Budget 
Service Hours 138,117 127,980 74,656 129,718 129,718 129,718 
Revenue Hours 112,332 103,322 61,931 91,900 96,241 96,241 
Service Miles 1,894,605 1,902,461 1,079,018 1,664,275 1,714,246 1,714,246 
Revenue Miles 1,739,492 1,685,909 961,390 1,499,608 1,547,581 1,547,581 
Ridership 1,061,104 827,826 315,486 439,660 496,092 504,576 

 Service Costs 6,427,570 6,351,667 5,750,426 7,776,085 7,835,285 8,124,320 
Fixed Cost Allocation 3,040,438 3,040,439 3,040,441 3,785,000 3,970,000 4,122,000 
Total-  Contracted Services 9,468,008 9,392,106 8,790,867 11,561,085 11,805,285 12,246,320 

FY19 FY20
 Actuals  Actuals  Actuals  Budget  Budget  Budget 

Transportation Development Act 4,677,439 6,739,638 2,769,968 5,055,641 5,795,500 6,808,100 
State Transit Assistance 1,737,409 2,064,265 1,054,172 1,689,532 2,310,000 2,610,000 
Federal Funds-  FTA 3,116,113 4,091,330 4,938,515 3,887,687 5,298,600 4,437,900 
Other-Governmental Agencies 446,929 389,677 444,538 392,440 300,600 300,600 
Interest 59,611 54,142 56,964 64,800 48,500 48,500 
Farebox 1,098,733 793,972 374,974 566,700 619,000 720,800 
Charges for Services-Amcan 36,169 45,054 28,600 - - 80,700 
Charges for Service-Yountville 41,303 39,870 38,971 - 61,200 63,700 
Charges for Services-St Helena 34,293 32,262 34,883 - 65,300 67,100 
Charges for Services-Calistoga 65,000 60,000 38,125 55,000 65,000 65,000 
Miscellaneous 3,685 36,737 - - - - 
Intrafund Transfers-In - - - - - - 

Total Revenues $11,316,684 $14,346,947 $9,779,710 $11,711,800 $14,563,700 $15,202,400

Accounting/Auditing Services 2,404 2,040 2,596 14,900 4,100 4,100 
Information Technology Service 29,200 35,029 34,966 36,200 8,500 8,500 
Legal Services - - - 1,000 - - 
Consulting Services - 147 - - 25,000 25,000 
Waste Disposal Services 14,395 16,506 9,458 15,000 25,000 25,000 

Security Services 14,873 44,008 11,705 11,700 15,000 15,000 
Landscaping Services - - 5,975 6,000 - - 
Purchased Transportation 7,376,374 7,392,567 7,726,001 9,548,700 11,690,700 12,075,500 
Maintenance-Equipment 89,982 57,759 95,542 95,000 120,000 120,000 
Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 1,646 6,960 7,882 25,000 75,000 75,000 
Maintenance-Software 51,500 65,894 78,030 105,500 162,000 162,000 
Maintenance-Vehicles 20,167 37,677 65,630 55,000 45,000 45,000 
Rents and Leases - - - 8,000 - - 
Insurance - Premiums 379,189 390,329 400,259 400,300 462,000 472,000 
Communications/Telephone 15,974 17,064 11,651 12,100 1,300 1,300 
Advertising/Marketing 62,547 84,048 61,807 74,500 73,500 73,500 
Printing & Binding 57,407 67,660 18,806 16,000 14,200 14,200 
Bank Charges 15,052 2,034 3,725 3,700 2,000 2,000 
Publications & Legal Notices 444 650 737 700 5,000 5,000 
Office Supplies - 2,585 618 12,500 - - 
Freight/Postage 2,121 - - - - - 
Utilities - Electric 5,965 6,545 3,901 6,000 - - 
Utilities - Water 12,583 8,958 7,528 13,000 - - 
Fuel 1,200,872 1,078,485 824,387 1,000,000 1,444,400 1,668,300 
Interest Expense (TIFIA/Bank of Marin) - - - 140,000 160,000 
Depreciation Expense 2,676,250 2,635,808 2,576,209 3,032,000 3,070,000 3,570,000 

Total for: Services and Supplies 12,028,945             11,952,753           11,947,413           14,492,800 17,382,700 18,521,400 

Salary/Overhead Allocation 185,480 179,924 318,140 251,000 251,000 251,000 
Total for: Other Expenses 185,480 179,924 318,140 251,000 251,000 251,000 

Total Expenses 12,214,425             12,132,677           12,265,553           14,743,800 17,633,700 18,772,400 

LESS Depreciation 2,676,250 2,635,808             2,576,209             3,032,000 3,070,000 3,570,000 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (897,741)   2,214,270  (2,485,843) -   -   -   

FINANCING COSTS DETAILS
Debt Service - 100,000 120,000 
Other Costs - 40,000 40,000 

Total Financing Costs - 140,000 160,000 

FY 2023-24

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenues

Expenses

FY2020-21 FY22 FY 2022-23

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

49



Budgets - Consolidated CMA, Public Transit, TFCA
Fuel cost per mile 0.61                                               0.52                                               0.54                            0.58                            0.82                            0.95                            

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$                                                     48.00$                                                     49.63$                               51.34$                               58.00$                               60.00$                               

FY19 FY20 FY21
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 138,117                                         127,980                                         74,656                        129,718                      129,718                      129,718                      
Revenue Hours 112,332                                         103,322                                         61,931                        91,900                        96,241                        96,241                        
Service Miles 1,894,605                                      1,902,461                                      1,079,018                   1,664,275                   1,714,246                   1,714,246                   
Revenue Miles 1,739,492                                      1,685,909                                      961,390                      1,499,608                   1,547,581                   1,547,581                   
Ridership 1,061,104                                      827,826                                         315,486                      439,660                      496,092                      504,576                      

 Service Costs 6,427,570                                      6,351,667                                      5,750,426                   7,776,085                   7,835,285                   8,124,320                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 3,040,438                                      3,040,439                                      3,040,441                   3,785,000                   3,970,000                   4,122,000                   
Total-  Contracted Services 9,468,008                                      9,392,106                                      8,790,867                   11,561,085                 11,805,285                 12,246,320                 

FY19 FY20
 Actuals  Actuals  Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 10,210,582                                    9,621,538                                      4,516,068                   7,861,741                   9,767,700                   10,233,600                 
State Funds (ie Caltrans) 1,780,693                                      2,575,368                                      5,140,020                   4,759,532                   6,341,300                   2,760,000                   
Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 4,403,517                                      5,071,260                                      5,837,778                   8,214,787                   8,732,200                   11,037,900                 
Other-Governmental Agencies 700,112                                         507,148                                         677,485                      2,792,440                   2,300,600                   2,800,600                   
Interest 87,017                                           114,945                                         73,533                        84,800                        68,500                        68,500                        
Charges for Services/ Farebox 1,098,733                                      1,622,943                                      900,005                      2,316,700                   879,000                      985,800                      
Charges for Services-Amcan 36,169                                           295,054                                         28,600                        -                              -                              80,700                        
Charges for Service-Yountville 41,303                                           39,870                                           38,971                        -                              61,200                        63,700                        
Charges for Services-St Helena 34,293                                           32,262                                           34,883                        -                              65,300                        67,100                        
Charges for Services-Calistoga 65,000                                           60,000                                           38,125                        55,000                        65,000                        65,000                        
Miscellaneous 3,685                                             36,737                                           -                              -                              -                              -                              
Intrafund Transfers-In -                                                 -                                                 318,140                      200,000                      251,000                      251,000                      

Total Revenues $18,461,104 $19,977,125 $17,603,608 $26,285,000 $28,531,800 $28,413,900

Salaries and Wages -                                                 1,247,830                                      1,738,478                   2,032,800                   2,500,000                   2,600,000                   
Extra Help 1,320,298                                      -                                      -                       -                       100,000                      100,000                      
401A Employer Contribution 2,893                                             2,664                                             5,247                          25,000                        24,000                        24,500                        
Cell Phone Allowance 23,906                                           15,111                                           17,470                        24,500                        12,000                        9,000                          
Medicare 3,150                                             4,577                                             5,959                          9,000                          42,000                        42,300                        
Employee Insurance-Premiums 22,429                                           23,037                                           23,650                        42,300                        350,000                      365,000                      
Workers Compensation 286,580                                         289,282                                         303,977                      325,000                      18,000                        18,000                        
Unemployment Compensation 11,437                                           11,674                                           5,172                          7,900                          18,000                        18,000                        
Retirement 2,527                                             2,289                                             337,562                      353,800                      350,000                      365,000                      
Other Post Employment Benefits 194,253                                         321,593                                         46,874                        42,000                        50,000                        55,000                        
Other Employee Benefits 46,875                                           43,437                                           4,026                          53,700                        53,700                        53,700                        

Total for: Salaries and Benefits $1,914,348 $1,961,494 $2,488,415 $2,916,000 $3,517,700 $3,650,500

Administration Services 68,519                                           1,201                                             2,430                          5,000                          5,000                          5,000                          
Accounting/Auditing Services 76,194                                           65,289                                           101,788                      84,900                        74,100                        74,100                        
Information Technology Service 97,490                                           120,787                                         123,631                      186,200                      153,500                      163,500                      
ITS-Communication Services 21,741                                           21,625                                           22,786                        25,800                        25,000                        35,000                        
Legal Services 59,062                                           50,071                                           140,214                      101,000                      55,000                        55,000                        
Temporary/Contract Help -                                                 -                                                 -                              -                              -                              -                              
Consulting Services 2,142,271                                      2,841,077                                      4,919,278                   10,656,700                 9,622,000                   8,692,000                   
Waste Disposal Services 18,657                                           20,528                                           11,922                        19,100                        28,900                        29,500                        
Security Services 18,148                                           45,708                                           13,405                        19,700                        23,000                        23,000                        
Landscaping Services 15,410                                           3,900                                             9,875                          13,500                        7,500                          7,500                          
Construction Services -                                                 -                                                 -                              -                              -                              -                              
Purchased Transportation 7,376,374                                      7,392,567                                      7,726,001                   9,548,700                   11,690,700                 12,075,500                 
Maintenance-Equipment 106,272                                         100,765                                         111,083                      120,000                      145,000                      145,000                      
Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 192,217                                         104,672                                         131,666                      100,000                      150,000                      150,000                      
Maintenance-Software 138,626                                         124,109                                         141,649                      155,500                      212,000                      212,000                      
Maintenance-Vehicles 20,167                                           65,663                                           104,566                      57,000                        47,000                        47,000                        
Rents and Leases - Equipment 7,453                                             5,877                                             6,399                          7,000                          7,000                          7,000                          
Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land -                                                 -                                                 -                              8,000                          -                              -                              
Insurance - Premiums 422,745                                         430,503                                         456,960                      460,300                      522,000                      532,000                      
Communications/Telephone 27,238                                           28,679                                           18,529                        27,100                        16,300                        16,300                        
Advertising/Marketing 146,847                                         139,863                                         69,720                        114,500                      113,500                      113,500                      
Printing & Binding 66,049                                           86,034                                           44,450                        31,000                        29,200                        29,200                        
Bank Charges 15,837                                           3,826                                             4,153                          18,700                        17,000                        17,000                        
Publications & Legal Notices 11,300                                           31,859                                           17,238                        8,700                          13,000                        13,000                        
Training/Conference Expenses 41,011                                           41,684                                           4,599                          25,000                        25,000                        25,000                        
Business Travel/Mileage 12,497                                           11,586                                           233                             15,000                        15,000                        15,000                        
Office Supplies 38,943                                           32,330                                           99,083                        77,600                        25,000                        30,000                        
Freight/Postage 7,073                                             2,686                                             3,888                          3,000                          3,000                          3,000                          
Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 11,475                                           13,398                                           10,826                        6,000                          6,000                          6,000                          
Memberships/Certifications 37,899                                           37,693                                           70,722                        50,000                        70,000                        70,000                        
Utilities - Electric 27,541                                           34,359                                           31,090                        31,000                        25,000                        30,000                        
Utilities - Water 20,356                                           18,059                                           17,804                        25,000                        12,000                        12,000                        
Fuel 1,201,625                                      1,079,051                                      824,489                      1,001,000                   1,445,400                   1,669,300                   
Interest Expense (TIFIA/Bank of Marin) -                                                 -                              -                              180,000                      210,000                      
Depreciation Expense 2,676,250                                      2,635,808                                      2,576,209                   3,032,000                   3,070,000                   3,570,000                   

Total for: Services and Supplies 15,123,287                                15,591,258                                17,816,686              26,034,000              27,833,100              28,082,400              

Salary/Overhead Allocation 185,480                                         179,924                                         318,140                      251,000                      251,000                      251,000                      
Total for: Other Expenses 185,480                                     179,924                                     318,140                   251,000                   251,000                   251,000                   

Total Expenses 15,308,767                                15,771,182                                18,134,826              26,285,000              31,601,800              31,983,900              

LESS Depreciation 2,676,250                                  2,635,808                                  2,576,209                3,032,000                3,070,000                3,570,000                

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 3,152,337                  4,205,943                  (531,218)       -                 -                 -                 

FINANCING COSTS DETAILS
Debt Service (TIFIA) -                                             -                                             -                           -                           100,000                   120,000                   

Other Costs (Bank of Marin) -                                             -                                             -                           -                           80,000                     90,000                     
Total Financing Costs -                                             -                                             -                           -                           180,000                   210,000                   

CAPITAL BUDGETS
Tranportation Development Act 11,824                                           1,818,284                                      -                              7,156,739                   9,300,000                   -                              
Federal 46,192                                           280,000                                         -                              30,078,078                 8,460,000                   -                              
Caltrans/State -                                                 -                                                 -                              2,959,078                   -                              -                              
Other Funds -                                                 -                                                 465,998                      9,889,811                   11,750,000                 4,300,000                   
TIFIA -                                                 -                                                 -                              -                              14,000,000                 -                              

Total Revenues 58,016                                       2,098,284                                  465,998                   50,083,706              43,510,000              4,300,000                

Vine Trail Calistoga to St. Helena -                                                 -                                                 -                              4,500,000                   12,000,000                 4,000,000                   
Zero Emission Buses -                                                 -                                                 -                              5,390,250                   2,400,000                   -                              
Vine Bus Maintenance Facility -                                                 -                                                 308,035                      35,747,229                 27,000,000                 -                              
Soscol Junction -                                                 -                                                 -                              -                              -                              -                              
CAD AVL Technology Upgrades -                                                 -                                                 -                              600,000                      -                              -                              
Transit Related Equipment -                                                 -                                                 53,706                        316,000                      1,650,000                   300,000                      
Bus Purchase -                                                 280,000                                         -                              -                              460,000                      -                              
Imola Park and Ride -                                                 -                                                 104,257                      3,530,227                   -                              -                              
Other Capital Projects 58,016                                           1,818,284                                      -                              -                              -                              -                              

Total: Other Expenses 58,016                                       2,098,284                                  465,998                   50,083,706              43,510,000              4,300,000                

Net Surplus (Deficit) -                                             -                                             -                           -                           -                           -                           

Consolidated Budget -$                                    -$                                    -$                     -$                     75,111,800$        36,283,900$        

Revenues

Expenses

Revenues

Expenses

FY2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

50



Budget Inputs - Congestion Management Agency
FY19 FY20

 Actuals  Actuals  Actuals  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 

41400 Transportation Development Act 5,533,143                   2,881,900                1,746,100                    2,865,100                3,972,200                         3,425,500                
43790 State Funds (ie Caltrans) 43,284                        511,103                   4,085,848                    3,070,000                4,031,300                         150,000                   
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 1,287,404                   979,930                   899,263                       4,327,100                3,433,600                         6,600,000                
43950 Other Org/Governmental Agencies 253,183                      117,471                   232,947                       2,400,000                2,000,000                         2,500,000                
45100 Interest 27,406                        60,803                     16,569                         20,000                     20,000                              20,000                     
46800 Local Contributions & Membership Fees -                              828,971                   525,031                       1,750,000                260,000                            265,000                   
46810 Charges for Services-Amcan -                              250,000                   -                               -                           -                                    -                           
49900 Intrafund Transfers-In (Transit Timesheets) -                              -                           318,140                       200,000                   251,000                            251,000                   

Total Revenues $7,144,420 $5,630,178 $7,823,898 $14,632,200 $13,968,100 $13,211,500

51100 Salaries and Wages 1,320,298                   1,247,830                1,738,478                    2,032,800                2,500,000                         2,600,000                
51110 Extra Help 2,893                          2,664                       5,247                           200,000                   100,000                            100,000                   
51200 457 Employer Contribution 23,906                        15,111                     17,470                         24,500                     24,000                              24,500                     
51205 Cell Phone Allowance 3,150                          4,577                       5,959                           9,000                       12,000                              9,000                       
51300 Medicare/Employer Taxes 22,429                        23,037                     23,650                         42,300                     42,000                              42,300                     
51400 Employee Insurance-Premiums 286,580                      289,282                   303,977                       325,000                   350,000                            365,000                   
51405 Workers Compensation 11,437                        11,674                     5,172                           7,900                       18,000                              18,000                     
51410 Unemployment Compensation 2,527                          2,289                       2,117                           -                           18,000                              18,000                     
51600 Retirement 194,253                      321,593                   337,562                       353,800                   350,000                            365,000                   
51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 46,875                        43,437                     46,874                         42,000                     50,000                              55,000                     
51990 Other Employee Benefits 1,773                          0                              4,026                           53,700                     53,700                              53,700                     
51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits $1,916,121 $1,961,494 $2,490,532 $3,091,000 $3,517,700 $3,650,500

52100 Administration Services 68,519                        1,201                       2,430                           5,000                       5,000                                5,000                       
52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 73,790                        63,249                     99,192                         70,000                     70,000                              70,000                     
52130 Information Technology Service 68,290                        85,758                     88,665                         150,000                   145,000                            155,000                   
52131 ITS-Communication Services 21,741                        21,625                     22,786                         25,800                     25,000                              35,000                     
52140 Legal Services 59,062                        50,071                     140,214                       100,000                   55,000                              55,000                     
52310 Consulting Services 2,142,271                   2,840,930                4,919,278                    10,656,700              9,597,000                         8,667,000                
52325 Waste Disposal Services 4,262                          4,022                       2,464                           4,100                       3,900                                4,500                       
52335 Security Services 3,275                          1,700                       1,700                           8,000                       8,000                                8,000                       
52340 Landscaping Services 15,410                        3,900                       3,900                           7,500                       7,500                                7,500                       
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 16,290                        43,006                     15,541                         25,000                     25,000                              25,000                     
52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 190,571                      97,712                     123,784                       75,000                     75,000                              75,000                     
52515 Maintenance-Software 87,126                        58,215                     63,619                         50,000                     50,000                              50,000                     
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles -                              27,986                     38,936                         2,000                       2,000                                2,000                       
52600 Rents and Leases - Equipment 7,453                          5,877                       6,399                           7,000                       7,000                                7,000                       
52705 Insurance - Premiums 43,556                        40,174                     56,701                         60,000                     60,000                              60,000                     
52800 Communications/Telephone 11,264                        11,615                     6,878                           15,000                     15,000                              15,000                     
52810 Advertising/Marketing 84,300                        55,815                     7,913                           40,000                     40,000                              40,000                     
52820 Printing & Binding 8,642                          18,374                     25,644                         15,000                     15,000                              15,000                     
52825 Bank Charges 785                             1,792                       428                              15,000                     15,000                              15,000                     
52830 Publications & Legal Notices 10,856                        31,209                     16,501                         8,000                       8,000                                8,000                       
52900 Training/Conference Expenses 41,011                        41,684                     4,599                           25,000                     25,000                              25,000                     
52905 Business Travel/Mileage 12,497                        11,586                     233                              15,000                     15,000                              15,000                     

53100 Office Supplies 38,943                        29,745                     98,465                         65,100                     25,000                              30,000                     

53110 Freight/Postage 4,952                          2,686                       3,888                           3,000                       3,000                                3,000                       

53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 11,475                        13,398                     10,826                         6,000                       6,000                                6,000                       

53120 Memberships/Certifications 37,899                        37,693                     70,722                         50,000                     70,000                              70,000                     
53205 Utilities - Electric 21,576                        27,814                     27,189                         25,000                     25,000                              30,000                     
53220 Utilities - Water 7,773                          9,101                       10,276                         12,000                     12,000                              12,000                     
53250 Fuel 753                             566                          102                              1,000                       1,000                                1,000                       

Interest Expense (Bank of Marin) -                           -                               -                           40,000                              50,000                     
52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 3,094,342              3,638,505            5,869,273               11,541,200          10,450,400                  9,561,000            

57900 Salary/Overhead Allocation -                              -                                    -                           
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses -                         -                      -                          -                      -                              -                      

5* Total Expenditures 5,010,463              5,599,999            $8,359,805 $14,632,200 $13,968,100 $13,211,500

LESS Depreciation 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,133,957     30,179        (535,907)        -              -                    -              

Financing Costs Details
Debt Service

Interest Expense (Bank of Marin LOC) 40,000                        50,000                 
Total Financing Costs 40,000                        50,000                 

Revenues

Expenses

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

51



Special Projects:  Professional Fees/ Consultant Details
Professional Fees/ Consulting FY2022-23 FY2023-24 Proposed Funding

Soscol Junction 3,000,000                  2,000,000                    Caltrans

SR29 Improvements/ Napa Forward 1,200,000                  5,000,000                    STP/OBAG

SR-29/ AmCan Improvements 1,000,000                  500,000                       MTC Passthrough Funds

SR29/SR 12/Airport Environmental 1,000,000                  -                               OBAG

Upstairs Office Partitioning/ Ground Floor Office Area 860,000                     -                               TDA

TFCA Budget *** 500,000                     500,000                       TFCA

Capital Projects - Project Management/Coordination (various tasks) 300,000                     -                               CMA Planning

Carneros Intersection Environmental/Engineering 300,000                     -                               TDA

Vision Zero Plan 300,000                     -                               OBAG

Senior Transportation Needs Assessment 200,000                     TDA

Safe Routes To Schools (NCOE/Caltrans) PASS THROUGH 140,000                     140,000                       STIP

SR 29  Rapid Transit Corridor Study 100,000                     -                               TDA

TCM Program/Center Design/Feasibility Study 100,000                     100,000                       TDA

Oxbow Bypass Design and Engineering 100,000                     -                               TDA

ADA Management Services (CARE Evaluators) 60,000                       60,000                         SR2S - OBAG 2/ATP

State Advocacy Services- Lobbying Services 52,000                       52,000                         TDA

Imola Corridor Preliminary Engineering and specific plans 50,000                       -                               OBAG

Center for Technology and Environment - ZEB Project Implementation 40,000                       -                               TDA

Website Enhancements/Upgrades 40,000                       10,000                         TDA

Federal Advocacy Program (Shared with County) 30,000                       30,000                         FTA

Bike Plan Updates and Revisions 25,000                       -                               TDA

Countywide Transportation Plan 25,000                       25,000                         ATP/CMA Planning

TIFIA Loan Financial Advisory Services 25,000                       -                               TDA

Travel Demand Model Operations and Maintenance (O&M) 25,000                       -                               CMA Planning

V Commute (rideshare services) 25,000                       25,000                         TDA

ZEB Rollout Plan 25,000                       TDA

Recruitment/Temp Agency 25,000                       20,000                         TDA

Active Transportation Program- (Bike maps, Outreach & Supplies) 20,000                       TDA

Caltrans Cost Allocation Plan 15,000                       -                               CMA Planning

Bike and Ped Counts 10,000                       -                               CMA

Agency Workplace Coaching/Consulting 5,000                         5,000                           TDA

Travel Behavior Study -                             200,000                       OBAG

TOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS- Professional Fees/Consulting 9,597,000$             8,667,000$              

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

52



Updated 2/4/2022

V1. V2. V3. F1. F2. F3. E2. E3.

TOTALS Vehicle Upgrades/ 
Enhancements

Rolling Stock
2 Proterra

4 bus 
Purchase,Calistoga 

Bus Purchase

Bus Maintenance 
Facility

Imola PNR 
Upgrades Vine Trail Electronic Signs Equipment 

Upgrades

8302002 8302001 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002
ZEB ZEB

Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured

Funding Source:
FTA 5307 4,000,000            -                    -                    -                    $4,000,000 -                    -                    
TIFIA 14,000,000          -                    -                    -                    $14,000,000 -                    -                    
FTA 288,000               -                    -                    288,000             -                          -                    -                    
FHWA 6,100,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    6,100,000          
TDA (LTF) 4,558,000            -                    200,000             172,000             3,386,000                400,000             -                    -                    400,000             

-                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
STATE: LCTOP -                      -                    -                    -                    -                          -                    -                    -                    -                    
STATE: HVIP -                      -                    -                    -                    -                          -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
MTC: Special Purpose 2,000,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    2,000,000          -                    
STATE: STA Lifeline -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
STATE: STA Reg. Para -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Other Funds/Unassigned/Prior 16,864,000          300,000             2,200,000          -                    5,614,000                600,000             7,900,000          $250,000
TOTAL FOR YEAR $47,810,000 $300,000 $2,400,000 $460,000 $27,000,000 $1,000,000 $16,000,000 $250,000 $400,000

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $47,810,000 $300,000 $2,400,000 $460,000 $27,000,000 $1,000,000 $16,000,000 $250,000 $400,000

Vine Trail (CMA Project) (16,000,000)        

Transit Capital Projects $31,810,000

FUNDING STATUS

CAPITAL INVESTMENTS FY 2023 & FY 2024

VEHICLES EQUIPMENT

PROJECT

DEPT

FACILITIES

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

53



Budget Inputs - Vine Transit Total Hours 125,130                125,130               125,130               
Cost per mile 0.61                            0.52                         0.54                            0.58                             0.82                            0.95                            

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$                            48.00$                         49.63$                             62.00$                              62.00$                             64.00$                             

FY19 FY20

Actuals Actuals  Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Total Service Hours 104,123                      98,112                     56,791                        100,118                       100,118                      100,118                      
Total Revenue Hours 83,350                        78,126                     46,751                        67,360                         71,701                        71,701                        
Total Service Miles 1,576,485                   1,646,311                950,313                      1,434,988                    1,484,959                   1,484,959                   
Total Revenue Miles 1,489,139                   1,488,963                865,159                      1,329,284                    1,377,256                   1,377,256                   
Total Passengers 957,403                      746,841                   289,580                      388,867                       453,784                      453,784                      

Service Costs 4,822,353                   4,779,986                4,893,896                   6,207,285                    6,207,285                   6,407,520                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 2,142,984                   2,420,568                3,040,440                   2,921,308                    3,064,093                   3,181,408                   
Total-  Contracted Services $6,965,337 $7,200,554 $7,934,336 $9,128,593 $9,271,378 $9,588,928

FY19 FY20
 Actuals  Actuals  Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 3,247,824                   5,010,994                435,001                  4,051,700                4,199,900               5,390,370               
State Transit Assistance 1,385,050                   1,685,685                702,172                  1,185,500                1,900,000               2,000,000               
Federal Funds-  FTA 2,835,876                   3,786,782                4,381,443               4,126,000                4,500,000               3,600,000               
Other-Governmental Agencies (RM2) 446,400                      389,019                   444,538                  300,600                   300,600                  300,600                  
Interest 26,681                        30,479                     49,910                    44,100                     44,100                    44,100                    
Farebox 963,222                      676,191                   351,866                  566,700                   600,000                  700,000                  
Miscellaneous 3,685                          36,737                     -                              -                           -                          -                          
Intrafund Transfers-In -                             -                           -                              -                           -                          -                          

Total Revenues $8,908,738 $11,615,887 $6,364,930 $10,274,600 $11,544,600 $12,035,070

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 808                             1,290                       2,290                      10,000                     -                          -                          
Information Technology Service 21,300                        26,573                     27,474                    10,000                     -                          -                          
Consulting Services (City of Napa Law Enforcement) -                             147                          -                           25,000                    25,000                    
Waste Disposal Services -                             -                           9,458                      -                           25,000                    25,000                    
Security Services 14,873                        44,008                     11,705                    15,000                     15,000                    15,000                    
Landscaping Services -                             -                           5,975                      -                           -                          -                          
Purchased Transportation 4,782,162                   5,027,423                6,078,808               8,778,500                9,271,400               9,538,870               
Maintenance-Equipment -                             -                           43,081                    -                           75,000                    75,000                    
Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 881                             -                           7,882                      -                           75,000                    75,000                    
Maintenance-Software 51,500                        61,457                     76,315                    -                           90,000                    90,000                    
Maintenance-Vehicles 20,167                        37,677                     59,481                    -                           -                          -                          
Insurance - Premiums 274,334                      301,637                   237,485                  300,000                   300,000                  310,000                  
Communications/Telephone -                             866                          10,739                    -                           -                          -                          
Advertising/Marketing 60,800                        83,995                     61,307                    65,000                     65,000                    65,000                    
Printing & Binding 53,523                        62,704                     12,057                    8,000                       8,000                      8,000                      
Bank Charges 15,052                        2,034                       3,725                      2,000                       2,000                      2,000                      
Publications & Legal Notices 444                             650                          737                         5,000                       5,000                      5,000                      
Office Supplies -                             2,585                       618                         -                           -                          -                          
Freight/Postage 2,121                          -                           -                          -                           -                          -                          
Utilities - Electric -                             -                           3,901                      -                           -                          -                          
Utilities - Water -                             -                           7,528                      -                           -                          -                          
Fuel 956,971                  859,507               709,180                  836,100                   1,223,200               1,416,200               
Interest Expense (TIFIA/Bank of Marin) -                       -                          20,000                     140,000                  160,000                  
Depreciation Expense 2,486,789                   2,505,806                2,441,553                   2,700,000                    2,700,000                   3,200,000                   

Total for: Services and Supplies 8,741,725               9,018,359            9,811,299               12,749,600              14,019,600             15,010,070             

Salary/Overhead Allocation 252,930                      200,974                   252,226                      225,000                       225,000                      225,000                      
Total for: Other Expenses 252,930                  200,974               252,226                  225,000                   225,000                  225,000                  

Total Expenses 8,994,655               9,219,333            10,063,525             12,974,600              14,244,600             15,235,070             

LESS Depreciation 2,486,789               2,505,806            2,441,553               2,700,000                2,700,000               3,200,000               

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,400,872     4,902,360   (1,257,042)    0                    -                -                

FINANCING COSTS DETAILS
Debt Service -                           100,000                  120,000                  

Other Costs (Bank of Marin Interest Exp) -                           40,000                    40,000                    
Total Financing Costs -                           140,000                  160,000                  

FY2020-21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenues

Public Transit Service Projections

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

54



Budget Inputs - Vine Go
Cost per mile 0.61                            0.52                         0.54                          0.58                         0.82                         0.95                         

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$                            48.00$                         49.63$                          53.00$                         55.00$                         58.00$                         

FY19 FY20
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals  Actuals  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 
Service Hours 15,171                        12,085                     4,843                        10,000                     10,000                     10,000                     
Revenue Hours 11,961                        9,160                       3,043                        6,283                       6,283                       6,283                       
Service Miles 171,999                      135,084                   56,314                      116,279                   116,279                   116,279                   
Revenue Miles 134,219                      105,032                   40,053                      82,703                     82,703                     82,703                     
Ridership 24,659                        19,030                     3,316                        6,847                       6,847                       6,847                       

51.34                       
Service Costs                       711,616                    712,504 191,803                    530,000                   550,000                   580,000                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 302,808                      121,848                   197,236                    277,869                   306,050                   317,767                   
Total-  Contracted Services $1,014,424 $834,352 $389,039 $807,869 $856,050 $897,767

51.34                       
FY19 FY20

 Actuals  Actuals  Actuals  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 

Transportation Development Act 524,017                      715,332                   978,972                    1,061,584                589,800                   405,700                   
State Transit Assistance 70,350                        268,580                   100,000                    75,000                     100,000                   300,000                   
Federal Funds-  FTA 65,824                        70,704                     89,968                      75,000                     421,700                   461,000                   
Interest 2,236                          (4,231)                      (60)                           1,000                       100                          100                          
Farebox 71,526                        64,576                     14,858                      3,316                       4,700                       6,500                       
Intrafund Transfers-In 11,027                        4,622                       -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Revenues $744,980 $1,119,583 $1,183,738 $1,215,900 $1,116,300 $1,173,300

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 221                             (590)                         120                           2,500                       2,500                       2,500                       
Information Technology Service 3,000                          3,624                       3,746                        -                           2,500                       2,500                       
Legal Services -                              -                           -                           1,000                       -                           -                           
Purchased Transportation 1,132,290                   958,119                   454,280                    762,900                   801,000                   842,800                   
Maintenance-Equipment -                              -                           -                           -                           -                           
Maintenance-Vehicles -                              -                           6,149                        15,000                     25,000                     25,000                     
Insurance - Premiums 39,971                        34,178                     44,124                      45,000                     55,000                     55,000                     
Advertising/Marketing 1,747                          -                           -                           2,500                       5,000                       5,000                       
Printing & Binding 1,709                          926                          -                           2,000                       -                           -                           
Fuel 171,336                      148,626                   77,204                      85,000                     95,300                     110,500                   
Depreciation Expense 134,382                      91,783                     93,394                      290,000                   120,000                   120,000                   

Total for: Services and Supplies 1,484,656               1,236,666            679,017                1,205,900            1,106,300            1,163,300            

Salary/Overhead Allocation 15,741                        18,091                     17,859                      10,000                     10,000                     10,000                     
Total for: Other Expenses 15,741                    18,091                 17,859                  10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

Total Expenses 1,500,397               1,254,757            696,876                1,215,900            1,116,300            1,173,300            

LESS Depreciation 134,382                  91,783                 93,394                  290,000               -                       -                       

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (755,417)       (135,174)     486,862       -              -              -              

FY 2023-24

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenues

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

55



Budget Inputs - American Canyon
Cost per mile 0.61$                              0.52$                           0.54$                           0.58$                           0.82$                           0.95$                           

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$                            48.00$                         49.63$                         53.00$                         55.00$                         58.00$                         

FY19 FY20
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals  Actuals  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 
Service Hours 3,735                          3,898                       2,535                       5,200                       5,200                       5,200                       
Revenue Hours 3,452                          3,404                       2,321                       4,761.03                  4,761                       4,761                       
Service Miles 38,428                        34,970                     21,356                     43,807                     43,807                     43,807                     
Revenue Miles 26,180                        22,871                     15,827                     32,466                     32,466                     32,466                     
Ridership 22,362                        20,385                     6,730                       13,805                     13,805                     13,805                     

Service Costs                       216,503                    203,106 160,013                   275,600                   286,000                   301,600                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 95,436                        98,136                     103,200                   144,492                   159,146                   165,239                   
Total-  Contracted Services $311,939 $301,242 $263,213 $420,092 $445,146 $466,839

FY19 FY20
 Actuals  Actuals  Actuals  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 

Transportation Development Act 174,005                      224,137                   562,435                   161,000                   376,300                   323,000                   
State Transit Assistance 70,000                        -                           -                           150,000                   80,000                     80,000                     
Federal Funds-  FTA -                              -                           -                           100,000                   100,000                   100,000                   
Interest 2,111                          2,563                       5,945                       1,500                       1,500                       1,500                       
Farebox 16,573                        12,343                     -                           5,500                       8,300                       8,300                       
Charges for Services-Amcan 36,169                        45,054                     28,600                     67,300                     -                           80,700                     
Intrafund Transfers-In 2,582                          1,461                       -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total Revenues 301,440                  285,558               596,980               485,300               566,100               593,500               

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 19                               40                            -                           -                           400                          400                          
Information Technology Service 800                             1,208                       -                           -                           1,500                       1,500                       
Purchased Transportation 278,707                      310,583                   240,484                   408,100                   420,100                   441,800                   
Maintenance-Equipment 12,627                        12,808                     11,598                     10,000                     10,000                     10,000                     
Maintenance-Software -                              -                           1,715                       -                           18,000                     18,000                     
Insurance - Premiums 9,840                          11,023                     23,096                     12,000                     25,000                     25,000                     
Communications/Telephone 912                             912                          -                           1,000                       1,000                       1,000                       
Printing & Binding -                              124                          -                           200                          200                          200                          
Fuel 23,075                        19,509                     2,645                       25,000                     35,900                     41,600                     
Interest Expense (TIFIA/Bank of Marin) -                           -                           -                           -                           
Depreciation Expense 21,774                        21,774                     24,817                     25,000                     50,000                     50,000                     

Total for: Services and Supplies 347,754                  377,981               304,355               481,300               562,100               589,500               

Salary/Overhead Allocation 3,664                          4,981                       11,124                     4,000                       4,000                       4,000                       
Total for: Other Expenses 3,664                      4,981                   11,124                 4,000                   4,000                   4,000                   

Total Expenses 351,418                  382,962               315,479               485,300               566,100               593,500               

LESS Depreciation 21,774                    21,774                 24,817                 25,000                 -                       -                       

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (49,978)         (97,404)       281,501      -              -              -              

FY 2023-24

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenues

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

56



Budget Inputs - Yountville
 Cost per mile 0.61                                0.52                             0.54                             0.58                             0.82                            0.95                             
 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$                            48.00$                         49.63$                         53.00$                         55.00$                        58.00$                         

FY19 FY20
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals  Actuals  BUDGET  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 4,661                          4,283                       3,332                       3,300                       4,700                      4,700                       
Revenue Hours 4,398                          4,113                       3,271                       3,240                       4,614                      4,614                       
Service Miles 27,684                        20,547                     13,936                     13,802                     19,658                    19,658                     
Revenue Miles 25,428                        18,394                     10,136                     10,039                     14,297                    14,297                     
Ridership 16,370                        11,638                     4,039                       4,000                       5,697                      5,697                       

Service Costs                       216,503                    203,106 160,013                   174,900                   258,500                  272,600                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 95,436                        98,136                     103,200                   91,697                     143,843                  149,351                   
Total-  Contracted Services $311,939 $301,242 $263,213 $266,597 $402,343 $421,951

FY19 FY20
 Actuals  Actuals  Actuals  BUDGET  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 174,005                      246,801                   299,676                   147,800                   299,500                  321,700                   
State Transit Assistance 71,000                        -                           75,000                     75,000                     75,000                    75,000                     
Federal Funds-  FTA 66,306                        66,800                     105,551                   75,000                     75,000                    75,000                     
Interest 391                             1,008                       231                          1,000                       1,000                      1,000                       
Charges for Service-Yountville 41,303                        39,870                     38,971                     33,200                     61,200                    63,700                     
Intrafund Transfers-In 2,985                          1,578                       -                           -                           -                         -                           

Total Revenues $355,990 $356,057 $519,429 $332,000 $511,700 $536,400

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 125                             110                          136                          400                          400                         400                          
Information Technology Service 1,000                          1,208                       1,249                       -                           1,500                      1,500                       
Purchased Transportation 350,664                      340,570                   305,033                   266,600                   402,300                  422,000                   
Maintenance-Equipment 12,627                        12,808                     13,621                     15,000                     15,000                    15,000                     
Maintenance-Software -                              -                           -                           -                           18,000                    18,000                     
Maintenance-Vehicles -                              -                           -                           5,000                       5,000                      5,000                       
Insurance - Premiums 12,281                        12,115                     30,357                     -                           35,000                    35,000                     
Communications/Telephone 912                             912                          -                           -                           -                         -                           
Advertising/Marketing -                              53                            500                          4,000                       500                         500                          
Printing & Binding -                              124                          -                           -                           -                         -                           
Fuel 8,402                          9,295                       10,617                     20,000                     30,000                    35,000                     
Depreciation Expense 16,445                        16,445                     16,445                     17,000                     100,000                  100,000                   

Total for: Services and Supplies 402,456                  393,640               377,958               328,000               607,700              632,400               

Salary/Overhead Allocation 4,031                          5,409                       11,751                     4,000                       4,000                      4,000                       
Total for: Other Expenses 4,031                      5,409                   11,751                 4,000                   4,000                  4,000                   

Total Expenditures 406,487                  399,049               389,709               332,000               611,700              636,400               

LESS Depreciation 16,445                    16,445                 16,445                 17,000                 100,000              100,000               

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (50,497)         (42,992)       129,720      -              -             -              

FY 2023-24

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenues

FY2020-21 FY22 FY 2022-23

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

57



Budget Inputs - St. Helena
 Cost per mile 0.61                                0.52                             0.54                             0.58                             0.82                             0.95                             
 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$                            48.00$                         49.63$                         53.00$                         55.00$                         58.00$                         

FY19 FY20
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals  Actual  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 
Service Hours 4,606                          4,214                       3,095                       3,200                       4,300                       4,300                       
Revenue Hours 3,926                          3,691                       2,970                       3,071                       4,126                       4,126                       
Service Miles 32,313                        27,817                     3,369                       3,483                       4,681                       4,681                       
Revenue Miles 22,363                        15,300                     11,322                     11,706                     15,730                     15,730                     
Ridership 17,233                        11,031                     3,989                       4,124                       5,542                       5,542                       

Service Costs                       213,414                    199,390 143,203                   169,600                   236,500                   249,400                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 94,860                        96,816                     97,404                     88,918                     131,601                   136,640                   
Total-  Contracted Services $308,274 $296,206 $240,607 $258,518 $368,101 $386,040

FY19 FY20
 Actuals  Actuals  Actual  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 

Transportation Development Act 178,238                      246,136                   202,301                   131,200                   212,500                   228,600                   
State Transit Assistance 70,000                        -                           75,000                     75,000                     75,000                     75,000                     
Federal Funds-  FTA 66,307                        64,000                     184,500                   121,900                   121,900                   121,900                   
Interest (36)                              1,303                       672                          800                          800                          800                          
Farebox 5,567                          4,469                       2,534                       2,500                       2,500                       2,500                       
Charges for Services-St Helena 34,293                        32,262                     34,883                     -                           65,300                     67,100                     
Intrafund Transfers-In 2,926                          1,534                       -                           2,500                       -                           -                           

Total Revenues $357,295 $349,704 $499,890 $333,900 $478,000 $495,900

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services -                              -                           -                           400                          400                          400                          
Information Technology Service 900                             1,208                       1,249                       -                           1,500                       1,500                       
Purchased Transportation 343,949                      317,421                   283,820                   258,500                   368,100                   386,000                   
Maintenance-Equipment 12,627                        12,808                     13,621                     5,000                       15,000                     15,000                     
Maintenance-Software -                              -                           -                           18,000                     18,000                     
Maintenance-Vehicles -                              -                           5,000                       5,000                       5,000                       
Insurance - Premiums 12,136                        11,917                     28,198                     12,000                     32,000                     32,000                     
Communications/Telephone 912                             912                          456                          -                           -                           -                           
Advertising/Marketing -                              -                           -                           3,000                       3,000                       3,000                       
Printing & Binding -                              124                          -                           1,000                       1,000                       1,000                       
Fuel 15,287                        17,946                     10,518                     30,000                     30,000                     30,000                     
Depreciation Expense 8,430                          -                           -                           15,000                     100,000                   100,000                   

Total for: Services and Supplies 394,241                  362,336               337,862               329,900               574,000               591,900               

Salary/Overhead Allocation 4,121                          5,274                       10,970                     4,000                       4,000                       4,000                       
Total for: Other Expenses 4,121                      5,274                   10,970                 4,000                   4,000                   4,000                   

Total Expenditures 398,362                  367,610               348,832               333,900               578,000               595,900               

LESS Depreciation 8,430                      -                       -                       15,000                 100,000               100,000               

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (41,067)         (17,906)       151,058      -              -              -              

FY 2023-24

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenues

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

58



Budget Inputs - Calistoga
 Cost per mile 0.61                                0.52                             0.54                             0.58                             0.82                             0.95                             
 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  46.36$                            48.00$                         49.63$                         53.00$                         55.00$                         58.00$                         

FY19 FY20
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actual  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 
Service Hours 5,821                          5,388                       4,060                       5,400                       5,400                       5,400                       
Revenue Hours 5,245                          4,828                       3,575                       4,755                       4,755                       4,755                       
Service Miles 47,696                        37,732                     33,730                     44,863                     44,863                     44,863                     
Revenue Miles 42,163                        35,349                     18,893                     25,129                     25,129                     25,129                     
Ridership 23,077                        18,901                     7,832                       10,417                     10,417                     18,901                     

Service Costs 247,181                      253,575                   201,498                   286,200                   297,000                   313,200                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 142,188                      125,016                   170,909                   180,716                   130,827                   130,827                   
Total-  Contracted Services $389,369 $378,591 $372,407 $466,916 $427,827 $444,027

FY19 FY20
 Actuals  Actuals  Actual  BUDGET  BUDGET  BUDGET 

Transportation Development Act 194,052                      271,238                   291,583                   341,300                   287,500                   308,700                   
State Transit Assistance 71,009                        110,000                   102,000                   75,000                     80,000                     80,000                     
Federal Funds-  FTA 81,800                        103,044                   177,053                   80,000                     80,000                     80,000                     
Interest (926)                            91                            266                          1,000                       1,000                       1,000                       
Farebox 13,159                        10,143                     5,716                       -                           3,500                       3,500                       
Charges for Services-Calistoga 65,000                        60,000                     38,125                     55,000                     65,000                     65,000                     

Total Revenues $424,094 $554,516 $614,743 $552,300 $517,000 $538,200

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services -                              20                            50                            400                          400                          400                          
Information Technology Service 1,200                          1,208                       1,248                       1,000                       1,500                       1,500                       
Purchased Transportation 432,811                      438,451                   363,576                   466,900                   427,800                   444,000                   
Maintenance-Equipment 12,845                        12,808                     13,621                     5,000                       5,000                       5,000                       
Maintenance-Software -                              -                           -                           18,000                     18,000                     
Maintenance-Vehicles -                              -                           -                           10,000                     10,000                     10,000                     
Insurance - Premiums 15,337                        15,240                     36,999                     15,000                     15,000                     15,000                     
Communications/Telephone 912                             912                          456                          -                           300                          300                          
Printing & Binding 2,175                          517                          6,749                       5,000                       5,000                       5,000                       
Fuel 25,801                        23,602                     14,223                     30,000                     30,000                     35,000                     
Depreciation Expense 8,430                          -                           -                           15,000                     -                           -                           

Total for: Services and Supplies 499,511                  492,758               436,922               548,300               513,000               534,200               

Salary/Overhead Allocation 5,180                          6,600                       14,210                     4,000                       4,000                       4,000                       
Total for: Other Expenses 5,180                      6,600                    14,210                  4,000                    4,000                    4,000                    

Total Expenditures 504,691                  499,358               451,132               552,300               517,000               538,200               

LESS Depreciation 8,430                      -                       -                       15,000                  -                       -                       

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (80,597)         55,158        163,611      -              -              -              

FY 2023-24

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenues

FY21 FY22 FY 2022-23

ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

MAY 18, 2022

59



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Delegated Authority to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Policy Manual 
Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve refinements to the 
delegated signature authority dollar amount increase(s) to NVTA Policy Manual Chapter 
5: Contracting & Procurement Policy. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

At the March 16, 2022 Board of Directors meeting, the Executive Director was granted 
newly delegated procurement authority amounts.  After an enhanced legal review, it has 
come to staff’s attention that some of those delegated authority amounts are in conflict 
with state regulations and the code governing joint powers agencies. The amended 
procurement policy corrects those errors. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

60



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director - Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Delegated Authority to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA)      
Policy Manual Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve refinements to the 
delegated signature authority dollar amount increase(s) to NVTA Policy Manual Chapter 
5: Contracting & Procurement Policy. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the March 16, 2022 Board of Directors meeting, the Executive Director was granted 
newly delegated procurement authority amounts.  After an enhanced legal review, it has 
come to staff’s attention that some of the delegated authority amounts are in conflict with 
state regulations and the code governing joint powers agency.  Specifically, the 
government code stipulates that the executive director’s delegated authority shall be 
adjusted based on the consumer price index (CPI) established by the department of 
industrial relations.   
 
The table below reflects the refinements made to the Policy to be compliant with 
Government Code.   
 
  

61

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.3 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Procurement Method Construction? Contract 
Threshold 
(Approved) 

Regulatory 
Amount 

Approval 
Level 

Micro Purchase No Up to $10,000 No Change ED or 
designee 

Small Purchase No Up to $100,000, 
non-cumulative 

Up to $66,141 
for 2022, 
automatic annual 
increases based 
on CPI from the 
Department of 
Industrial 
Relations 

ED or 
designee 

Contract/RFP/IFB No Up to $100,000 Up to $66,141, 
automatic annual 
increases based 
on CPI from the 
Department of 
Industrial 
Relations 

ED or 
designee 

Contract/RFP/IFB No Greater than 
$100,000 

Greater than 
$66,141 or the 
current amount 

Board of 
Directors 

CUPCCAA 
Informal Bid 
Statutory Limit 

Yes Up to $212,500 Up to $212,500 
in 2022 with 
automatic annual 
increases 
determined by 
the State of CA 

ED or 
designee 

CUPCCAA 
Informal Bid 
Statutory Limit 

Yes Greater than 
$212,500 

Greater than 
$212,500 or 
current amount 

Board of 
Directors 

Change Orders Yes Up to $100,000 
for non-
construction 
phases; 
$250,000 for 
construction 
phase 

Change Order 
approval 
authority granted 
at the time of 
contract 
approval.   

ED or 
designee 

 
Executive Directors Delegated Authority for Non-Construction Projects 
Government Code section 25502.3 provides the rationale for the delegated authority 
amount in counties with populations of less than 200,000.  By default, the annual 
aggregate amount does not exceed $49,999, except that this amount shall be adjusted 
annually by any annual increase in the California Consumer Price Index as determined 
pursuant to Section 2212 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.  Using 2010 as the 

62



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.3 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
benchmark year when the original authority amount was granted and annual increase(s) 
thereafter since 2010, the 2022 delegated amount is $66,141.  This amount will be 
automatically adjusted annual based on the CPI from the Department of Industrial 
Relations. 
 
Executive Directors Delegated Authority for Change Orders on Construction Projects 
Due to the large number of construction projects in NVTA’s capital investment portfolio 
over the next few years, staff requested the Board provide the Executive Director 
enhanced change order authority for construction contracts to keep the projects moving 
efficiently.  Since Board meetings occur monthly, it was staff’s intent to have projects 
progress seamlessly without the need for additional Board approvals for small change 
order amounts that could delay a projects progress.  However, government code 
stipulates that change order authority is granted only at the time of the contracts approval, 
rendering the recent policy change invalid.  As such, the revised policy corrects this error.  
Any additional change order authority will be presented to the Board for formal approval 
at a future meeting. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The agency could keep the current policies intact.  However, the current policy conflicts 
with state regulations and government code. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. Delegating of financial authority fosters the 
efficient use of resources, thereby increasing the responsiveness of the agency to 
contract with other organizations quickly, especially on time sensitive matters. Managing 
expenditures is central to achieve the objectives of the agency and ensure projects stay 
on track.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
(1) Chapter 5: Contract and Procurement Policy (clean version) 
(2) Chapter 5: Contract and Procurement Policy (redlined version) 

 

63



Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 
 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA or the “Authority”) will maintain 
sound contracting and procurement practices in accordance with all federal, state 
and local laws and direct its financial resources towards meeting NVTA’s long-term 
goals. 

 
NVTA will cultivate and further develop programs to ensure its long-term ability 
necessary to provide the level and quality of service required by the public. 

 
 

Board of Directors Approval Date: July 15, 2020 
 
 

Amendment Approval Date: March 16May 18, 2022 

CHAPTER 5: CONTRACTING AND PROCUREMENT 

POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

64



ii 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

CHAPTER 1 PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION .......................................................... 1 

A. STEP-BY-STEP GUIDE ............................................................................................................................ 2 

B. METHODS OF PROCUREMENT AND DELEGATION ............................................................................. 3 

1. Goods and Services ............................................................................................. 3 

2. Professional and Architectural/Engineering Services (A/E) .................................. 4 

CHAPTER 3 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RESPONSIBILITIES ........................... 4 

C. PROCUREMENT POLICIES ...................................................................................................................... 5 

1. Procurement Responsibility .................................................................................. 5 

2. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies ......................................... 7 

3. Maintenance & Oversight of Sub-Grantees .......................................................... 9 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT OF SUB-GRANTEES 9 

4. Purchasing Policies ............................................................................................. 10 

5. Bonding Requirements for Construction Contracts Exceeding One Hundred Fifty 
Thousand ($150,000) ................................................................................................. 14 

6. Public Records Act .............................................................................................. 16 

D. PROCEDURES .........................................................................................................................................16 

1. Independent Cost Estimate ................................................................................. 16 

2. Excluded Parties List ........................................................................................... 16 

3. Business References ........................................................................................... 17 

4. Reasonableness of Price – Price Analysis or Cost Analysis ................................ 18 

5. Best Value ........................................................................................................... 20 

6. Tag-ons ............................................................................................................... 20 

7. Piggybacking ....................................................................................................... 20 

9. Use of Brand Name ............................................................................................. 21 

10. Options ............................................................................................................ 21 

65



iii 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

11. Advance Payments .......................................................................................... 22 

12. Progress Payments .......................................................................................... 22 

13. Procurement by Micro-Purchases .................................................................... 22 

14. Small Purchases .............................................................................................. 23 

15. Construction and Major Capital Purchases exceeding $4,000 ......................... 23 

E. COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT PROCESS .........................................................................................23 

1. Invitation for Bids (IFB) ........................................................................................ 25 

2. Recording of Bids ................................................................................................ 25 

3. Tabulation of Bids ................................................................................................ 25 

4. Analysis of Limited Bid Response ....................................................................... 25 

5. Determination of Responsiveness ....................................................................... 26 

6. Responsible Bidder Evaluation ............................................................................ 26 

7. Rejection of Individual Bids .................................................................................. 27 

8. Consultant Selection ............................................................................................ 27 

9. Develop Final Ranking and Notify Consultants of Results ................................... 29 

10. Adoption of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Local 
Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 10: Consultant Selection ............... 29 

11. Award of the Contract ...................................................................................... 29 

12. Project Completion ........................................................................................... 29 

13. Request for Qualifications (RFQ) / Request for Proposals (RFP) .................... 30 

14. Architectural / Engineering Services Request for Qualifications ....................... 33 

15. Sole Source Procurements .............................................................................. 34 

16. Emergency Procurements ................................................................................ 35 

17. Vendor Protest Procedures .............................................................................. 35 

F. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION GUIDELINES .......................................................................................37 

66



iv 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

G. FEDERAL PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS AND STATE LAW .......................................................38 

APPENDIX LIST ............................................................................................................ 40 

A. FTA REQUIRED MODEL CLAUSES .....................................................................................................40 

B. DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS ..............................................................................40 

C. PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST .......................................................................................................40 

D. PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST ...............................................................................40 

APPENDIX A: FTA & FHWA REQUIRED CLAUSES .................................................. 41 

APPENDIX B: DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS ........................... 42 

APPENDIX C:  PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST .................................................... 43 

APPENDIX D: PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST ............................ 44 

APPENDIX E: CHAPTER 10 OF CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION 
LOCAL ASSISTANCE PLANNING MANUAL ............................................................... 46 

67



Page 1 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

CHAPTER 1 PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION 
 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) has major responsibilities, which 
include the operation of a public transportation system and the planning, design and 
programming of transportation projects. All contracts are awarded by NVTA’s 
procurement officer, which is responsible for identifying the needs of NVTA and 
originating the procurement package for supplying those needs. NVTA receives transit 
funding from the federal government and the State of California, as well as other regional 
and local agencies and local contributions. NVTA will follow standard public agency 
contract law as set forth in California Government and Public Contract Codes for 
procurements that are funded with state or local revenues and do not have any federal 
funding. NVTA is further committed to meeting all requirements in FTA Circular 4220.1(F) 
and its successors for procurements that involve federal funds. These procurement 
policies and procedures are consistent with federal regulations and the laws of the State 
of California. These procedures also apply to any revenue contract whose primary 
purpose is to either generate revenues in connection with a transit-related activity, or to 
create business opportunities utilizing a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funded 
asset or other federally funded assets. 

 
The purpose of these policies and procedures is to set forth the procurement methods 
and establish standards for obtaining goods and services, including construction, 
professional, and architectural/engineering (A/E) services necessary for the operation of 
NVTA's transportation and planning services. These procedures include guidelines for 
the solicitation, award and administration of formally advertised contracts, as well as the 
consultant selection, negotiation, award and administration of competitively negotiated 
and A/E contracts. 

 
The procurement procedures are designed to: 

 
• Instill public confidence in the transit procurement process of NVTA; 
• Ensure fair and equitable treatment of all vendors who seek to do business with 

NVTA; 
• Ensure maximum open and free competition in the expenditure of public funds; 

and 
• Provide the safeguards to maintain a procurement system of quality and 

integrity. 
 

Methods to implement the foregoing are described in the remainder of this document and 
the attachments hereto. 

68

https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance


Page 2 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

CHAPTER 2 GENERAL PROCUREMENT POLICY STANDARDS 
 

A. Step-by-Step Guide 

Step 1: The Project Manager (PM) must determine the following: 
 

1. Project scope; 
 

2. Expected cost of the procurement; 
 

3. Funding source(s) and whether the procurement is already 
budgeted; and 

 
4. Whether the procurement will be informal or formal. 

 
Step 2: For procurement type, PM should refer to the policies described herein. 

Any questions regarding the procurement process should be 
immediately discussed with the Executive Director (ED)/general 
counsel to ensure that the policies are being followed and adhered 
to. 

 
Step 3: The Administrative Technician (AT) is responsible for the administration 

of the procurement, which includes attaching the proper boiler plate 
agreements and clauses and obtaining the required review and 
approval(s), before initiating the procurement process. 

 
Step 4: Over a certain threshold, approval of the procurement by the Board. 

 
Step 5: Upon completion of the procurement process, execution of the contract 

prior to a notice to proceed, or initiation of work. 

69



Page 3 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

B. Delegated Authority and Method of Procurement 
 

The proper delegated authority for execution of binding contracts, grants, and memoranda of 
understanding with external entities is mandatory to minimize financial, legal, operational, 
compliance-related risks for the benefit of the Agency. 
 
Given the extensive variety of contracts required in the course of Agency business, determination 
of appropriate signature authority and related requirements can be complex. All staff should be 
aware that the authority to execute binding contracts depends on the nature and complexity of 
the agreement, appropriate consultation with legal and management that might be affected by the 
agreement, and appropriate signature authority. 
 
 
 Only certain designated officers may sign agreements and other documents on behalf of NVTA. 
These individuals are: 

• The Executive Director 
• A Director (or equivalent) 
• Senior Management (or equivalent) 
• Project Manager’s (in certain cases)  

 
1. Goods and Services 

 
Definition: Procurements of services, supplies, or other property, with the 
exception of professional and A/E services or labor and/or materials for 
public works/construction projects. 

 
 

Contract Threshold 
Method of 

Procurement 
Required 

Approval Level 
 

Notes 
Less than $10,000 
(FTA)  

 
Micro Purchase Management / 

Project 
Managers 

With 
authorization 
from supervisor 

 
Up to $66,141 for 2022, 

automatic annual 
increases based on CPI 
from the Department of 
Industrial RelationsNon-

cumulative, up to 
$100,001 

Small Purchase / 
RFP / IFB 

Executive 
Director/Senior 
Mgmt 

With signed 
authorization 
form 

 
Greater than $66,141 or 

the current 
amountGreater than 

$100,001 

Various Board of 
Directors 

 

Less than or equal to 
$100,000$66,141 or 

 
Sole Source 

Executive 
Director or 
designee 

With signed 
authorization  

70



Page 4 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

the current amount 

 
CUPCCAA Informal 

Bid Limit 
Up to $212,500 in 2022 
with automatic annual 

increases determined by 
the State of 

CA($212,500 for 2021) 

 
Construction 

Executive 
Director or 
designee 

Including 
UPCCAA*; 

single vendor 

Greater than UPCCAA 
Informal Bid Statutory 

Limit 

Construction Board of 
Directors 

 

Change Order approval 
authority granted at the 

time of contract 
approval.Up to 

$100,000 for non-
construction phases; 

$250,000 for 
construction phase 

Change Orders Executive 
Director 
or 
designee 

 

 
*California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA). 

 
Modifications to contracts or purchase orders which represent no change in 
the scope of the character of material or services provided in the original 
contract or purchase order may be approved by the ED or PM if the 
cumulative dollar value of the modification and the original contract amount 
are within the ED award authority. 

 
NVTA may acquire products and/or services valued at $10,000 or less 
without obtaining competitive quotations. These purchases are exempt from 
FTA’s Buy America requirements Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, however, will apply to construction contracts exceeding FTA 
thresholds, even though the recipient uses micro-purchase procurement 
procedures. 

 
2. Professional and Architectural/Engineering Services (A/E) 

Professional services means services such as, but not limited to, the 
services of attorneys, physicians, architects, engineers, and other 
consultants or individuals or organizations possessing a high degree of 
technical skill. 

 
A/E means program management, construction management, feasibility 
studies, preliminary engineering, design, architectural, engineering, 

71



Page 5 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

surveying, mapping, or related services. A/E services require the use of an 
A/E method of procurement. 

72



Page 6 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

 
CHAPTER 3 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The Fiscal Officer or designee has primary responsibility for ensuring that the 
procurement process is in accordance with legal requirements and NVTA policy, as 
interpreted by Legal Counsel. The Executive Director or designee will be responsible, in 
accordance with the best administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the 
settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These 
issues include, but are not limited to, non-competitive/sole source evaluations, protests, 
disputes, and claims. All protests shall be processed in accordance with NVTA’s protest 
procedures. 

 
The Fiscal Officer Fiscal Officer is responsible for establishing material management 
policies and issuing instructions concerning the storage, distribution, and disposal of 
surplus property. 

 
All staff are instructed to follow the Contracting and Procurement Policy, Procedures, and 
Practices Manual, as well as instructions issued by the Fiscal Officer regarding the 
storage, distribution, and issuance of material. 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall execute contracts, purchase orders, 
modifications, and supplemental agreements in accordance with established thresholds. 

 
Implementation 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall implement the policies herein set forth. This 
manual serves to complement applicable higher authority (e.g., federal, state, and local 
government) procurement regulations and serves to provide staff with a primary frame of 
reference for all matters pertaining to NVTA’s procurement and contracting activities. To 
the extent possible, this manual establishes NVTA’s procurement processes, which cover 
the procurement of, accounting for, and disposal of surplus property (materials, 
equipment, buses, etc.). On items not covered herein or in the NVTA Procurement Policy 
and Procedures Manual, staff will consult with the Fiscal Officer and Administration for 
guidance. It also provides policy guidance on the procurement and contract administration 
of professional and other services. 

73



Page 7 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

This manual further provides general guidelines in the conduct of procurements that 
require compliance with federal and/or state contracting standards. Such procurements 
are those that are funded by federal or state funds. 

 
C. Procurement Policies 

The Board of Directors (Board) is responsible for governing the operation of the 
agency including all procurement policies that serve as a basis upon which 
procurement procedures can be developed. 

 
1. Procurement Responsibility 

a. Contracts Administrator (CA) or equivalent 
 

The CA is responsible for maintaining all official contract files. 
The CA will be responsible for managing procurements and coordinating 
with the PM to ensure procurement files meet local, state, and federal 
requirements. 
The CA is responsible for updating these procurement procedures on an 
as-needed basis. 

i. The CA shall ensure that a clear and accurate specification / scope 
of work is developed for each procurement. 

 
ii. The CA shall not recommend that NVTA enter into a contract unless 

the CA has ensured that all applicable requirements of federal law, 
federal regulations and circulars, California law, and all other 
applicable procedures have been met. 

 
iii. The CA shall ensure that contractors receive impartial, fair, and 

equitable treatment in accordance with the policies specified in this 
manual. 

 
iv. The CA is also responsible for such tasks as writing, preparing and 

assembling contract documents; obtaining necessary pre-solicitation 
approvals; advertising RFP's and IFB's, issuing amendments, 
obtaining post-bid opening approvals for award, conducting 
investigations of proposed Contractor's past performance, conducting 
consultant selection meetings for negotiated contracts and conducting 
negotiations, consulting with Project Managers to monitor Contractor's 
performance, and managing termination for default or convenience 
procedures whenever the need arises. 

 
b. Project Manager (PM) and Procurement 

 
A Project Manager (PM) will be a duly appointed staff member directly 
responsible for the daily technical administration of a contract including 
monitoring the contractor in its performance of the contract and performing 

74



Page 8 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

those functions as specified. The PM should be a responsible individual 
assigned to and familiar with the procedures and requirements of NVTA, 
general project management principles and state and federal procurement 
requirements. As such, the PM is the ED’s technical expert to assist in 
ensuring contractor compliance with technical requirements of the 
contract. Normally, the PM approves or disapproves the technical 
acceptability and timeliness of the work completed and the invoices 
submitted by the contractor for payment. 

i. The PM or his/her designee shall be the primary agency employee 
to determine that contract prices are fair and reasonable. 

 
ii. The PM is responsible for soliciting bids and proposals directly or 

working with the CA on such solicitation; for serving as the 
chairperson of pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences, qualification 
hearings and proposal evaluation meetings; for conducting contract 
negotiation sessions; for managing the non-technical aspects of post 
award contract administration including negotiation of modifications, 
claims, and supplemental agreements; and for maintaining 
procurement files. 

 
i. The PM shall ensure that sufficient unencumbered funds are 

available for obligation for each contract. 
 

a. The PM shall develop a clear and accurate specification / 
scope of work for each procurement. 

 
b. The PM is also the person to whom reports of warranted 

equipment malfunctions or failures, or any problems with the 
contractor's performance are submitted. The PM makes the 
initial request for contractor remedial action. The ED/counsel 
becomes involved when and if the lapse constitutes a serious, 
i.e., repetitive, or unresolved, breach of contractor's civil or 
contractual responsibility. 

 
c. Should the contractor fail to respond in a timely or adequate 

manner to rectify any problem, the PM notifies the CA and 
ED/counsel that an apparent breach of the contract exists. After 
investigating the situation, the ED/counsel and PM take any 
steps necessary and available to enforce NVTA's rights under 
the contract. This may include withholding payment, imposing 
liquidated damages, negotiation and recommending a 
settlement, terminating the contractor for default, or referring the 
matter for legal action. 

 
d. The PM also has the following duties in relation to the contract: 

75



Page 9 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

i. Attends pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences as the 
technical expert; 

 
ii. Conducts investigations of proposed contractor's technical 

past performance; 
 

iii. Questions prospective contractors during clarifications and 
discussions as to their technical capability to perform the 
contract; 

 
iv. Assists the ED with contract negotiations; 

 
v. Ascertains the availability of funds prior to asking the ED to 

initiate the negotiation and approval process for change 
orders; 

 
vi. Contract modifications and supplemental agreements; and 

 
vii. Issues directions to correct or replace defective items of work. 

 
viii. Coordinates and communicates with CA and includes CA in 

necessary meetings, conferences, and written 
communications. 

 
2. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies 

All NVTA personnel involved in procurements will comply with NVTA’s procurement 
code of conduct as follows and any Code of Conduct or Conflict of Interest requirements 
set forth in applicable State or Federal law including but not limited to the requirements 
of 23 CFR 172.7 related to consultants acting in a management support role. 

 
1. Award and Administration of Contracts: No Board Member, officer, employee 

or agent of NVTA shall participate in the selection, award or administration of a contract 
(including purchase orders) if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved. 
Such a conflict would arise if any prospective vendor or contractor (or any 
subcontractor) considered for an award is: 

 

a. Board Member, officer, employee or agent; 
b. Any member of his/her immediate family; 
c. His/her domestic or business partner; 
d. An organization that employs any of the above, or with which any of them 

has an arrangement concerning prospective employment. 
 

No Board Member, officer, employee or agent of NVTA who participates in the 
procurement, management, or administration of contracts shall have, directly or 

76



Page 10 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

indirectly, a financial or other personal interest in any contract made or influenced by 
him/her in his/her official capacity. 

 
No Board Member, officer, employee or agent of NVTA shall solicit or accept 

gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from consultants, vendors, contractors, 
or potential consultants, or parties to sub-agreements in excess of the applicable gift 
limit established by the Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”). Gifts shall be 
reported consistent with FPPC requirements. 

 
No person or entity performing services on behalf of NVTA shall have, directly or 

indirectly, any financial or other personal interest, other than employment or retention 
by NVTA, in any contract or subcontract. 

 
Violations of these standards may result in sanctions, or other forms of discipline 

up to and including termination. 
 

2. Disciplinary Action: The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines 
consistent with the NVTA Personnel Policies that will insure uniform application of 
progressive discipline for NVTA employees subject to disciplinary action “for cause.” 
The capitalized term “Employee” as used in Personnel Policies Chapter 2 Employment 
Status includes “Any person who occupies a position in the Agency service and 
receives compensation for services performed for the Agency.” 

 
Disciplinary Action for Cause: Disciplinary action against a NVTA Employee 
shall be for cause, as it may affect work performance and effectiveness within 
the organization. 

 
Procedures: 

 
a. Oral Reprimand: The Employee shall be counseled concerning the 
unsatisfactory areas of conduct and shall be informed about methods of 
improvement, or the Executive Director may issue an oral reprimand. The 
seriousness of the Employee’s conduct or offense will dictate whether oral or 
written reprimands or other corrective action is taken prior to initiating action to 
suspend or dismiss the Employee. 

 

b. Written Reprimand: In cases where an oral reprimand has not been 
successful or where the infraction of rules and regulations or conduct has been 
of a more serious nature as determined by the Executive Director, the Executive 
Director may employ the written reprimand. The purpose of the written 
reprimand is to call the attention of the Employee to serious defects in his/her 
conduct. The written reprimand should include a detailed statement of the 
problem and a notation to the effect that the problem was discussed with the 
Employee. Only the Executive Director may issue a written reprimand. 

 
  

77



Page 11 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

c. Suspension with Pay: For more severe violations or continued, 
uncorrected performance or misconduct problems, an employee may be 
suspended without pay. Where suspension without pay is recommended for a 
permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a Skelly meeting and a 
post-disciplinary appeal. 

 

d. Demotion: The Agency may impose a demotion to a position having a 
lower salary range for disciplinary purposes. A disciplinary demotion may be 
utilized for continued, uncorrected performance deficiencies. Where demotion is 
recommended for a permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a 
Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. 

 
e. Discharge: Discharge will be considered for severe violations, failure to 
respond appropriately to prior performance improvement plans, and/or multiple 
disciplinary infractions in a short period of time. Where misconduct is severe and 
egregious, immediate discharge may be imposed. Where discharge has been 
recommended for a permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a 
Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. The discharge will be 
documented in the personnel file. 

 

Finally, NVTA employees, officers, and agents who are not subject to disciplinary 
action “for cause,” are covered by written “at-will” employment agreements or other 
contracts which allow for termination by NVTA for no reason or for any reason, 
including, but not limited to, violations of the standards set forth in this Section. This 
policy is in addition to any discipline statutorily available for those participating in the 
selection, award or administration of a contract if a conflict of interest exists. (Cal. Gov. 
Code, §§ 81000-91014.) 

 
3. Maintenance & Oversight of Sub-Grantees 

 
a. Responsibilities of Management and Oversight of Sub-Grantees 

 
As the designated recipient, NVTA staff are responsible for routinely monitoring 
procurements of the sub-grantees to ensure that each is aware of and complies with all 
applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements. This responsibility includes: 

 
• Applying for and receiving FTA grants on behalf of its sub-grantees and performing 

on-going project management. 
• Ensuring adherence to Federal program guidelines through contractual 

agreements with all sub-grantees. 
• Receiving, verifying, and submitting for reimbursements from the FTA for all 

eligible project expenses. 
• Passing through the reimbursements received from FTA for all eligible project 

expenses. 
• Receiving financial and status reports from all sub-grantees. 

78



Page 12 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

• Completing financial and progress status reports in the FTA electronic grants 
management system (TrAMS). 

 
Other such grant administrative actions as necessary to ensure project completion in 
accordance with all applicable federal rules, regulations, and guidance. 

 
As the designated recipient of FTA Section 5307 funds, NVTA is responsible for ensuring 
that it and its sub-grantees or partners have established and maintain adequate internal 
controls over all functions which affect the implementation of a project utilizing such funds, 
including operating, accounting, financial, and administrative systems. To assure proper 
accountability for grant or cooperative agreement funds, internal controls used by sub- 
grantees shall be integrated with the management systems used by NVTA to regulate 
and guide its operations. 

 
Resources shall be used in accordance with all applicable state, local, and federal laws, 
regulations, and policies, as well as the terms of the grant or cooperative agreement. 
Resources shall be safeguarded against waste, loss, and misuse. In addition, reliable 
data on resource use and safeguards must be accumulated, maintained, and fairly 
disclosed in reports to the designated recipient manager and FTA. 

 
NVTA shall be responsible for monitoring sub-grantees no less than once per contract 
year and more often, should it be necessary. NVTA shall assist any of its sub-grantees in 
setting up the monitoring in order to ensure adherence to FTA guidelines. 

 
NVTA’s annual monitoring of its sub-grantees shall include a physical site visit to the 
location where the sub-grantee maintains its project records. The timing of the site visit 
shall occur six months from the beginning of any contract and occur at annual intervals 
while the contract is in force. Any deficiencies noted will result in more frequent 
inspections or the implementation of a corrective action plan until the deficiencies have 
been resolved. 

 
NVTA shall utilize the following procedures for monitoring sub-grantees: 

 
• Review of operation of project for scope of work accuracy and efficiency. 
• Review of the filing system, the system maintenance, and presence of grant 

information. 
• Review of the grant matching documentation. 
• Review of the sub-grantee’s Drug and Alcohol Policy. 
• Review of the sub-grantee’s Title VI Plan and access, if there are current 

complaints. 
• Review of marketing efforts associated with the project. 

4. Purchasing Policies 

a. Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action 

79



Page 13 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

All procurement documents issued by NVTA require all interested vendors 
to certify: 

 
i. That the vendor does not discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment, because of race, religion, sex, age, creed, 
color, disability or national origin; 

 
ii. That the vendor is in compliance with all Executive Orders and 

federal, state and local laws regarding fair employment practices 
and non-discrimination in employment; and 

 
iii. That the vendor agrees to demonstrate positively and aggressively 

the principle of equal opportunity in employment. 
 

b. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
 

NVTA has adopted a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program as required by 
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) at 49 CFR Part 26. The DBE Program sets goals 
for DBE participation in federally-funded contracts, monitors these contracts to determine 
DBE participation, and reports DBE participation to FTA. NVTA informs its contractors of 
these goals and monitors DBE participation by subcontractors. 

 
The Procurement Officer and Contracts Administrator will implement procedures to seek 
involvement by Small and Minority and Women's Business Enterprises, irrespective of 
whether they qualify as DBEs, in NVTA’s procurement processes to the fullest extent 
practicable. 

 
Examples of procedures that may achieve that involvement may include: 

 
1. Including qualified small, women-owned, and minority businesses on 
solicitation lists; 

 
2. Assuring that small, women-owned, and minority businesses are solicited 
whenever they are potential sources; 

 
3. When economically feasible, dividing total requirements into small tasks or 
quantities so as to permit maximum small, women-owned, and minority business 
participation; 

 
4. Where the requirement permits, establishing delivery schedules which will 
encourage participation by small, women-owned, and minority businesses. 

 
5. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and 
the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and 

 
6. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the 
affirmative steps listed in subparagraphs (1) through (5) above. 

80



Page 14 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

Disadvantaged business enterprises (DBEs) as defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 26 shall have 
the opportunity to compete fairly for contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal 
funds. Accordingly, all NVTA procurements funded with Federal funds may include, as 
appropriate, the use of goals for the procurement of all classes of goods and services, as 
set forth in NVTA’s DBE program. 
 
At the time the procurement takes place, the PM will coordinate with NVTA’s DBE Liaison 
Officer for the effective tracking of DBE information as it relates to NVTA’s DBE program, 
goals and reporting. 

 
c. Buy America 

 
Buy America regulations require that all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in 
the project are produced in the United States. Solicitations for steel, iron, and 
manufactured products must contain a Buy America certification, unless the procurement 
is subject to a general waiver or the small purchase waiver. Buy America requirements 
also apply to capital leases for rolling stock and related equipment. Buy America rules 
apply to utility work that is within the scope and budget of an FTA funded project. Buy 
America applies to the entire project, including contracts funded with non-Federal funds. 

 
General waivers are listed in Appendix A to 49 CFR 661.7 and include microcomputer 
equipment and software. The FAST Act amended 49 USC 5323(j)(13) to include a specific 
general waiver for purchases of not more than $150,000. 

 
The small purchase waiver provides that the term “small purchase” means a purchase of 
not more than $150,000. On September 16, 2016, the FTA Chief Counsel issued a Dear 
Colleague Letter regarding the small purchase waiver. Purchases made with FTA 
financial assistance, including capital, planning, or operating assistance, are subject to 
the waiver. The waiver applies both to purchases made directly by recipients or 
subrecipients and to purchases made by third-party contractors on behalf of the recipient 
or subrecipient. 

 
This provision of the FAST Act (or subsequent federal authorizations) applies to all 
purchases made after October 1, 2015. The $150,000 contract value is based on the total 
contract amount, including labor and options, and not just the value of the goods 
purchased. Also, recipients are not permitted to break up procurements in order to stay 
under the $150,000 threshold. Finally, if a solicitation may result in bids near $150,000, 
recipients should include the Buy America certifications in the solicitation, with a note 
clarifying that if the bid is more than $150,000, the bidder must certify per the Buy America 
requirements, but if the bid is $150,000 or less, no certification will be necessary. 

 
If a bidder or offeror certifies that it cannot comply with the Buy America requirements, 
then NVTA must request, receive, and retain a waiver from the FTA Chief Counsel’s 
Office before it may award a contract to that bidder or offeror. Buy America waivers are 
available on one of the following grounds: applying Buy America requirements would be 
inconsistent with the public interest; the materials produced in the United States are not 
produced in a sufficient and reasonably available quantity or are not of a satisfactory 

81



Page 15 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

quality (i.e., non-availability waiver); or including domestic material will increase the cost 
of the overall project by more than 25 percent. 

 
Buy America statute applies to: 

 
• All purchases of steel, iron, and manufactured products greater than $150,000, 

regardless of whether they involve capital, operating, or planning funds 
• Contractors and subcontractors if the contract or subcontract is more than 

$150,000, including labor and options 
• Purchases made using an intergovernmental agreement and jointly purchased 

manufactured products 
• Purchases of used items 

For all procurements of more than $150,000, NVTA shall include in its bid or request for 
proposal an appropriate notice of the Buy America provision. Such specifications shall 
require, as a condition of responsiveness, that the bidder or offeror submit with the bid or 
offer a completed Buy America certificate in accordance with 49 CFR §§ 661.6 or 661.12 
of this part, as appropriate. 

 

NVTA will not obtain signed Buy America certifications after contract award for its own 
contracts or contracts of other grantees to make the contracts eligible for Federal funding. 
NVTA may, however, obtain signed Buy America certifications before buying off state 
GSA-type contracts to make them eligible for Federal funding. NVTA should consider the 
full GSA-type contract amount, not the amount of its purchase, when determining whether 
Buy America requirements apply to those purchases. 

 
d. Cooperative Procurement 

 
When circumstances warrant, NVTA may attempt to fill requirements through a 
cooperative purchasing agreement (without independent bids or quotations) with 
the State of California, or with other appropriate public agencies. In such cases, 
NVTA will ensure all state and federal requirements are met. 

 
e. Open Competition Required. 

 
All procurement transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition. Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition 
include, but are not limited to: 

 
i. Unreasonable requirements placed on firms in order for them to qualify to 

do business; 
 

ii. Unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements (see 5); 
 

iii. Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated 
companies; 

82



Page 16 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

iv. Noncompetitive award to any person or firm on retainer contracts; 
 

v. Organizational conflicts of interest. An organizational conflict of interest 
means that because of other activities, relationships, or contracts, a 
contractor is unable or potentially unable, to render impartial assistance or 
advice to NVTA; a contractor’s objectivity in performing the contract work is 
or might be otherwise impaired; or a contractor has an unfair competitive 
advantage. 

 
vi. The specification of only a brand name product without listing its 

salient characteristics and not allowing an equal product to be offered; 
 

vii. Exclusionary or discriminatory specifications; and 
 

viii. Any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 
 

5. Bonding Requirements for Construction Contracts Exceeding One Hundred Fifty 
Thousand ($150,000) 

Bid Bond Requirements (Construction). 
 

1. Bid security - A Bid Bond must be issued by a fully qualified surety company 
acceptable to NVTA and listed as a company currently authorized under 31 CFR Part 
223 as possessing a Certificate of Authority as described thereunder. 

 
2. Rights Reserved – In submitting the Bid, it is understood and agreed by bidder that 
the right is reserved by NVTA to reject any and all bids, or part of any bid, and it is agreed 
that the Bid may not be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days subsequent to the 
opening of bids, without the written consent of NVTA. It is also understood and agreed 
that if the undersigned bidder should withdraw any part or all of his bid within ninety (90) 
days after the bid opening without the written consent of NVTA , shall refuse or be unable 
to enter into the contract, as NVTA provided above, or refuse or unable to furnish 
adequate and acceptable Performance Bond and labor and Material Payments Bonds, 
as provided above, or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and acceptable insurance, 
as provided above, bidder shall forfeit the bid security to the extent of NVTA’s damages 
occasioned by such withdrawal, or inability to enter into an agreement, or provide 
adequate security therefore. 

 
It is further understood and agreed that to extent the defaulting bidder’s Bid Bond, 
Certified Check, Cashier's Check, Treasurer's Check, and/or Official Bank Check shall 
prove inadequate to fully recompense NVTA for the damages occasioned by default, then 
such bidder agrees to indemnify NVTA and pay over to NVTA the difference between the 
bid security and NVTA's total damages, so as to make NVTA whole. 

 
Performance and Payment Bonding Requirements (Construction). 

 
The Contractor shall be required to obtain performance and payment bonds as follows: 

83



Page 17 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

1. Performance bonds 
 

a. The penal amount of performance bonds shall be 100 percent of the original 
Contract price, unless NVTA determines that a lesser amount would be adequate for the 
protection of NVTA. 

 
b. NVTA may require additional performance bond protection when a Contract price 
is increased. The increase in protection shall generally equal 100 percent of the increase 
in Contract price. NVTA may secure additional protection by directing the Contractor to 
increase the penal amount of the existing bond or to obtain an additional bond. 

 
2. Payment bonds 

 
a. The penal amount of the payment bonds shall equal: 

 
i. Fifty percent of the contract price if the contract price is not more than $1 million. 

 
ii. Forty percent of the contract price if the contract price is more than $1 million but 
not more than $5 million; or 

 
iii. Two and half million if the contract price is more than $5 million. 

 
b. If the original contract price is $5 million or less, NVTA may require 

additional protection as required by subparagraph 1 of the contract price 
is increased. 

 
Advance Payment Bonding Requirements 
The Contractor may be required to obtain an advance payment bond if the contract 
contains an advance payment provision and a performance bond is not furnished. NVTA 
shall determine the amount of the advance payment bond necessary to protect NVTA. 

 
Warranty of the Work 
1. The Contractor warrants to NVTA, the Architect and/or Engineer that all materials 
and equipment furnished under the Contract will be of highest quality and new unless 
otherwise specified by NVTA, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the 
Contract Documents. All Work not so conforming to these standards shall be considered 
defective. If required by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory 
evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. 

 
2. The Work furnished must be of first quality and the workmanship must be the best 
obtainable in the various trades. The Work must be of safe, substantial and durable 
construction in all respects. The Contractor hereby guarantees the Work against defective 
materials or faulty workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year after Final Payment 
by NVTA and shall replace or repair any defective materials or equipment or faulty 
workmanship during the period of the guarantee at no cost to NVTA. 

84



Page 18 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

6. Public Records Act 

All bids and proposals received become the exclusive property of NVTA. At such time as 
a contract award is recommended to the NVTA Board of Directors, all bids and proposals 
become a matter of public record and shall be regarded as public records, with the 
exception of those elements in each proposal which are trade secrets as that term is 
defined in California Government Code 6254.7 and which are so marked as “TRADE 
SECRET,” “CONFIDENTIAL” OR “PROPRIETARY.” NVTA shall not in any way be liable 
or responsible for the disclosure of any such records or portions thereof, including, with 
limitation, those so marked if disclosure is deemed required by law or by an order of a 
court. Bids or proposals that indiscriminately identify all or most of the bid or proposal as 
exempt from disclosure without justification may be found technically unacceptable. 

 
D. Procedures 

 
1. Independent Cost Estimate 

An independent cost estimate (ICE) shall be performed on all FTA, state, 
local and general funded procurements prior to receiving bids or proposals. 
The process for obtaining a cost estimate will depend on the type of 
procurement being pursued. For example, a cost estimate for a micro 
purchase (see explanation below) may only involve phone calls to obtain 
price quotes; while a cost estimate for the procurement of a commuter bus 
would require a more involved process to assess the market and to develop 
a reasonably accurate estimate. The cost required to research and prepare 
the estimate should not outweigh the potential benefits of the estimate. An 
ICE can be obtained from different sources including the following: 

• Published competitive prices 

• Results of competitive procurements 

• Estimates by in-house estimators 

• Outside estimators 

The ICE will be included in the procurement records. All construction bids will require 
an engineering estimate as part of the plans, specifications and engineering phase of 
the project. 

 
2. Excluded Parties List 

Any procurement, contract or vendor contract exceeding $25,000 is subject 
to the federal Excluded Parties List (EPLS/SAM). 

 
After all qualified bids or quotes have been opened the EPLS/SAM 
database must be referenced, which contains all businesses that have been 
barred or suspended from receiving federal funds or participating in federal 
contracts. The CA will perform an SAM business name search on each of 

85



Page 19 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

the businesses for specific procurements. The CA will perform the 
EPLS/SAM search for procurements in which federal transit funding will be 
utilized. 

 
i. If a business reference returns a positive listing on the SAM, a printout 

of the web page will be included in the procurement file, while a second 
copy will be forwarded to the bidding business with a notice that they 
have been removed from consideration in the procurement. 

 
ii. If the SAM search returns no listing on a specific business, a copy of the 

web page, showing the negative return, will be made and included in the 
procurement file. 

 
3. Business References 

a. CA Secretary of State Business Entity Search 
 

Prior to final award or completion of a draft contract (pre-counsel review), 
the CA will perform a Business Entity search on the California Secretary 
of State’s website (http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/ in 2013), to confirm the 
business is registered to do business in the State of California. 

 
i. If the business is not listed on the Secretary of State’s website, a 

business representative will be notified of their status and be 
provided 30 calendar days to either correct the listing, or provide 
documentation that they have submitted an application to the 
Secretary of State and are pending approval. 

 
ii. If the business is registered in the State of California as a legal 

business, a copy of the web page listing will be included in the 
procurement file. If the procurement requires any kind of contract 
with NVTA, a second copy will be included with the contract 
documents prior to them being forwarded to NVTA Attorney for final 
review prior to award. 

 
b. Business License Reference 

 
Prior to final award or completion of a draft contract (counsel review), 
the CA will contact NVTA’s Finance Department (FD) to confirm that the 
business has a valid business license. 

 
i. If the business has a valid license, a license number will be recorded 

in the procurement file and, if a contract, will be forwarded to counsel 
with the draft contract. 

86

http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/


Page 20 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

ii. If the business does not have a valid business license, they will be 
referred to the FD to discuss their services and the process for 
obtaining a license. 

 
4. Reasonableness of Price – Price Analysis or Cost Analysis 

In all FTA, state, local, and general funded procurements, a price analysis 
or cost analysis shall be used to determine the reasonableness of the bid 
price. A price analysis will normally be used to evaluate reasonableness. 
However, if a valid price analysis cannot be completed, a cost analysis of a 
bid price may be conducted. 

 
a. Price Analysis 

 
“Price analysis” is the process of examining and evaluating a 
prospective price without evaluation of the separate cost elements or 
proposed profit of the prospective supplier. 

 
Normally, price analysis may be accomplished through one or more of 
the following activities: 

 
i. Comparison of prices received in a bidding situation; 

 
ii. The comparison of prior quotations and contract prices with current 

quotations for the same or similar end items (to provide a suitable 
basis for comparison, appropriate allowances must be made for 
differences in such factors as specifications, quantities ordered, time 
for delivery, etc.); 

 
iii. The use of "yardsticks" (such as dollars per pound, per horsepower, 

or other units) to point out apparent gross inconsistencies which 
should be subjected to greater pricing inquiry; 

 
iv. The comparison of prices set forth in published price lists issued on 

a competitive basis, published market prices of commodities, and 
similar indicators, with discount or rebate arrangements; 

 
v. The comparison of proposed prices with estimates of cost 

independently developed by personnel within NVTA; or, 
 

vi. The comparison of prices paid by other users (government or 
commercial) of the same or similar items to the proposed prices. 

 
b. Cost Analysis 

 
“Cost analysis” is the review and analysis of a contractor's cost or pricing 
data and of the factors applied in projection from the data to the 
estimated costs in order to form an opinion on the degree to which the 

87



Page 21 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

contractor's proposed costs represent the cost of performance of the 
contract, assuming reasonable economy and efficiency. 

 
As compared to price analysis, cost analysis involves a more detailed 
review of the contractor’s/offeror's proposal. 

 
Normally, cost analysis may be accomplished through the following: 

 
i. Verify contractor's cost data. 

 
ii. Evaluate specific elements of costs and project these elements to 

determine the effect on prices of such factors as: 
 

(i) The necessity for certain costs; 
 

(ii) The reasonableness of amounts estimated for the necessary 
costs; 

 
(iii) Allowances for contingencies; and 

 
(iv) The basis used for allocations of particular overhead costs to the 

proposed contract. 
 

iii. When the necessary data is available, compare the contractor's 
estimated cost with: 

 
(i) Actual costs previously incurred by the contractor; 

 
(ii) The contractor's last prior cost estimate for the same or similar 

estimates; 
 

(iii) Current cost estimates from other possible sources; and 
 

(iv) Prior estimates or historical costs of other contractors 
manufacturing the same or similar items. 

 
iv. Forecasting future trends in costs from historical experience: 

 
(i) In periods of either rising or declining costs, an adequate cost 

analysis must include some evaluation of the trends. 
 

(ii) In cases involving recently developed, complex equipment, even 
in periods of relative price stability, trend analysis of basic labor 
and materials costs should be undertaken. 

 
In performing a cost analysis, there are three questions that should be 
asked in the examination of costs, particularly those in the overhead area: 

88



Page 22 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

i. Is the cost allowable in accordance with guidelines in Section 31 of the 
Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR)(2)? 

 
ii. Is the cost allocable to the particular project? 

 
iii. Is the cost reasonable? 

 
If only one bid is received, the sole bidder must cooperate with NVTA as 
necessary in order for its bid to be considered for award. A new solicitation 
of bids may be made if the single bid price appears unreasonable or if no 
determination is made as to the reasonableness of the single bid. 

 
5. Best Value 

"Best Value" is a selection process in which proposals contain both price and qualitative 
components, and award is based upon a combination of price and qualitative 
considerations. Qualitative considerations may include technical design, technical 
approach, quality of proposed personnel, and/or management plan. The award selection 
is based upon consideration of a combination of technical and price factors to determine 
(or derive) the offer deemed most advantageous and of the greatest value to the agency. 

 
6. Tag-ons 

 

“Tag-on” is defined as the addition of work (supplies, equipment or 
services) that is beyond the scope of the original contract that amounts to a 
cardinal change. “In scope” changes are not tag-ons. 

 
The use of tag-ons is prohibited and applies to the original buyer as well as 
to others. 

 
7. Piggybacking 

"Piggybacking" is an assignment of existing contract rights to purchase 
supplies, equipment, or services. 

 
Piggybacking is permissible when the solicitation document and resultant 
contract contain an assignability clause that provides for the assignment of 
all or a portion of the specified deliverables as originally advertised, 
competed, evaluated, and awarded. If the supplies were solicited, competed 
and awarded through the use of an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity 
(IDIQ) contract, then both the solicitation and contract award must contain 
both a minimum and maximum quantity that represent the reasonably 
foreseeable needs of the party(s) to the solicitation and contract. If two or 
more parties jointly solicit and award an IDIQ contract, then there must be 
a total minimum and maximum. Piggy-backing requires pre approval of an 
assignment by NVTA and approval of the contractor or consultant. 

 
8. Shared Services 

89



Page 23 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

Any Member Agency may utilize an NVTA contract for supplies or services 
subject to the following requirements. 

 
a. The Master Contract between NVTA and the contractor or 

consultant must be final and effective for the term required. 
b. The Master Contract must provide that Member Agencies may 

individually contract for the supplies or services covered by the 
agreement directly with the Contractor or Consultant. 

c. NVTA shall enter into an agreement with the Member Agency for 
shared services. 

1. Member Agencies utilizing shared services must agree to 
indemnify and defend NVTA for all liability resulting from the 
use of a Master Agreement or as a result of any supplies or 
services contracted for by the Member Agency. NVTA will not 
be a party to the Sub-Agreement. 

 
d. The Member Agency must complete the Member Agency Sub- 

Agreement with the Contractor or Consultant. 
 

1. Sub-Agreements may allow for Member Agencies to include 
additional insurance requirements or require a scope of work be 
attached to the Member Agency Sub-Agreement. 

2. The Sub-Agreement must be signed by the Member Agency 
authorized signatory and by the Contractor or Consultant. 
Member Agencies shall work directly with the Contractor or 
Consultant to negotiate and finalize scope, pricing, billing and 
terms of service. 

 
9. Use of Brand Name 

When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements, a “brand name or equal” 
description may be used as a means to define the performance or other 
salient characteristics of procurement. The specific features of the named 
brand which must be met by offerors shall be clearly stated. 

 
10. Options 

NVTA may include options in contracts. An option is a unilateral right in a 
contract by which, for a specified time, a grantee may elect to purchase 
additional equipment, supplies, or services called for by the contract, or may 
elect to extend the term of the contract. If NVTA chooses to use options, the 
requirements below apply: 

 
a. Evaluation of Options 

90



Page 24 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

The option quantities or periods contained in the contractor's bid or offer 
must be evaluated in order to determine contract award. When options 
have not been evaluated as part of the award, the exercise of such 
options will be considered sole source procurement. 

 
b. Exercise of Options 

 
i. NVTA must ensure that the exercise of an option is in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of the option stated in the initial 
contract awarded. 

 
ii. An option may not be exercised unless NVTA has determined that 

the option price is better than prices available in the market or that 
the option is the more advantageous offer at the time the option is 
exercised. 

 
iii. Options must be evaluated at the time of the original bid, and the cost 

basis for exercising the option must be established at the time of the 
bid. 

 
iv. Option prices and/or conditions cannot be negotiated at the time of 

the exercise of an option. 
 

11. Advance Payments 

NVTA does not authorize and will not participate in funding payments to a 
contractor prior to the incurrence of costs except as allowed by FTA 
requirements. There is no prohibition on NVTA’s use of local match funds 
for advance payments. However, advance payments made with local funds 
before a grant has been awarded, or before the issuance of a letter of no 
prejudice or other pre-award authority, are ineligible for reimbursement. 

 
12. Progress Payments 

NVTA may use progress payments provided the following requirements 
are followed: 

 
a. Progress payments are only made to the contractor for costs incurred 

in the performance of the contract. 
 

b. NVTA must obtain adequate security for progress payments. Adequate 
security may include taking title, letter of credit or equivalent means to 
protect NVTA’s interest in the progress payment. 

 
13. Procurement by Micro-Purchases 

Purchases below $3,000 may be made without obtaining competitive 
quotations if it is determined by the PM that the price is fair and reasonable. 

91



Page 25 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 

The PM will document how this determination was derived. The Davis- 
Bacon Act applies to public works/construction contracts exceeding $2,000. 

14. Small Purchases

For goods and other professional services procurements between $3,000
and $100,000, insofar as is practical, no less than three bids shall be
solicited. Oral quotes will be accepted with written confirmation received in
24 hours. The responsibility for soliciting quotations rests with the PM.
Appropriate documentation, including but not limited to a list of the vendors
contacted, a fair and reasonable price determination and the quotes
received, shall be filed with the project documentation.

15. Construction and Major Capital Purchases exceeding $4,000

a. Major FTA-funded capital projects must further follow FTA’s
Construction and Project Management Guidelines:

https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/fta-project-and- 
construction-management-guidelines-2016 

b. Major FHWA/State-funded projects must further follow Caltrans’ Local
Assistance Guidelines:
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm

c. Additional references and procedures can also be found at:

Caltrans Construction Manual (July 2017
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/constmanual/

Construction Contract Standards
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/construction_standards.html

Caltrans Engineering Guidelines, Manuals and Training
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/guidance.html

E. Competitive Procurement Process

Ensuring Most Efficient and Economic Purchase 

Proposed procurements must be reviewed by NVTA staff to avoid purchase of 
unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or 
breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. 

When appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease vs. purchase alternatives to 
determine the most economical approach. 

Additionally, to ensure sufficient procurement planning and forecasting, consideration 
should be given to establishing contractual relationships with suppliers and obtaining bids 

92

https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/fta-project-and-construction-management-guidelines-2016
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/fta-project-and-construction-management-guidelines-2016
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/constmanual/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/construction_standards.html
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/guidance.html


Page 26 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

on repetitive purchase items—for example, parts or shelter repairs—to ensure 
competitive pricing based upon economies of scale. Grouping and bidding these 
purchases will ensure favorable pricing based on economies of scale. Creating blanket 
agreements will lead to a decrease in prices and an increase in efficiency. 

 
Restricted or Prohibited Contracting Methods – The following contract types are 
prohibited or restricted, as dictated by 2 CFR Part 200- Uniform Guidance: 

 
• Cost Plus a Percentage of Cost – The use of Cost Plus a Percentage of Cost contracts 

is expressly prohibited as a method of contracting. 
• Time and Materials – NVTA staff may exercise the use of a Time and Materials 

contract only after determining that no other contract type is suitable and if the contract 
specifies a ceiling price that the contractor may not exceed except at its own risk. 

 
Procurement by Sealed Bids/Invitation for Bid (IFB) 

 
1. For sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions should be present: 

 
a. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is 

available; 
 

b. Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for 
the business; 

 
c. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of 

the successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price; and 
 

d. No discussion with bidders is needed. 
 

2. If this procurement method is used, the following requirements apply: 
 

a. The invitation for bids will be publicly advertised and bids shall be solicited from 
an adequate number of known suppliers, providing them sufficient time to prepare bids 
prior to the date set for opening the bids; 

 
b. The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and pertinent 

attachments, shall define the items or services sought in order for the bidder to properly 
respond; 

 
c. All bids will be publicly opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation 

for bids; 
 

d. A firm fixed-price contract award will be made in writing to the lowestresponsive 
and responsible bidder. 

 
e. Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented business reason. 

93



Page 27 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

This method of procurement may be utilized for the purchase of vehicles and equipment. 
The sealed bid method is the preferred method for procuring construction if the conditions 
in paragraph (1) above apply. 

 
The procurement files will contain an explanation for the choice of the procurement 
process being used. 

 
1. Invitation for Bids (IFB) 

The CA will work through the ED/PM and counsel for the release of all 
 

a. RFPs for goods and service; 
b. release of professional service contracts; and 
c. capital projects. 

 
NVTA procurement procedures and FTA guidance will be followed for IFB 
procurements. 

 
2. Recording of Bids 

To assist in having a complete record of the procurement history, for all IFBs records of 
the bid number, bid opening date and time, general description of the procurement item, 
names of bidders, prices bid, and any other information required for bid evaluation, shall 
be kept in the official procurement file and be available for public inspection. When the 
items are too numerous to warrant the recording of all bids completely, an entry shall be 
made of the invitation number, opening date and time, general description of the 
procurement items, and the total price bid where definite quantities are involved. 

 
The official record shall be completed as soon as practical after bids have been opened 
and read aloud. CA shall be responsible for maintaining files of these records and 
abstracts for goods and service, professional services, and capital projects. 

 
3. Tabulation of Bids 

Bids shall be evaluated on the basis of responsiveness and responsibility indicated in the 
IFB. Award shall be made to the bidder submitting the lowest bid, unless NVTA 
determines that the bid is not responsive and/or the bidder is found to be not responsible. 

 
4. Analysis of Limited Bid Response 

If one (1) bid has been received, the PM or CA will contact vendors to determine reasons 
for the single bids. The purpose of this examination is to ascertain and document the 
reason for the single bid. If the determination is that the IFB restricted competition, the 
procurement may be rebid. A price or cost analysis shall be performed to establish the 
reasonableness of the bid price before an award is made. 

94



Page 28 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

5. Determination of Responsiveness 

a. Any bid which fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation for 
bids, such as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required bid documents, 
shall be rejected as non-responsive. 

 
b. The originals of all rejected bids, and any written findings with respect to such 
rejections, shall be preserved in the file relating to the procurement. 

 
6. Responsible Bidder Evaluation 

Before awarding the contract, NVTA shall determine that a prospective contractor is 
responsible and that prices are reasonable. Bidders may be asked to provide any 
information required to determine the responsibility of the bidder. A responsible bidder is 
one who meets the standards set forth below: 

 
a. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as 
required during performance of the contract. 

 
b. Is able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance schedule, 
taking into consideration all existing business commitments. 

 
c. Has a satisfactory record of performance. Contractors who are, or have been 
seriously deficient in current or recent contract performance, when the number of 
contracts and the extent of deficiency of each are considered, may be considered to be 
non-responsible bidders. Documented past unsatisfactory performance will ordinarily be 
sufficient to justify a finding of non-responsibility. 

 
d. Is otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 
e. Has the necessary organization, experience, operational controls, and technical 
skills, or the ability to obtain them. 

 
f. Has the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment and 
facilities, or the ability to obtain them. 

 
Evaluation of the responsibility of prospective contractors may be made based upon the 
following sources: 

 
i. A list of debarred, suspended or ineligible firms or individuals. 

 
ii. From the prospective contractor's bids and proposals, replies to questionnaires, 
financial data such as balance sheets, profits and loss statements, cash forecasts, and 
financial histories of the contractor and affiliated concerns; current and past production 
records, list of tools, equipment, and facilities, written statements or commitments 
concerning financial assistance and subcontracting arrangements. 

95



Page 29 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

iii. Publications, including credit ratings, trade and financial journals, and business 
directories and registers may also be used. 

 
iv. References such as suppliers, subcontractors, customers of the prospective 
contractor, banks and financial institutions, commercial credit agencies, other 
government agencies, purchasing and trade associations, and better business bureaus 
and chamber of commerce. 

 
v. Documented past performance on contracts with NVTA. 

 
The procurement files will document the determination of responsive and responsible 
bidders. 

 
7. Rejection of Individual Bids 

Any bid that fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation for bids, such 
as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required bid documents, shall be 
rejected as non-responsive. 

 
8. Consultant Selection 

This procurement procedure usually involves a single step process with issuance of a 
request for proposal (RFP) to all interested consultants. For non-A&E consulting 
contracts, a cost proposal shall be part of the RFP and the selection criteria. For A&E 
contracts, the cost proposal is not requested until the consultants have been final ranked 
based upon their submitted technical proposal. 

 
Appoint Consultant Selection Committee 

 
A consultant selection committee with a minimum of three members is appointed at the 
beginning of the consultant selection process. The committee reviews materials 
submitted by consultants, develops a shortlist of qualified consultants, and develops a 
final ranking of the most qualified proposals. Representation on the committee includes 
the Contract Administrator and subject matter experts from the project’s functional area. 
The members should be familiar with the project/segment to be contracted out and with 
the local agency standards that will be used in the contract. Participation by a Caltrans 
district representative is at the option of the agency and subject to availability of the DLAE 
staff. Caltrans participation on the interview panel does not relieve the local agency of its 
responsibility to ensure that proper procurement procedures are followed and all 
requirements are met. 

 
Local agency Contract Administrator ensures that all committee members meet the 
conflict of interest requirements (23 CFR 172) by completing and signing a conflict of 
interest statement prior to selection process initiation. 

 
Develop Technical Criteria for Evaluation of Proposals 

 
The Contract Administrator is responsible for developing the technical criteria, and their 
relative importance which are used to evaluate and rank the consultant proposals. In- 

96



Page 30 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

State or local preference shall not be used as factor in the evaluation, ranking, and 
selection phase. All non-technical evaluation criteria, including DBE participation, shall 
not exceed 10 percent (23 CFR 172.7(a)(1)(iii)(D)). All price or cost related items which 
include, but are not limited to, cost proposals, direct salaries/wage rates, indirect cost 
rates, and other direct costs are prohibited from being used as evaluation criteria. 
The criteria and relative weights must be included in the RFP, and the same criteria and 
relative weights must be used in the evaluation sheets. Failure to include criteria and 
relative weights and to use the same criteria and weights during the evaluation will result 
in the contract costs being ineligible for federal or state reimbursement. Exhibit 10-B: 
Suggested Consultant Evaluation Sheet is a recommended evaluation sheet with criteria 
and rating points for A&E consultants, where cost is not used as a rating factor. This 
format is not mandatory, but it is recommended in the interest of developing consistency 
among the hundreds of agencies and consultants operating in the state. The local agency 
should consult with the DLAE before making major changes to the suggested approach. 

 
9. Develop Final Ranking and Notify Consultants of Results 

The selection committee evaluates each proposal; interviews the three or more 
highest ranked consultants (short listed) if noted in solicitation; and develops a final 
ranking of the highest ranked consultants. All consultants that submitted proposals 
must be informed about the final ranking of consultants. It is important that all 
competing consultants receive the same information. 

 
Most consultants will request information as to why they were not the highest ranked. 
The local agency may have an established procedure adopted for conducting 
debriefings but may also consider the following: The selection committee should keep 
notes as to why a particular consultant was not selected. When a consultant requests 
debriefing, the reasons for not being selected must be objective reasons. The 
consultant should not be compared to others and should not be provided with 
information about other consultants during this debriefing. Normally, the Contract 
Administrator does the debriefing; however, any member of the selection committee 
may be designated to do the debriefing. 

 
10.  Adoption of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Local 

Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 10: Consultant Selection 

Pursuant to 23 CFR 172.5, the NVTA, as a sub-recipient of funding from Caltrans, shall 
adopt Chapter 10 of the LAPM.  See Appendix E. 

 
11. Award of the Contract 

Unless all bids are rejected, award shall be by written or electronic notice, 
within the time for acceptance specified in the bid or extension thereof, to 
the responsible and responsive bidder whose bid, conforming to all the 
material terms and conditions of the IFB, is the lowest in price. 

 
When award is made to other than the lowest bidder, NVTA will document 
in the procurement files the reason for not choosing the lowest bid. 

97



Page 31 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

 
12. Project Completion 

All original documentation related to each procurement such as the IFB, bid, 
control record, board report, ICE, background data, evaluation criteria and 
scores, meeting reports/notes, as well as the logs documenting bid opening 
dates and bid receipt dates will be submitted to the CA for storage when the 
file becomes inactive. For audit purposes, complete procurement files will 
be maintained for a minimum of five (5) years after the project is closed out 
and completed unless a different time period is mandated by a funding 
entity. 

 
13. Request for Qualifications (RFQ) / Request for Proposals (RFP) 

The Request for Proposals (RFP)/Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
competitive procurement process is used when conditions are not 
appropriate for the use of an IFB. The latter is generally the case in the 
purchase of services such as lease agreements, maintenance and service 
contracts, rental contracts, and professional service contracts. The 
RFQ/RFP process for goods and services is coordinated by the CA and 
managed by the PM. The RFQ/RFP process for professional services is 
managed by the PM and the PM shall consult the latest federal and state 
procedures for the procurement process. 

 
The RFQ/RFP process is a competitive negotiated procurement process 
that requires evaluation of offeror’s proposed costs and understanding of 
the contract performance requirements in accordance with established 
evaluation criteria. The competitive negotiated procurement process does 
not require award to the lowest offeror. 

 
a. Pre-qualified Contractor Lists 

 
NVTA staff will ensure that all lists of pre-qualified persons, firms, or products that are 
used in acquiring supplies, equipment, and services are current and include enough 
qualified sources to ensure maximum full and open competition. Also, NVTA staff will 
not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period—from the 
issuance of the solicitation to its closing date. 
NVTA may issue a RFQ or RFP in order to create a pool of qualified consultants that will 
be placed on a “pre-qualified list” for future services or consulting contracts with NVTA. 
Pre-qualified consultant lists shall not be utilized for any contract subject to award to the 
lowest responsible bidder pursuant to State law. Pre-qualified consultants will remain 
eligible for consideration and contract negotiation on an as-needed basis for three years 
from the pre-qualification notification date. This date may be extended by NVTA in its sole 
and absolute discretion for an additional two years for a total of five years. Pre- qualified 
consultants are not guaranteed a contract. NVTA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, 
to utilize other authorized procurement methods for services or consulting contracts and 
to not use the pre-qualified list process. 

98



Page 32 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

NVTA may make lists of prequalified consultants available for use by it’s Member 
Agencies. Member Agencies should check with the NVTA Contract Manager to determine 
if pre-qualified lists are available. Each Member Agency must enter into an agreement 
with NVTA prior to utilizing a prequalified list that indemnifies NVTA for any liability 
resulting from the use of the prequalified list or as a result of any contract between a 
Member Agency and a pre-qualified consultant. 

 

b. Each Member Agency may issue a Request for Proposals to 
consultants on the pre-qualified list, reflecting the Member 
Agency’s individual contracting requirements and Scope of Work. 
Member Agencies are responsible for ensuring that the competitive 
process and any resulting contract meets all applicable state, local and 
federal requirements. Member Agencies will be responsible for 
processing and negotiating their RFP and any resulting contract award. 
NVTA will not be a party to any contract between a Member Agency 
and a pre-qualified consultant.  
 
Issuance of RFQP and RFP Packet 

 
The RFQ/RFP packet will include the following: 

 
i. Instructions To Proposers - General instructions concerning the 

proposal format, pre-contractual expenses, contract conditions, pre- 
proposal conferences, and other information. 

 
ii. Attachments - Required forms to be completed by the proposer and 

submitted with the proposal. 
 

iii. Exhibits - These can be documents which display key facts, 
specifications, maps, report formats, and other important information 
to clearly define the goods or services needed in order for the 
proposers to properly respond to the RFQ/RFP. 

 
iv. Scope of Work - Each RFQ/RFP will contain a statement or scope of 

work prepared by the PM which provides a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements for the materials, products, 
or services being produced. A statement or scope of work should 
only state the actual minimum needs of NVTA, and be developed in 
a manner designed to promote full and open competition. At a 
minimum, the statement or scope of work should address the 
following areas: 

 
(i)  A detailed description of the work to be performed outlining 

various tasks or phases to be performed, and defining the limits 
of the proposed project; 

 
(ii) A requirement for periodic reporting or progress on the project if 

the procurement involves consultant or professional services; 

99



Page 33 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

 
(iii) A proposed delivery schedule; and, 

 
(iv) A proposed contract period. 

 
v. Evaluation Criteria – Each RFQ/RFP will contain the criteria and 

method that will be used to select the successful proposer. If the 
selection is to be made by lowest price, that will be stated in the 
solicitation documentation. If the selection process will be a “best 
value” determination, the solicitation will state so and the relative 
significance of each criteria will also be included in the solicitation 
document. 

 
(i) Evaluation criteria will be developed and fully modeled prior to 

the release of the RFP, along with the development of any 
scoring methodology/forms to be used by the evaluation panel. 
Any consideration of price in the criteria will include separate 
evaluation for operations and maintenance (O&M) costs, and 
capital/procurement costs, placing emphasis on the impact of 
O&M costs to NVTA. 

 
c. Control Record 

 
A control record will be maintained by the CA in the procurement file as 
RFP packets are distributed to prospective bidders. The control record 
profiles the following information: 

 
i. Date and time RFQ/RFP packets are distributed. 

 
ii. Names and addresses of vendors receiving the RFQ/RFP and if 

applicable vendors attending a pre-proposal conference. 
 

The control record serves as a mailing list for the issuance of addenda 
and provides a record for verification in cases of vendor protests and 
other issues. 

 
d. Pre-Proposal Conference 

 
A pre-proposal conference may be used as a means of briefing 
prospective proposers and explaining complicated specifications and 
requirements to them as early as possible after the RFQ/RFP has been 
issued and before the proposals are received. Any information 
distributed at the pre-proposal conference will be made available to all 
other prospective proposers in a reasonable time prior to the closing of 
the bid period, and a copy will be maintained in the procurement file. A 
roster of attendees at the pre-proposal conference will also be 
maintained in the procurement file as part of the control record. NVTA 
will never require vendor attendance at a pre-proposal conference as 
eligibility for submitting a qualified proposal. 

100



Page 34 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

 
e. Evaluation and Selection Process 

 
Proposals submitted in response to the RFQ/RFP will be evaluated by 
an Evaluation Committee established by NVTA, in accordance with the 
criteria set forth in the RFQ/RFP. The Evaluation Committee shall score 
the proposals and make a recommendation for award of the contract. 
Original scoring forms, or summary records of the Evaluation Committee 
scoring, will be maintained in the procurement file. 

 
14. Architectural / Engineering Services Request for Qualifications 

The Architectural/Engineering RFQ/RFP process or the RFQ qualifications- 
based process will be used for the procurement of architectural and 
engineering (A/E) services and related services such as program 
management, construction management, feasibility studies, preliminary 
engineering, design, surveying, mapping, or related services. 

 
Following this method, competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the 
most qualified competitor is selected subject to negotiation of fair and 
reasonable compensation. Under this method, NVTA may not consider 
price as an evaluation factor in determining the most qualified offeror. 
Negotiation is conducted with only the most qualified offeror. This method, 
where price cannot be used as an evaluation factor and negotiations are 
conducted with only the most qualified offeror, can only be used in 
procurement of the above services. This method of procurement cannot be 
used to obtain other types of services even through a firm that provides the 
above types of services are also potential sources to perform other services. 

 
a. Issuance of an “A/E” RFQ 

 
A notice of an RFQ will be prepared by the CA and will be advertised as 
a public notice in a newspaper of general circulation and/or in an 
electronic format on a website that is accessible by the public and 
vendor community. Additional sources for posting the A/E RFP may 
include national and state print or online transit community publications. 

 
b. Pre-proposal Conference 

 
A pre-proposal conference may be used as a means of briefing 
prospective proposers and explaining complicated specifications and 
requirements to them as early as possible after the RFQ has been 
issued and before the proposals are received. Any information 
distributed at the pre-proposal conference will be made available to all 
other prospective proposers in a reasonable time prior to the closing of 
the bid period, and a copy will be maintained in the procurement file. A 
roster of attendees at the pre-proposal conference will also be 
maintained in the procurement file. NVTA will require vendor attendance 

101



Page 35 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

at a pre-proposal conference. 
 

c. Evaluation and Contract Negotiation 
 
The steps to be used for proposal evaluation and contract negotiation 
for A/E and related services solicitations are as follows: 

 
i. A qualified evaluation committee shall be established by the PM to 

review eligible firms and all responses to a RFQ. The evaluation 
committee is briefed by the PM on NVTA procedures and instructed 
to maintain confidentiality about the proposal evaluation process. 

 
ii. Evaluation Committee evaluates the firms based on: 

 
(A) Professional qualifications for performance of the required 

services; 
 

(B) Specialized experience and technical competence in the type 
work required; 

 
(C) Capacity to accomplish the work in the required time; and, 

 
(D) Past performance in terms of cost control, quality of work and 

compliance with performance schedules. 
 

iii. Evaluation team ranks the proposers and if necessary holds 
discussions with the most highly qualified firms ("short list"). 

 
iv. Evaluation team prepares a selection report listing in order of 

preference, those firms that are considered to be the most highly 
qualified to perform the required services. The report should include 
a description of the discussions and evaluations by the team to allow 
the review of the basis upon which the recommendations were made. 
A copy of the selection report will be maintained in the procurement 
file. 

 
v. The final selection shall be made by the PM or ED. 

 
15. Sole Source Procurements 

Sole source procurement is a purchase accomplished through solicitation 
or acceptance of a proposal from only one source; or, if after solicitation of 
a number of sources competition is determined inadequate. A sole source 
purchase must be documented as to the reasons why only one supplier is 
acceptable. 

 
Sole source procurement may be used only when the award of a contract 
is infeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed bids, or competitive 

102



Page 36 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

proposals and at least one of the following circumstances applies: 
 

a. The item is available only from a single source;  
The public exigency or emergency (i.e., a threat to public health, welfare, 
safety, property or other substantial loss to NVTA, or a situation requiring 
immediate action by NVTA, as determined by NVTA) for the requirement 
will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation; 

 
b. FTA authorizes noncompetitive negotiations; 

 
c. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined 

inadequate; or 
 

d. The item is an associated capital maintenance item as defined in 49 
U.S.C. § 5307(a)(1) that is procured directly from the original 
manufacturer or supplier of the item to be replaced. The grantee must 
first certify in writing to FTA: 

 
i. That such manufacturer or supplier is the only source for such item; 

and 
 

ii. that the price of such item is not higher than the price for such item 
by like customers. 

 
A cost analysis must be conducted before an award of sole source contract. 

 
The reasons for the sole source procurement and the cost analysis will be 
documented in the Procurement File. 

 
16. Emergency Procurements 

Emergency procurements (defined as purchases immediately necessary for 
the preservation of life or property, or to prevent an immediate termination 
of a critical NVTA function or activity) will be handled immediately and 
expedited as required. The ED has the authority to approve the purchase 
of all goods and services in emergency conditions. If the ED is unavailable 
to authorize an emergency procurement, the ED may provide the PM with 
the necessary authorization. Upon completion of the emergency 
procurement, the PM will document the actions taken and execute a proper 
requisition. 

 
17. Vendor Protest Procedures 

Protest procedures will be included directly or by reference in all 
procurements. For procurements under $100,000 vendors need to be 
directed to NVTA’s website where a copy of the protest procedures can be 
obtained. For procurements over $100,000 the protest procedures will be 
included in the procurement solicitation. 

 

103



Page 37 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

NVTA Protest Procedures 
A protest must be submitted by an Interested Party no later than seven 
(7) business days prior to the date and time designated for submittal of 
bids or proposals or within 5 business days after the allegedly aggrieved 
person or party is notified of the intent to award or recommend award of 
the contract. If the fifth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday it shall 
be submitted by 5:00 p.m. the following business day. All protests must 
be in writing and shall contain the following: 

 
• the procurement title and/or number under which the protest is made; 
• the name and address of the allegedly aggrieved party; 
• a detailed description of the specific grounds for the protest and all 

supporting documentation; 
• the specific ruling or relief requested; and 
• the written protest shall be addressed to Executive Director, NVTA, 

625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559 with copies sent to all other 
bidders. 

 
1) Response to Protest. 

 
i. Upon receipt of a timely written protest, the ED will consider the 

protest in accordance with established procedures and promptly 
issue a written decision stating the reasons for the action taken 
and informing the allegedly aggrieved person of his/her right to 
appeal the decision to the Chairman of the Board. 

 
ii. The decision made by the ED shall be final and conclusive unless 

appealed in writing to the Board Chair within 5 business days of 
receipt by the protestor. The Board Chair will consider the appeal 
and promptly issue a written decision, which shall be final and 
conclusive. 

 
iii. A Protestor may not commence litigation prior to exhausting all 

administrative remedies. Failure to exhaust all administrative 
remedies shall constitute an absolute waiver of the protestor's 
right, if any, to commence litigation. 

 
iv. Failure to comply with these protests and appeal requirements 

will render a protest or an appeal untimely or inadequate and may 
result in its rejection by NVTA. 

 
v. After the exhaustion of all administrative remedies, the protestor 

shall have 10 calendar days to commence litigation. Failure to 
commence litigation within this limitation shall constitute an 
absolute waiver of the protestor's right. State laws permit NVTA 
to award and execute the Contract during this 10-day period. 

104



Page 38 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

vi. Public Work/Construction Contracts. For construction contracts 
awarded by the NVTA Board, the protesting party may appear 
and be heard at the meeting during which the contract is 
scheduled for award. In the event a protesting party has been 
declared non-responsible, the protesting party is entitled to a 
public hearing before the Board. 

 
a. Written Protest Procedures for FTA Funded Projects 

 
(Only if Federal Transit Administration funds are used in the 
procurement) 

 
All disputes relating to NVTA for FTA procurements will be addressed as documented in 
Article 

 
Appeals and Remedies. In all instances where a protest is received in regards to a 
contract required to comply with PTA Circular 4220.lF, as may be amended, NVTA is 
required to disclose information regarding the protest to FTA. All protest decisions must 
be in writing. A protester must exhaust all administrative remedies with NVTA before 
pursuing a protest with FTA. 

 
FTA protest reviews will be limited to: 1) NVTA's failure to have, or to have followed, its 
protest procedures, or its failure to review a complaint or protest; or 2) violations of federal 
law or regulation. An appeal to FTA must be received by the cognizant FTA regional or 
Headquarters Office within 5 business days of the date the Protester knew or should have 
known of an adverse decision by NVTA or other bases of appeal to FTA. Violations of 
federal law or regulation will be handled by the complaint process stated within that law 
or regulation. Violations of State or local law or regulations will be under the jurisdiction 
of the State or local authorities. 

 
CHAPTER 4 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

 
F. Contract Administration Guidelines 

1. NVTA will originate the agreement. 
 

2. Once a contract has been fully executed, a Notice to Proceed will be issued 
to initiate contract work. 

 
3. All agreements will be assigned a contract number, which must be referred 

to on all orders and the contractor’s invoices. 
 

4. PM, ED and FD will approve all invoices before payment is issued. 
 

5. For each contract over $100,000 a contracting administrator will be 
assigned to monitor contract terms and conditions. The contract 
administrator and the project manager should not be the same individual. 

105



Page 39 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

6. A contract amendment is necessary for a change in scope of work, term or 
compensation and must be completed before additional work or payment is 
authorized. 

 
7. A copy of the procurement document must be included with the contract 

files, including an explanation of the process used in procuring the goods or 
services. 

 
8. The ED/PM will prepare a letter of completion for the NVTA Board of 

Director’s approval and recorded with the Napa County Recorder’s office. 
 

G. Federal Procurement Requirements and State Law 

The formation of contracts shall conform to the Federal Transit Administration's 
(FTA) Third Party Contracting Guidance, as contained in FTA Circular 4220.lF, 
and applicable California State law, whichever is more stringent. Any 
subsequent changes or amendments to either the Circular or State law after the 
effective date of this Procurement Policy shall be incorporated into said Policy 
by this reference. 

 
The procurement rules dispersed throughout this Policy are extracted from, or 
fashioned after, FTA Circular 4220.F, and Third Party Contracting Guidance. 

 
The aforementioned Circular applies to all FTA grantees and sub-grantees that 
contract with outside sources under NVTA-assisted programs. This Circular sets 
forth the requirements that NVTA, as a grantee, must adhere to in the 
solicitation, award, and administration of its FT A-assisted third party contracts. 

 
If a grantee accepts FTA operating assistance, the requirements of this Circular 
apply to all transit-related third party Purchase Orders and contracts awarded 
with only that portion of operating funds specifically allocated to the property or 
services being procured. These requirements do not apply to procurements 
undertaken in support of capital or non-capital projects completely 
accomplished without PTA funds, or to those operating and planning contracts 
awarded by grantees that do not receive FTA operating and planning 
assistance. 

 
Conformance with State and Local Law. NVTA shall use its own procurement 
procedures that reflect applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided 
that the procurements conform to applicable federal law, including the 
requirements and standards identified in FTA Circular 4220.lF. 

 
Self-Certification. The FTA intends to rely primarily on grantees' ''self- 
certifications" that their procurement system meets FTA requirements to support 
the required finding that a grantee has the technical capacity to comply with 
Federal procurement requirements. Consequently, the Executive Director must 
self-certify NVTA procurement system in the FTA Annual 

106



Page 40 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

Certification/Assurance Process when applying for grants. The FT A will monitor 
compliance as part of its routine oversight responsibilities. 

 

APPENDIX LIST 
 

A. FTA Required Model Clauses 
 

B. Determination of Price Reasonableness 
 

C. Procurement File Checklist 
 

D. Procurement Documentation Checklist 

107



Page 41 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

APPENDIX A: FTA & FHWA Required Clauses 
 

The FTA requires certain contract provisions for each procurement depending on the 
nature, type and value of the procurement. As the federal government makes regular 
updates to procurement guidelines and the clauses required in such, the CA will reference 
the required clauses tables provided by the FTA either through the Best Practices 
Procurement Manual (BPPM) or the Triennial Review Program latest workshop workbook 
available through the FTA website. 

 
• Best Practices Procurement Manual 
• Third Party Contract Requirements – FTA Circular 4220.1F (or most recent) 
• FTA Frequently Asked Questions Procurement and Contracting 

 
 
 

The FHWA requires certain contract provisions for each procurement depending on the 
nature, type and value of the procurement. As the federal government makes regular 
updates to procurement guidelines the PM shall reference the applicable provisions as 
outlined in the current edition of the Local Assistance Procedures Manual issued by 
Caltrans. 

 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm 

108

https://www.transit.dot.gov/resources/procurement/best-practices-procurement-manual
https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%20%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/third-party-procurement/third-party-procurement-faqs
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm


Page 42 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

APPENDIX B: DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS 
 
 

PO/Contract Number: (If applicable) 
 

Vendor:   
 

Items Purchased:   
 

The price(s) paid for item(s) received under this purchase are determined to be fair and 
reasonable, based on the following (as checked): 

 

Ο Adequate competition 

Ο Current price lists 

Ο Catalog price 

Ο Prices found reasonable on recent previous purchases 

Ο Advertisements 

Ο Similar items in a related industry 

Ο Independent price estimate (based on a good understanding of what the item 
should cost) 

Ο Other basis. Explain Below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By:    
 
 
 

Date:    

109



Page 43 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

APPENDIX C: PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Procurement Summary Memo (utilize template) 
 

• General Description of the Procurement Item 
• Explanation of the choice of procurement being used 
• Federal Clauses and Certifications Checklist 
• Bid Number 
• Procurement Control Record 

o Date/Time RFP is distributed 
o Names/Addresses of Vendors receiving such 

• Independent Cost Estimate 
• Price/Cost Analysis 
• Bid Opening Date/Time 
• Names of Bidders 
• Bid prices 
• Determination of Responsive and Responsible Bidders 
• Bid Evaluation Information 
• Original scoring forms, or summary records of the Evaluation Committee scoring 
• Reason for not choosing the lowest bid, if such is not chosen 
• California Secretary of State Business Entity Web Page Printout 
• Santa Rosa Business License Number 
• Selection Report 

IF APPLICABLE 

• Buy America Certifications 
• Lobbying Certifications 
• SAM.gov Web Page Printouts 
• Pre-Proposal Conferences 

o List of information made available 
o List of vendors attending 

110



Page 44 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

APPENDIX D: PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST 
 

Contract #:  Date: / /   
 

Project:  

Contract Term:    

TAB 1 - Project Identification: 

� Project planning and identification 
� Rationale for method of procurement 
� Selection of Contract Type 
� Written narrative of Procurement (over $100,000) 
TAB 2 - Solicitation Development: 

 
� Independent Cost Estimate 
� If only quotes required, check here 
� State or local government purchasing schedule 
� No geographic preferences 
� Solicitation and specification development 
� Appropriate supporting documentation 
� Attachment of required federal clauses and certifications 
� Bus Contract (less than five years) 
� Progress payments-Provisions for title to property (materials, work in progress, 

and finished 
� goods) 
� Other provisions (e.g. performance bond) 
TAB 3 - Solicitation and Bid Opening: 

 
� Advertisement of the solicitation (no geographic preference) 
� Approved Equals/Request for Clarifications process 
� Documentation of Pre-Bid Meeting 
� Proposal(s) opening and recording (if Sole Source, include justification) 
� Review of all proposals in accordance with selection criteria 
� Evaluation of all Proposals for responsiveness 
� Tabulation of Proposal documents including selection criteria 
� Cost or Price Analysis 
� Award Selection and Justification 
� Basis for contract price 
� No advanced payments 

o Advanced payment justification 
o FTA approval, if required 

� Progress Payments 

111



Page 45 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

� Written notice of activity approval given to proceed 
TAB 4 - Award and Contract Administration: 

 
� Progress Payments 
� Contract w/appropriate clauses and certifications. 
� Document “Change Orders” and associated “Cost or Price Analysis” 
� Modify and report to oversight agency the changes to milestones and anticipated 

closeout. 
TAB 5 - Project Closeout and Reimbursement: 

 
� Request documentation to advance to reimbursement process 
� Finalize milestones 
� Begin physical and administrative closeout proceedings 
� Review final project file for completeness and file away 
� Request approval for project closeout 

 
 

Procurement Complete : (Reviewer) 
 
 

Date: / /   

112



Page 46 of 50 

Attachment 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

May 18, 2022 
 

 

APPENDIX E: CHAPTER 10 OF CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION 
LOCAL ASSISTANCE PLANNING MANUAL 

 
 

(Attach Chapter 10 Here) 

113



                                                 ATTACHMENT 2 
                  AGENDA ITEM 10.3 

 

 
 
 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA or the “Authority”) will maintain 
sound contracting and procurement practices in accordance with all federal, state 
and local laws and direct its financial resources towards meeting NVTA’s long-term 
goals. 

 
NVTA will cultivate and further develop programs to ensure its long-term ability 
necessary to provide the level and quality of service required by the public. 

 
 

Board of Directors Approval Date: July 15, 2020 
 
 

Amendment Approval Date: May 18, 2022 

CHAPTER 5: CONTRACTING AND PROCUREMENT 

POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

114



ii  

CHAPTER 1 PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION .......................................................... 1 

A. STEP-BY-STEP GUIDE ............................................................................................................................ 2 

B. METHODS OF PROCUREMENT AND DELEGATION ............................................................................. 3 

1. Goods and Services ............................................................................................. 3 

2. Professional and Architectural/Engineering Services (A/E) .................................. 4 

CHAPTER 3 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RESPONSIBILITIES ........................... 4 

C. PROCUREMENT POLICIES ...................................................................................................................... 5 

1. Procurement Responsibility .................................................................................. 5 

2. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies ......................................... 7 

3. Maintenance & Oversight of Sub-Grantees .......................................................... 9 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT OF SUB-GRANTEES 9 

4. Purchasing Policies ............................................................................................. 10 

5. Bonding Requirements for Construction Contracts Exceeding One Hundred Fifty 
Thousand ($150,000) ................................................................................................. 14 

6. Public Records Act .............................................................................................. 16 

D. PROCEDURES .........................................................................................................................................16 

1. Independent Cost Estimate ................................................................................. 16 

2. Excluded Parties List ........................................................................................... 16 

3. Business References ........................................................................................... 17 

4. Reasonableness of Price – Price Analysis or Cost Analysis ................................ 18 

5. Best Value ........................................................................................................... 20 

6. Tag-ons ............................................................................................................... 20 

7. Piggybacking ....................................................................................................... 20 

9. Use of Brand Name ............................................................................................. 21 

10. Options ............................................................................................................ 21 

115



iii  

11. Advance Payments .......................................................................................... 22 

12. Progress Payments .......................................................................................... 22 

13. Procurement by Micro-Purchases .................................................................... 22 

14. Small Purchases .............................................................................................. 23 

15. Construction and Major Capital Purchases exceeding $4,000 ......................... 23 

E. COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT PROCESS .........................................................................................23 

1. Invitation for Bids (IFB) ........................................................................................ 25 

2. Recording of Bids ................................................................................................ 25 

3. Tabulation of Bids ................................................................................................ 25 

4. Analysis of Limited Bid Response ....................................................................... 25 

5. Determination of Responsiveness ....................................................................... 26 

6. Responsible Bidder Evaluation ............................................................................ 26 

7. Rejection of Individual Bids .................................................................................. 27 

8. Consultant Selection ............................................................................................ 27 

9. Develop Final Ranking and Notify Consultants of Results ................................... 29 

10. Adoption of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Local 
Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 10: Consultant Selection ............... 29 

11. Award of the Contract ...................................................................................... 29 

12. Project Completion ........................................................................................... 29 

13. Request for Qualifications (RFQ) / Request for Proposals (RFP) .................... 30 

14. Architectural / Engineering Services Request for Qualifications ....................... 33 

15. Sole Source Procurements .............................................................................. 34 

16. Emergency Procurements ................................................................................ 35 

17. Vendor Protest Procedures .............................................................................. 35 

F. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION GUIDELINES .......................................................................................37 

116



iv  

G. FEDERAL PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS AND STATE LAW .......................................................38 

APPENDIX LIST ............................................................................................................ 40 

A. FTA REQUIRED MODEL CLAUSES .....................................................................................................40 

B. DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS ..............................................................................40 

C. PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST .......................................................................................................40 

D. PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST ...............................................................................40 

APPENDIX A: FTA & FHWA REQUIRED CLAUSES .................................................. 41 

APPENDIX B: DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS ........................... 42 

APPENDIX C:  PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST .................................................... 43 

APPENDIX D: PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST ............................ 44 

APPENDIX E: CHAPTER 10 OF CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION 
LOCAL ASSISTANCE PLANNING MANUAL ............................................................... 46 

117



Page 1 of 50  

CHAPTER 1 PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION 
 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) has major responsibilities, which 
include the operation of a public transportation system and the planning, design and 
programming of transportation projects. All contracts are awarded by NVTA’s 
procurement officer, which is responsible for identifying the needs of NVTA and 
originating the procurement package for supplying those needs. NVTA receives transit 
funding from the federal government and the State of California, as well as other regional 
and local agencies and local contributions. NVTA will follow standard public agency 
contract law as set forth in California Government and Public Contract Codes for 
procurements that are funded with state or local revenues and do not have any federal 
funding. NVTA is further committed to meeting all requirements in FTA Circular 4220.1(F) 
and its successors for procurements that involve federal funds. These procurement 
policies and procedures are consistent with federal regulations and the laws of the State 
of California. These procedures also apply to any revenue contract whose primary 
purpose is to either generate revenues in connection with a transit-related activity, or to 
create business opportunities utilizing a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funded 
asset or other federally funded assets. 

 
The purpose of these policies and procedures is to set forth the procurement methods 
and establish standards for obtaining goods and services, including construction, 
professional, and architectural/engineering (A/E) services necessary for the operation of 
NVTA's transportation and planning services. These procedures include guidelines for 
the solicitation, award and administration of formally advertised contracts, as well as the 
consultant selection, negotiation, award and administration of competitively negotiated 
and A/E contracts. 

 
The procurement procedures are designed to: 

 
• Instill public confidence in the transit procurement process of NVTA; 
• Ensure fair and equitable treatment of all vendors who seek to do business with 

NVTA; 
• Ensure maximum open and free competition in the expenditure of public funds; 

and 
• Provide the safeguards to maintain a procurement system of quality and 

integrity. 
 

Methods to implement the foregoing are described in the remainder of this document and 
the attachments hereto. 

118

https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance


Page 2 of 50  

CHAPTER 2 GENERAL PROCUREMENT POLICY STANDARDS 
 

A. Step-by-Step Guide 

Step 1: The Project Manager (PM) must determine the following: 
 

1. Project scope; 
 

2. Expected cost of the procurement; 
 

3. Funding source(s) and whether the procurement is already 
budgeted; and 

 
4. Whether the procurement will be informal or formal. 

 
Step 2: For procurement type, PM should refer to the policies described herein. 

Any questions regarding the procurement process should be 
immediately discussed with the Executive Director (ED)/general 
counsel to ensure that the policies are being followed and adhered 
to. 

 
Step 3: The Administrative Technician (AT) is responsible for the administration 

of the procurement, which includes attaching the proper boiler plate 
agreements and clauses and obtaining the required review and 
approval(s), before initiating the procurement process. 

 
Step 4: Over a certain threshold, approval of the procurement by the Board. 

 
Step 5: Upon completion of the procurement process, execution of the contract 

prior to a notice to proceed, or initiation of work. 

119



Page 3 of 50  

B. Delegated Authority and Method of Procurement 
 

The proper delegated authority for execution of binding contracts, grants, and memoranda of 
understanding with external entities is mandatory to minimize financial, legal, operational, 
compliance-related risks for the benefit of the Agency. 
 
Given the extensive variety of contracts required in the course of Agency business, determination 
of appropriate signature authority and related requirements can be complex. All staff should be 
aware that the authority to execute binding contracts depends on the nature and complexity of 
the agreement, appropriate consultation with legal and management that might be affected by the 
agreement, and appropriate signature authority. 
 
 
 Only certain designated officers may sign agreements and other documents on behalf of NVTA. 
These individuals are: 

• The Executive Director 
• A Director (or equivalent) 
• Senior Management (or equivalent) 
• Project Manager’s (in certain cases)  

 
1. Goods and Services 

 
Definition: Procurements of services, supplies, or other property, with the 
exception of professional and A/E services or labor and/or materials for 
public works/construction projects. 

 
 

Contract Threshold 
Method of 

Procurement 
Required 

Approval Level 
 

Notes 
Less than $10,000 
(FTA)  

 
Micro Purchase Management / 

Project 
Managers 

With 
authorization 
from supervisor 

Up to $66,141 for 
2022, automatic 
annual increases 
based on CPI from the 
Department of 
Industrial Relations 

Small Purchase / 
RFP / IFB 

Executive 
Director/Senior 
Mgmt 

With signed 
authorization form 

Greater than $66,141 
or the current amount 

Various Board of 
Directors 

 

Less than or equal to 
$66,141 or the current 
amount 

 
Sole Source 

Executive 
Director or 
designee 

With signed 
authorization  

120



Page 4 of 50  

 
CUPCCAA Informal 
Bid Limit 
Up to $212,500 in 
2022 with automatic 
annual increases 
determined by the 
State of CA 

 
Construction Executive 

Director or 
designee 

Including 
UPCCAA*; 
single vendor 

Greater than UPCCAA 
Informal Bid Statutory 
Limit 

Construction Board of 
Directors 

 

Change Order 
approval authority 
granted at the time of 
contract approval. 

Change Orders Executive 
Director 
or 
designee 

 

 
*California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA). 

 
Modifications to contracts or purchase orders which represent no change in 
the scope of the character of material or services provided in the original 
contract or purchase order may be approved by the ED or PM if the 
cumulative dollar value of the modification and the original contract amount 
are within the ED award authority. 

 
NVTA may acquire products and/or services valued at $10,000 or less 
without obtaining competitive quotations. These purchases are exempt from 
FTA’s Buy America requirements Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, however, will apply to construction contracts exceeding FTA 
thresholds, even though the recipient uses micro-purchase procurement 
procedures. 

 
2. Professional and Architectural/Engineering Services (A/E) 

Professional services means services such as, but not limited to, the 
services of attorneys, physicians, architects, engineers, and other 
consultants or individuals or organizations possessing a high degree of 
technical skill. 

 
A/E means program management, construction management, feasibility 
studies, preliminary engineering, design, architectural, engineering, 
surveying, mapping, or related services. A/E services require the use of an 
A/E method of procurement. 

121



Page 5 of 50  

 
CHAPTER 3 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The Fiscal Officer or designee has primary responsibility for ensuring that the 
procurement process is in accordance with legal requirements and NVTA policy, as 
interpreted by Legal Counsel. The Executive Director or designee will be responsible, in 
accordance with the best administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the 
settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These 
issues include, but are not limited to, non-competitive/sole source evaluations, protests, 
disputes, and claims. All protests shall be processed in accordance with NVTA’s protest 
procedures. 

 
The Fiscal Officer Fiscal Officer is responsible for establishing material management 
policies and issuing instructions concerning the storage, distribution, and disposal of 
surplus property. 

 
All staff are instructed to follow the Contracting and Procurement Policy, Procedures, and 
Practices Manual, as well as instructions issued by the Fiscal Officer regarding the 
storage, distribution, and issuance of material. 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall execute contracts, purchase orders, 
modifications, and supplemental agreements in accordance with established thresholds. 

 
Implementation 

 
The Executive Director or designee shall implement the policies herein set forth. This 
manual serves to complement applicable higher authority (e.g., federal, state, and local 
government) procurement regulations and serves to provide staff with a primary frame of 
reference for all matters pertaining to NVTA’s procurement and contracting activities. To 
the extent possible, this manual establishes NVTA’s procurement processes, which cover 
the procurement of, accounting for, and disposal of surplus property (materials, 
equipment, buses, etc.). On items not covered herein or in the NVTA Procurement Policy 
and Procedures Manual, staff will consult with the Fiscal Officer and Administration for 
guidance. It also provides policy guidance on the procurement and contract administration 
of professional and other services. 

122



Page 6 of 50  

This manual further provides general guidelines in the conduct of procurements that 
require compliance with federal and/or state contracting standards. Such procurements 
are those that are funded by federal or state funds. 

 
C. Procurement Policies 

The Board of Directors (Board) is responsible for governing the operation of the 
agency including all procurement policies that serve as a basis upon which 
procurement procedures can be developed. 

 
1. Procurement Responsibility 

a. Contracts Administrator (CA) or equivalent 
 

The CA is responsible for maintaining all official contract files. 
The CA will be responsible for managing procurements and coordinating 
with the PM to ensure procurement files meet local, state, and federal 
requirements. 
The CA is responsible for updating these procurement procedures on an 
as-needed basis. 

i. The CA shall ensure that a clear and accurate specification / scope 
of work is developed for each procurement. 

 
ii. The CA shall not recommend that NVTA enter into a contract unless 

the CA has ensured that all applicable requirements of federal law, 
federal regulations and circulars, California law, and all other 
applicable procedures have been met. 

 
iii. The CA shall ensure that contractors receive impartial, fair, and 

equitable treatment in accordance with the policies specified in this 
manual. 

 
iv. The CA is also responsible for such tasks as writing, preparing and 

assembling contract documents; obtaining necessary pre-solicitation 
approvals; advertising RFP's and IFB's, issuing amendments, 
obtaining post-bid opening approvals for award, conducting 
investigations of proposed Contractor's past performance, conducting 
consultant selection meetings for negotiated contracts and conducting 
negotiations, consulting with Project Managers to monitor Contractor's 
performance, and managing termination for default or convenience 
procedures whenever the need arises. 

 
b. Project Manager (PM) and Procurement 

 
A Project Manager (PM) will be a duly appointed staff member directly 
responsible for the daily technical administration of a contract including 
monitoring the contractor in its performance of the contract and performing 

123



Page 7 of 50  

those functions as specified. The PM should be a responsible individual 
assigned to and familiar with the procedures and requirements of NVTA, 
general project management principles and state and federal procurement 
requirements. As such, the PM is the ED’s technical expert to assist in 
ensuring contractor compliance with technical requirements of the 
contract. Normally, the PM approves or disapproves the technical 
acceptability and timeliness of the work completed and the invoices 
submitted by the contractor for payment. 

i. The PM or his/her designee shall be the primary agency employee 
to determine that contract prices are fair and reasonable. 

 
ii. The PM is responsible for soliciting bids and proposals directly or 

working with the CA on such solicitation; for serving as the 
chairperson of pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences, qualification 
hearings and proposal evaluation meetings; for conducting contract 
negotiation sessions; for managing the non-technical aspects of post 
award contract administration including negotiation of modifications, 
claims, and supplemental agreements; and for maintaining 
procurement files. 

 
i. The PM shall ensure that sufficient unencumbered funds are 

available for obligation for each contract. 
 

a. The PM shall develop a clear and accurate specification / 
scope of work for each procurement. 

 
b. The PM is also the person to whom reports of warranted 

equipment malfunctions or failures, or any problems with the 
contractor's performance are submitted. The PM makes the 
initial request for contractor remedial action. The ED/counsel 
becomes involved when and if the lapse constitutes a serious, 
i.e., repetitive, or unresolved, breach of contractor's civil or 
contractual responsibility. 

 
c. Should the contractor fail to respond in a timely or adequate 

manner to rectify any problem, the PM notifies the CA and 
ED/counsel that an apparent breach of the contract exists. After 
investigating the situation, the ED/counsel and PM take any 
steps necessary and available to enforce NVTA's rights under 
the contract. This may include withholding payment, imposing 
liquidated damages, negotiation and recommending a 
settlement, terminating the contractor for default, or referring the 
matter for legal action. 

 
d. The PM also has the following duties in relation to the contract: 

124



Page 8 of 50  

i. Attends pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences as the 
technical expert; 

 
ii. Conducts investigations of proposed contractor's technical 

past performance; 
 

iii. Questions prospective contractors during clarifications and 
discussions as to their technical capability to perform the 
contract; 

 
iv. Assists the ED with contract negotiations; 

 
v. Ascertains the availability of funds prior to asking the ED to 

initiate the negotiation and approval process for change 
orders; 

 
vi. Contract modifications and supplemental agreements; and 

 
vii. Issues directions to correct or replace defective items of work. 

 
viii. Coordinates and communicates with CA and includes CA in 

necessary meetings, conferences, and written 
communications. 

 
2. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies 

All NVTA personnel involved in procurements will comply with NVTA’s procurement 
code of conduct as follows and any Code of Conduct or Conflict of Interest requirements 
set forth in applicable State or Federal law including but not limited to the requirements 
of 23 CFR 172.7 related to consultants acting in a management support role. 

 
1. Award and Administration of Contracts: No Board Member, officer, employee 

or agent of NVTA shall participate in the selection, award or administration of a contract 
(including purchase orders) if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved. 
Such a conflict would arise if any prospective vendor or contractor (or any 
subcontractor) considered for an award is: 

 

a. Board Member, officer, employee or agent; 
b. Any member of his/her immediate family; 
c. His/her domestic or business partner; 
d. An organization that employs any of the above, or with which any of them 

has an arrangement concerning prospective employment. 
 

No Board Member, officer, employee or agent of NVTA who participates in the 
procurement, management, or administration of contracts shall have, directly or 

125



Page 9 of 50  

indirectly, a financial or other personal interest in any contract made or influenced by 
him/her in his/her official capacity. 

 
No Board Member, officer, employee or agent of NVTA shall solicit or accept 

gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from consultants, vendors, contractors, 
or potential consultants, or parties to sub-agreements in excess of the applicable gift 
limit established by the Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”). Gifts shall be 
reported consistent with FPPC requirements. 

 
No person or entity performing services on behalf of NVTA shall have, directly or 

indirectly, any financial or other personal interest, other than employment or retention 
by NVTA, in any contract or subcontract. 

 
Violations of these standards may result in sanctions, or other forms of discipline 

up to and including termination. 
 

2. Disciplinary Action: The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines 
consistent with the NVTA Personnel Policies that will insure uniform application of 
progressive discipline for NVTA employees subject to disciplinary action “for cause.” 
The capitalized term “Employee” as used in Personnel Policies Chapter 2 Employment 
Status includes “Any person who occupies a position in the Agency service and 
receives compensation for services performed for the Agency.” 

 
Disciplinary Action for Cause: Disciplinary action against a NVTA Employee 
shall be for cause, as it may affect work performance and effectiveness within 
the organization. 

 
Procedures: 

 
a. Oral Reprimand: The Employee shall be counseled concerning the 
unsatisfactory areas of conduct and shall be informed about methods of 
improvement, or the Executive Director may issue an oral reprimand. The 
seriousness of the Employee’s conduct or offense will dictate whether oral or 
written reprimands or other corrective action is taken prior to initiating action to 
suspend or dismiss the Employee. 

 

b. Written Reprimand: In cases where an oral reprimand has not been 
successful or where the infraction of rules and regulations or conduct has been 
of a more serious nature as determined by the Executive Director, the Executive 
Director may employ the written reprimand. The purpose of the written 
reprimand is to call the attention of the Employee to serious defects in his/her 
conduct. The written reprimand should include a detailed statement of the 
problem and a notation to the effect that the problem was discussed with the 
Employee. Only the Executive Director may issue a written reprimand. 

 
  

126



Page 10 of 50  

c. Suspension with Pay: For more severe violations or continued, 
uncorrected performance or misconduct problems, an employee may be 
suspended without pay. Where suspension without pay is recommended for a 
permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a Skelly meeting and a 
post-disciplinary appeal. 

 

d. Demotion: The Agency may impose a demotion to a position having a 
lower salary range for disciplinary purposes. A disciplinary demotion may be 
utilized for continued, uncorrected performance deficiencies. Where demotion is 
recommended for a permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a 
Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. 

 
e. Discharge: Discharge will be considered for severe violations, failure to 
respond appropriately to prior performance improvement plans, and/or multiple 
disciplinary infractions in a short period of time. Where misconduct is severe and 
egregious, immediate discharge may be imposed. Where discharge has been 
recommended for a permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a 
Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. The discharge will be 
documented in the personnel file. 

 

Finally, NVTA employees, officers, and agents who are not subject to disciplinary 
action “for cause,” are covered by written “at-will” employment agreements or other 
contracts which allow for termination by NVTA for no reason or for any reason, 
including, but not limited to, violations of the standards set forth in this Section. This 
policy is in addition to any discipline statutorily available for those participating in the 
selection, award or administration of a contract if a conflict of interest exists. (Cal. Gov. 
Code, §§ 81000-91014.) 

 
3. Maintenance & Oversight of Sub-Grantees 

 
a. Responsibilities of Management and Oversight of Sub-Grantees 

 
As the designated recipient, NVTA staff are responsible for routinely monitoring 
procurements of the sub-grantees to ensure that each is aware of and complies with all 
applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements. This responsibility includes: 

 
• Applying for and receiving FTA grants on behalf of its sub-grantees and performing 

on-going project management. 
• Ensuring adherence to Federal program guidelines through contractual 

agreements with all sub-grantees. 
• Receiving, verifying, and submitting for reimbursements from the FTA for all 

eligible project expenses. 
• Passing through the reimbursements received from FTA for all eligible project 

expenses. 
• Receiving financial and status reports from all sub-grantees. 

127



Page 11 of 50  

• Completing financial and progress status reports in the FTA electronic grants 
management system (TrAMS). 

 
Other such grant administrative actions as necessary to ensure project completion in 
accordance with all applicable federal rules, regulations, and guidance. 

 
As the designated recipient of FTA Section 5307 funds, NVTA is responsible for ensuring 
that it and its sub-grantees or partners have established and maintain adequate internal 
controls over all functions which affect the implementation of a project utilizing such funds, 
including operating, accounting, financial, and administrative systems. To assure proper 
accountability for grant or cooperative agreement funds, internal controls used by sub- 
grantees shall be integrated with the management systems used by NVTA to regulate 
and guide its operations. 

 
Resources shall be used in accordance with all applicable state, local, and federal laws, 
regulations, and policies, as well as the terms of the grant or cooperative agreement. 
Resources shall be safeguarded against waste, loss, and misuse. In addition, reliable 
data on resource use and safeguards must be accumulated, maintained, and fairly 
disclosed in reports to the designated recipient manager and FTA. 

 
NVTA shall be responsible for monitoring sub-grantees no less than once per contract 
year and more often, should it be necessary. NVTA shall assist any of its sub-grantees in 
setting up the monitoring in order to ensure adherence to FTA guidelines. 

 
NVTA’s annual monitoring of its sub-grantees shall include a physical site visit to the 
location where the sub-grantee maintains its project records. The timing of the site visit 
shall occur six months from the beginning of any contract and occur at annual intervals 
while the contract is in force. Any deficiencies noted will result in more frequent 
inspections or the implementation of a corrective action plan until the deficiencies have 
been resolved. 

 
NVTA shall utilize the following procedures for monitoring sub-grantees: 

 
• Review of operation of project for scope of work accuracy and efficiency. 
• Review of the filing system, the system maintenance, and presence of grant 

information. 
• Review of the grant matching documentation. 
• Review of the sub-grantee’s Drug and Alcohol Policy. 
• Review of the sub-grantee’s Title VI Plan and access, if there are current 

complaints. 
• Review of marketing efforts associated with the project. 

4. Purchasing Policies 

a. Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action 

128



Page 12 of 50  

All procurement documents issued by NVTA require all interested vendors 
to certify: 

 
i. That the vendor does not discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment, because of race, religion, sex, age, creed, 
color, disability or national origin; 

 
ii. That the vendor is in compliance with all Executive Orders and 

federal, state and local laws regarding fair employment practices 
and non-discrimination in employment; and 

 
iii. That the vendor agrees to demonstrate positively and aggressively 

the principle of equal opportunity in employment. 
 

b. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
 

NVTA has adopted a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program as required by 
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) at 49 CFR Part 26. The DBE Program sets goals 
for DBE participation in federally-funded contracts, monitors these contracts to determine 
DBE participation, and reports DBE participation to FTA. NVTA informs its contractors of 
these goals and monitors DBE participation by subcontractors. 

 
The Procurement Officer and Contracts Administrator will implement procedures to seek 
involvement by Small and Minority and Women's Business Enterprises, irrespective of 
whether they qualify as DBEs, in NVTA’s procurement processes to the fullest extent 
practicable. 

 
Examples of procedures that may achieve that involvement may include: 

 
1. Including qualified small, women-owned, and minority businesses on 
solicitation lists; 

 
2. Assuring that small, women-owned, and minority businesses are solicited 
whenever they are potential sources; 

 
3. When economically feasible, dividing total requirements into small tasks or 
quantities so as to permit maximum small, women-owned, and minority business 
participation; 

 
4. Where the requirement permits, establishing delivery schedules which will 
encourage participation by small, women-owned, and minority businesses. 

 
5. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and 
the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and 

 
6. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the 
affirmative steps listed in subparagraphs (1) through (5) above. 

129



Page 13 of 50  

Disadvantaged business enterprises (DBEs) as defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 26 shall have 
the opportunity to compete fairly for contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal 
funds. Accordingly, all NVTA procurements funded with Federal funds may include, as 
appropriate, the use of goals for the procurement of all classes of goods and services, as 
set forth in NVTA’s DBE program. 
 
At the time the procurement takes place, the PM will coordinate with NVTA’s DBE Liaison 
Officer for the effective tracking of DBE information as it relates to NVTA’s DBE program, 
goals and reporting. 

 
c. Buy America 

 
Buy America regulations require that all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in 
the project are produced in the United States. Solicitations for steel, iron, and 
manufactured products must contain a Buy America certification, unless the procurement 
is subject to a general waiver or the small purchase waiver. Buy America requirements 
also apply to capital leases for rolling stock and related equipment. Buy America rules 
apply to utility work that is within the scope and budget of an FTA funded project. Buy 
America applies to the entire project, including contracts funded with non-Federal funds. 

 
General waivers are listed in Appendix A to 49 CFR 661.7 and include microcomputer 
equipment and software. The FAST Act amended 49 USC 5323(j)(13) to include a specific 
general waiver for purchases of not more than $150,000. 

 
The small purchase waiver provides that the term “small purchase” means a purchase of 
not more than $150,000. On September 16, 2016, the FTA Chief Counsel issued a Dear 
Colleague Letter regarding the small purchase waiver. Purchases made with FTA 
financial assistance, including capital, planning, or operating assistance, are subject to 
the waiver. The waiver applies both to purchases made directly by recipients or 
subrecipients and to purchases made by third-party contractors on behalf of the recipient 
or subrecipient. 

 
This provision of the FAST Act (or subsequent federal authorizations) applies to all 
purchases made after October 1, 2015. The $150,000 contract value is based on the total 
contract amount, including labor and options, and not just the value of the goods 
purchased. Also, recipients are not permitted to break up procurements in order to stay 
under the $150,000 threshold. Finally, if a solicitation may result in bids near $150,000, 
recipients should include the Buy America certifications in the solicitation, with a note 
clarifying that if the bid is more than $150,000, the bidder must certify per the Buy America 
requirements, but if the bid is $150,000 or less, no certification will be necessary. 

 
If a bidder or offeror certifies that it cannot comply with the Buy America requirements, 
then NVTA must request, receive, and retain a waiver from the FTA Chief Counsel’s 
Office before it may award a contract to that bidder or offeror. Buy America waivers are 
available on one of the following grounds: applying Buy America requirements would be 
inconsistent with the public interest; the materials produced in the United States are not 
produced in a sufficient and reasonably available quantity or are not of a satisfactory 

130



Page 14 of 50  

quality (i.e., non-availability waiver); or including domestic material will increase the cost 
of the overall project by more than 25 percent. 

 
Buy America statute applies to: 

 
• All purchases of steel, iron, and manufactured products greater than $150,000, 

regardless of whether they involve capital, operating, or planning funds 
• Contractors and subcontractors if the contract or subcontract is more than 

$150,000, including labor and options 
• Purchases made using an intergovernmental agreement and jointly purchased 

manufactured products 
• Purchases of used items 

For all procurements of more than $150,000, NVTA shall include in its bid or request for 
proposal an appropriate notice of the Buy America provision. Such specifications shall 
require, as a condition of responsiveness, that the bidder or offeror submit with the bid or 
offer a completed Buy America certificate in accordance with 49 CFR §§ 661.6 or 661.12 
of this part, as appropriate. 

 

NVTA will not obtain signed Buy America certifications after contract award for its own 
contracts or contracts of other grantees to make the contracts eligible for Federal funding. 
NVTA may, however, obtain signed Buy America certifications before buying off state 
GSA-type contracts to make them eligible for Federal funding. NVTA should consider the 
full GSA-type contract amount, not the amount of its purchase, when determining whether 
Buy America requirements apply to those purchases. 

 
d. Cooperative Procurement 

 
When circumstances warrant, NVTA may attempt to fill requirements through a 
cooperative purchasing agreement (without independent bids or quotations) with 
the State of California, or with other appropriate public agencies. In such cases, 
NVTA will ensure all state and federal requirements are met. 

 
e. Open Competition Required. 

 
All procurement transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition. Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition 
include, but are not limited to: 

 
i. Unreasonable requirements placed on firms in order for them to qualify to 

do business; 
 

ii. Unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements (see 5); 
 

iii. Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated 
companies; 

131



Page 15 of 50  

iv. Noncompetitive award to any person or firm on retainer contracts; 
 

v. Organizational conflicts of interest. An organizational conflict of interest 
means that because of other activities, relationships, or contracts, a 
contractor is unable or potentially unable, to render impartial assistance or 
advice to NVTA; a contractor’s objectivity in performing the contract work is 
or might be otherwise impaired; or a contractor has an unfair competitive 
advantage. 

 
vi. The specification of only a brand name product without listing its 

salient characteristics and not allowing an equal product to be offered; 
 

vii. Exclusionary or discriminatory specifications; and 
 

viii. Any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 
 

5. Bonding Requirements for Construction Contracts Exceeding One Hundred Fifty 
Thousand ($150,000) 

Bid Bond Requirements (Construction). 
 

1. Bid security - A Bid Bond must be issued by a fully qualified surety company 
acceptable to NVTA and listed as a company currently authorized under 31 CFR Part 
223 as possessing a Certificate of Authority as described thereunder. 

 
2. Rights Reserved – In submitting the Bid, it is understood and agreed by bidder that 
the right is reserved by NVTA to reject any and all bids, or part of any bid, and it is agreed 
that the Bid may not be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) days subsequent to the 
opening of bids, without the written consent of NVTA. It is also understood and agreed 
that if the undersigned bidder should withdraw any part or all of his bid within ninety (90) 
days after the bid opening without the written consent of NVTA , shall refuse or be unable 
to enter into the contract, as NVTA provided above, or refuse or unable to furnish 
adequate and acceptable Performance Bond and labor and Material Payments Bonds, 
as provided above, or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and acceptable insurance, 
as provided above, bidder shall forfeit the bid security to the extent of NVTA’s damages 
occasioned by such withdrawal, or inability to enter into an agreement, or provide 
adequate security therefore. 

 
It is further understood and agreed that to extent the defaulting bidder’s Bid Bond, 
Certified Check, Cashier's Check, Treasurer's Check, and/or Official Bank Check shall 
prove inadequate to fully recompense NVTA for the damages occasioned by default, then 
such bidder agrees to indemnify NVTA and pay over to NVTA the difference between the 
bid security and NVTA's total damages, so as to make NVTA whole. 

 
Performance and Payment Bonding Requirements (Construction). 

 
The Contractor shall be required to obtain performance and payment bonds as follows: 

132



Page 16 of 50  

1. Performance bonds 
 

a. The penal amount of performance bonds shall be 100 percent of the original 
Contract price, unless NVTA determines that a lesser amount would be adequate for the 
protection of NVTA. 

 
b. NVTA may require additional performance bond protection when a Contract price 
is increased. The increase in protection shall generally equal 100 percent of the increase 
in Contract price. NVTA may secure additional protection by directing the Contractor to 
increase the penal amount of the existing bond or to obtain an additional bond. 

 
2. Payment bonds 

 
a. The penal amount of the payment bonds shall equal: 

 
i. Fifty percent of the contract price if the contract price is not more than $1 million. 

 
ii. Forty percent of the contract price if the contract price is more than $1 million but 
not more than $5 million; or 

 
iii. Two and half million if the contract price is more than $5 million. 

 
b. If the original contract price is $5 million or less, NVTA may require 

additional protection as required by subparagraph 1 of the contract price 
is increased. 

 
Advance Payment Bonding Requirements 
The Contractor may be required to obtain an advance payment bond if the contract 
contains an advance payment provision and a performance bond is not furnished. NVTA 
shall determine the amount of the advance payment bond necessary to protect NVTA. 

 
Warranty of the Work 
1. The Contractor warrants to NVTA, the Architect and/or Engineer that all materials 
and equipment furnished under the Contract will be of highest quality and new unless 
otherwise specified by NVTA, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the 
Contract Documents. All Work not so conforming to these standards shall be considered 
defective. If required by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory 
evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. 

 
2. The Work furnished must be of first quality and the workmanship must be the best 
obtainable in the various trades. The Work must be of safe, substantial and durable 
construction in all respects. The Contractor hereby guarantees the Work against defective 
materials or faulty workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year after Final Payment 
by NVTA and shall replace or repair any defective materials or equipment or faulty 
workmanship during the period of the guarantee at no cost to NVTA. 

133



Page 17 of 50  

6. Public Records Act 

All bids and proposals received become the exclusive property of NVTA. At such time as 
a contract award is recommended to the NVTA Board of Directors, all bids and proposals 
become a matter of public record and shall be regarded as public records, with the 
exception of those elements in each proposal which are trade secrets as that term is 
defined in California Government Code 6254.7 and which are so marked as “TRADE 
SECRET,” “CONFIDENTIAL” OR “PROPRIETARY.” NVTA shall not in any way be liable 
or responsible for the disclosure of any such records or portions thereof, including, with 
limitation, those so marked if disclosure is deemed required by law or by an order of a 
court. Bids or proposals that indiscriminately identify all or most of the bid or proposal as 
exempt from disclosure without justification may be found technically unacceptable. 

 
D. Procedures 

 
1. Independent Cost Estimate 

An independent cost estimate (ICE) shall be performed on all FTA, state, 
local and general funded procurements prior to receiving bids or proposals. 
The process for obtaining a cost estimate will depend on the type of 
procurement being pursued. For example, a cost estimate for a micro 
purchase (see explanation below) may only involve phone calls to obtain 
price quotes; while a cost estimate for the procurement of a commuter bus 
would require a more involved process to assess the market and to develop 
a reasonably accurate estimate. The cost required to research and prepare 
the estimate should not outweigh the potential benefits of the estimate. An 
ICE can be obtained from different sources including the following: 

• Published competitive prices 

• Results of competitive procurements 

• Estimates by in-house estimators 

• Outside estimators 

The ICE will be included in the procurement records. All construction bids will require 
an engineering estimate as part of the plans, specifications and engineering phase of 
the project. 

 
2. Excluded Parties List 

Any procurement, contract or vendor contract exceeding $25,000 is subject 
to the federal Excluded Parties List (EPLS/SAM). 

 
After all qualified bids or quotes have been opened the EPLS/SAM 
database must be referenced, which contains all businesses that have been 
barred or suspended from receiving federal funds or participating in federal 
contracts. The CA will perform an SAM business name search on each of 

134



Page 18 of 50  

the businesses for specific procurements. The CA will perform the 
EPLS/SAM search for procurements in which federal transit funding will be 
utilized. 

 
i. If a business reference returns a positive listing on the SAM, a printout 

of the web page will be included in the procurement file, while a second 
copy will be forwarded to the bidding business with a notice that they 
have been removed from consideration in the procurement. 

 
ii. If the SAM search returns no listing on a specific business, a copy of the 

web page, showing the negative return, will be made and included in the 
procurement file. 

 
3. Business References 

a. CA Secretary of State Business Entity Search 
 

Prior to final award or completion of a draft contract (pre-counsel review), 
the CA will perform a Business Entity search on the California Secretary 
of State’s website (http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/ in 2013), to confirm the 
business is registered to do business in the State of California. 

 
i. If the business is not listed on the Secretary of State’s website, a 

business representative will be notified of their status and be 
provided 30 calendar days to either correct the listing, or provide 
documentation that they have submitted an application to the 
Secretary of State and are pending approval. 

 
ii. If the business is registered in the State of California as a legal 

business, a copy of the web page listing will be included in the 
procurement file. If the procurement requires any kind of contract 
with NVTA, a second copy will be included with the contract 
documents prior to them being forwarded to NVTA Attorney for final 
review prior to award. 

 
b. Business License Reference 

 
Prior to final award or completion of a draft contract (counsel review), 
the CA will contact NVTA’s Finance Department (FD) to confirm that the 
business has a valid business license. 

 
i. If the business has a valid license, a license number will be recorded 

in the procurement file and, if a contract, will be forwarded to counsel 
with the draft contract. 

135

http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/


Page 19 of 50  

ii. If the business does not have a valid business license, they will be 
referred to the FD to discuss their services and the process for 
obtaining a license. 

 
4. Reasonableness of Price – Price Analysis or Cost Analysis 

In all FTA, state, local, and general funded procurements, a price analysis 
or cost analysis shall be used to determine the reasonableness of the bid 
price. A price analysis will normally be used to evaluate reasonableness. 
However, if a valid price analysis cannot be completed, a cost analysis of a 
bid price may be conducted. 

 
a. Price Analysis 

 
“Price analysis” is the process of examining and evaluating a 
prospective price without evaluation of the separate cost elements or 
proposed profit of the prospective supplier. 

 
Normally, price analysis may be accomplished through one or more of 
the following activities: 

 
i. Comparison of prices received in a bidding situation; 

 
ii. The comparison of prior quotations and contract prices with current 

quotations for the same or similar end items (to provide a suitable 
basis for comparison, appropriate allowances must be made for 
differences in such factors as specifications, quantities ordered, time 
for delivery, etc.); 

 
iii. The use of "yardsticks" (such as dollars per pound, per horsepower, 

or other units) to point out apparent gross inconsistencies which 
should be subjected to greater pricing inquiry; 

 
iv. The comparison of prices set forth in published price lists issued on 

a competitive basis, published market prices of commodities, and 
similar indicators, with discount or rebate arrangements; 

 
v. The comparison of proposed prices with estimates of cost 

independently developed by personnel within NVTA; or, 
 

vi. The comparison of prices paid by other users (government or 
commercial) of the same or similar items to the proposed prices. 

 
b. Cost Analysis 

 
“Cost analysis” is the review and analysis of a contractor's cost or pricing 
data and of the factors applied in projection from the data to the 
estimated costs in order to form an opinion on the degree to which the 

136



Page 20 of 50  

contractor's proposed costs represent the cost of performance of the 
contract, assuming reasonable economy and efficiency. 

 
As compared to price analysis, cost analysis involves a more detailed 
review of the contractor’s/offeror's proposal. 

 
Normally, cost analysis may be accomplished through the following: 

 
i. Verify contractor's cost data. 

 
ii. Evaluate specific elements of costs and project these elements to 

determine the effect on prices of such factors as: 
 

(i) The necessity for certain costs; 
 

(ii) The reasonableness of amounts estimated for the necessary 
costs; 

 
(iii) Allowances for contingencies; and 

 
(iv) The basis used for allocations of particular overhead costs to the 

proposed contract. 
 

iii. When the necessary data is available, compare the contractor's 
estimated cost with: 

 
(i) Actual costs previously incurred by the contractor; 

 
(ii) The contractor's last prior cost estimate for the same or similar 

estimates; 
 

(iii) Current cost estimates from other possible sources; and 
 

(iv) Prior estimates or historical costs of other contractors 
manufacturing the same or similar items. 

 
iv. Forecasting future trends in costs from historical experience: 

 
(i) In periods of either rising or declining costs, an adequate cost 

analysis must include some evaluation of the trends. 
 

(ii) In cases involving recently developed, complex equipment, even 
in periods of relative price stability, trend analysis of basic labor 
and materials costs should be undertaken. 

 
In performing a cost analysis, there are three questions that should be 
asked in the examination of costs, particularly those in the overhead area: 

137



Page 21 of 50  

i. Is the cost allowable in accordance with guidelines in Section 31 of the 
Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR)(2)? 

 
ii. Is the cost allocable to the particular project? 

 
iii. Is the cost reasonable? 

 
If only one bid is received, the sole bidder must cooperate with NVTA as 
necessary in order for its bid to be considered for award. A new solicitation 
of bids may be made if the single bid price appears unreasonable or if no 
determination is made as to the reasonableness of the single bid. 

 
5. Best Value 

"Best Value" is a selection process in which proposals contain both price and qualitative 
components, and award is based upon a combination of price and qualitative 
considerations. Qualitative considerations may include technical design, technical 
approach, quality of proposed personnel, and/or management plan. The award selection 
is based upon consideration of a combination of technical and price factors to determine 
(or derive) the offer deemed most advantageous and of the greatest value to the agency. 

 
6. Tag-ons 

 

“Tag-on” is defined as the addition of work (supplies, equipment or 
services) that is beyond the scope of the original contract that amounts to a 
cardinal change. “In scope” changes are not tag-ons. 

 
The use of tag-ons is prohibited and applies to the original buyer as well as 
to others. 

 
7. Piggybacking 

"Piggybacking" is an assignment of existing contract rights to purchase 
supplies, equipment, or services. 

 
Piggybacking is permissible when the solicitation document and resultant 
contract contain an assignability clause that provides for the assignment of 
all or a portion of the specified deliverables as originally advertised, 
competed, evaluated, and awarded. If the supplies were solicited, competed 
and awarded through the use of an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity 
(IDIQ) contract, then both the solicitation and contract award must contain 
both a minimum and maximum quantity that represent the reasonably 
foreseeable needs of the party(s) to the solicitation and contract. If two or 
more parties jointly solicit and award an IDIQ contract, then there must be 
a total minimum and maximum. Piggy-backing requires pre approval of an 
assignment by NVTA and approval of the contractor or consultant. 

 
8. Shared Services 

138



Page 22 of 50  

Any Member Agency may utilize an NVTA contract for supplies or services 
subject to the following requirements. 

 
a. The Master Contract between NVTA and the contractor or 

consultant must be final and effective for the term required. 
b. The Master Contract must provide that Member Agencies may 

individually contract for the supplies or services covered by the 
agreement directly with the Contractor or Consultant. 

c. NVTA shall enter into an agreement with the Member Agency for 
shared services. 

1. Member Agencies utilizing shared services must agree to 
indemnify and defend NVTA for all liability resulting from the 
use of a Master Agreement or as a result of any supplies or 
services contracted for by the Member Agency. NVTA will not 
be a party to the Sub-Agreement. 

 
d. The Member Agency must complete the Member Agency Sub- 

Agreement with the Contractor or Consultant. 
 

1. Sub-Agreements may allow for Member Agencies to include 
additional insurance requirements or require a scope of work be 
attached to the Member Agency Sub-Agreement. 

2. The Sub-Agreement must be signed by the Member Agency 
authorized signatory and by the Contractor or Consultant. 
Member Agencies shall work directly with the Contractor or 
Consultant to negotiate and finalize scope, pricing, billing and 
terms of service. 

 
9. Use of Brand Name 

When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements, a “brand name or equal” 
description may be used as a means to define the performance or other 
salient characteristics of procurement. The specific features of the named 
brand which must be met by offerors shall be clearly stated. 

 
10. Options 

NVTA may include options in contracts. An option is a unilateral right in a 
contract by which, for a specified time, a grantee may elect to purchase 
additional equipment, supplies, or services called for by the contract, or may 
elect to extend the term of the contract. If NVTA chooses to use options, the 
requirements below apply: 

 
a. Evaluation of Options 

139



Page 23 of 50  

The option quantities or periods contained in the contractor's bid or offer 
must be evaluated in order to determine contract award. When options 
have not been evaluated as part of the award, the exercise of such 
options will be considered sole source procurement. 

 
b. Exercise of Options 

 
i. NVTA must ensure that the exercise of an option is in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of the option stated in the initial 
contract awarded. 

 
ii. An option may not be exercised unless NVTA has determined that 

the option price is better than prices available in the market or that 
the option is the more advantageous offer at the time the option is 
exercised. 

 
iii. Options must be evaluated at the time of the original bid, and the cost 

basis for exercising the option must be established at the time of the 
bid. 

 
iv. Option prices and/or conditions cannot be negotiated at the time of 

the exercise of an option. 
 

11. Advance Payments 

NVTA does not authorize and will not participate in funding payments to a 
contractor prior to the incurrence of costs except as allowed by FTA 
requirements. There is no prohibition on NVTA’s use of local match funds 
for advance payments. However, advance payments made with local funds 
before a grant has been awarded, or before the issuance of a letter of no 
prejudice or other pre-award authority, are ineligible for reimbursement. 

 
12. Progress Payments 

NVTA may use progress payments provided the following requirements 
are followed: 

 
a. Progress payments are only made to the contractor for costs incurred 

in the performance of the contract. 
 

b. NVTA must obtain adequate security for progress payments. Adequate 
security may include taking title, letter of credit or equivalent means to 
protect NVTA’s interest in the progress payment. 

 
13. Procurement by Micro-Purchases 

Purchases below $3,000 may be made without obtaining competitive 
quotations if it is determined by the PM that the price is fair and reasonable. 

140



Page 24 of 50  

The PM will document how this determination was derived. The Davis- 
Bacon Act applies to public works/construction contracts exceeding $2,000. 

 
14. Small Purchases 

For goods and other professional services procurements between $3,000 
and $100,000, insofar as is practical, no less than three bids shall be 
solicited. Oral quotes will be accepted with written confirmation received in 
24 hours. The responsibility for soliciting quotations rests with the PM. 
Appropriate documentation, including but not limited to a list of the vendors 
contacted, a fair and reasonable price determination and the quotes 
received, shall be filed with the project documentation. 

 
15. Construction and Major Capital Purchases exceeding $4,000 

a. Major FTA-funded capital projects must further follow FTA’s 
Construction and Project Management Guidelines: 

 
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/fta-project-and- 
construction-management-guidelines-2016 

 
b. Major FHWA/State-funded projects must further follow Caltrans’ Local 

Assistance Guidelines: 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm 

 

c. Additional references and procedures can also be found at: 
 

Caltrans Construction Manual (July 2017 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/constmanual/ 

 

Construction Contract Standards 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/construction_standards.html 

 

Caltrans Engineering Guidelines, Manuals and Training 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/guidance.html 

 
E. Competitive Procurement Process 

Ensuring Most Efficient and Economic Purchase 
 

Proposed procurements must be reviewed by NVTA staff to avoid purchase of 
unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or 
breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. 

 
When appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease vs. purchase alternatives to 
determine the most economical approach. 

 
Additionally, to ensure sufficient procurement planning and forecasting, consideration 
should be given to establishing contractual relationships with suppliers and obtaining bids 

141

https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/fta-project-and-construction-management-guidelines-2016
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/fta-project-and-construction-management-guidelines-2016
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/constmanual/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/construction_standards.html
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/guidance.html


Page 25 of 50  

on repetitive purchase items—for example, parts or shelter repairs—to ensure 
competitive pricing based upon economies of scale. Grouping and bidding these 
purchases will ensure favorable pricing based on economies of scale. Creating blanket 
agreements will lead to a decrease in prices and an increase in efficiency. 

 
Restricted or Prohibited Contracting Methods – The following contract types are 
prohibited or restricted, as dictated by 2 CFR Part 200- Uniform Guidance: 

 
• Cost Plus a Percentage of Cost – The use of Cost Plus a Percentage of Cost contracts 

is expressly prohibited as a method of contracting. 
• Time and Materials – NVTA staff may exercise the use of a Time and Materials 

contract only after determining that no other contract type is suitable and if the contract 
specifies a ceiling price that the contractor may not exceed except at its own risk. 

 
Procurement by Sealed Bids/Invitation for Bid (IFB) 

 
1. For sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions should be present: 

 
a. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is 

available; 
 

b. Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for 
the business; 

 
c. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of 

the successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price; and 
 

d. No discussion with bidders is needed. 
 

2. If this procurement method is used, the following requirements apply: 
 

a. The invitation for bids will be publicly advertised and bids shall be solicited from 
an adequate number of known suppliers, providing them sufficient time to prepare bids 
prior to the date set for opening the bids; 

 
b. The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and pertinent 

attachments, shall define the items or services sought in order for the bidder to properly 
respond; 

 
c. All bids will be publicly opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation 

for bids; 
 

d. A firm fixed-price contract award will be made in writing to the lowestresponsive 
and responsible bidder. 

 
e. Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented business reason. 

142



Page 26 of 50  

This method of procurement may be utilized for the purchase of vehicles and equipment. 
The sealed bid method is the preferred method for procuring construction if the conditions 
in paragraph (1) above apply. 

 
The procurement files will contain an explanation for the choice of the procurement 
process being used. 

 
1. Invitation for Bids (IFB) 

The CA will work through the ED/PM and counsel for the release of all 
 

a. RFPs for goods and service; 
b. release of professional service contracts; and 
c. capital projects. 

 
NVTA procurement procedures and FTA guidance will be followed for IFB 
procurements. 

 
2. Recording of Bids 

To assist in having a complete record of the procurement history, for all IFBs records of 
the bid number, bid opening date and time, general description of the procurement item, 
names of bidders, prices bid, and any other information required for bid evaluation, shall 
be kept in the official procurement file and be available for public inspection. When the 
items are too numerous to warrant the recording of all bids completely, an entry shall be 
made of the invitation number, opening date and time, general description of the 
procurement items, and the total price bid where definite quantities are involved. 

 
The official record shall be completed as soon as practical after bids have been opened 
and read aloud. CA shall be responsible for maintaining files of these records and 
abstracts for goods and service, professional services, and capital projects. 

 
3. Tabulation of Bids 

Bids shall be evaluated on the basis of responsiveness and responsibility indicated in the 
IFB. Award shall be made to the bidder submitting the lowest bid, unless NVTA 
determines that the bid is not responsive and/or the bidder is found to be not responsible. 

 
4. Analysis of Limited Bid Response 

If one (1) bid has been received, the PM or CA will contact vendors to determine reasons 
for the single bids. The purpose of this examination is to ascertain and document the 
reason for the single bid. If the determination is that the IFB restricted competition, the 
procurement may be rebid. A price or cost analysis shall be performed to establish the 
reasonableness of the bid price before an award is made. 

143



Page 27 of 50  

5. Determination of Responsiveness 

a. Any bid which fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation for 
bids, such as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required bid documents, 
shall be rejected as non-responsive. 

 
b. The originals of all rejected bids, and any written findings with respect to such 
rejections, shall be preserved in the file relating to the procurement. 

 
6. Responsible Bidder Evaluation 

Before awarding the contract, NVTA shall determine that a prospective contractor is 
responsible and that prices are reasonable. Bidders may be asked to provide any 
information required to determine the responsibility of the bidder. A responsible bidder is 
one who meets the standards set forth below: 

 
a. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as 
required during performance of the contract. 

 
b. Is able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance schedule, 
taking into consideration all existing business commitments. 

 
c. Has a satisfactory record of performance. Contractors who are, or have been 
seriously deficient in current or recent contract performance, when the number of 
contracts and the extent of deficiency of each are considered, may be considered to be 
non-responsible bidders. Documented past unsatisfactory performance will ordinarily be 
sufficient to justify a finding of non-responsibility. 

 
d. Is otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 
e. Has the necessary organization, experience, operational controls, and technical 
skills, or the ability to obtain them. 

 
f. Has the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment and 
facilities, or the ability to obtain them. 

 
Evaluation of the responsibility of prospective contractors may be made based upon the 
following sources: 

 
i. A list of debarred, suspended or ineligible firms or individuals. 

 
ii. From the prospective contractor's bids and proposals, replies to questionnaires, 
financial data such as balance sheets, profits and loss statements, cash forecasts, and 
financial histories of the contractor and affiliated concerns; current and past production 
records, list of tools, equipment, and facilities, written statements or commitments 
concerning financial assistance and subcontracting arrangements. 

144



Page 28 of 50  

iii. Publications, including credit ratings, trade and financial journals, and business 
directories and registers may also be used. 

 
iv. References such as suppliers, subcontractors, customers of the prospective 
contractor, banks and financial institutions, commercial credit agencies, other 
government agencies, purchasing and trade associations, and better business bureaus 
and chamber of commerce. 

 
v. Documented past performance on contracts with NVTA. 

 
The procurement files will document the determination of responsive and responsible 
bidders. 

 
7. Rejection of Individual Bids 

Any bid that fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation for bids, such 
as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required bid documents, shall be 
rejected as non-responsive. 

 
8. Consultant Selection 

This procurement procedure usually involves a single step process with issuance of a 
request for proposal (RFP) to all interested consultants. For non-A&E consulting 
contracts, a cost proposal shall be part of the RFP and the selection criteria. For A&E 
contracts, the cost proposal is not requested until the consultants have been final ranked 
based upon their submitted technical proposal. 

 
Appoint Consultant Selection Committee 

 
A consultant selection committee with a minimum of three members is appointed at the 
beginning of the consultant selection process. The committee reviews materials 
submitted by consultants, develops a shortlist of qualified consultants, and develops a 
final ranking of the most qualified proposals. Representation on the committee includes 
the Contract Administrator and subject matter experts from the project’s functional area. 
The members should be familiar with the project/segment to be contracted out and with 
the local agency standards that will be used in the contract. Participation by a Caltrans 
district representative is at the option of the agency and subject to availability of the DLAE 
staff. Caltrans participation on the interview panel does not relieve the local agency of its 
responsibility to ensure that proper procurement procedures are followed and all 
requirements are met. 

 
Local agency Contract Administrator ensures that all committee members meet the 
conflict of interest requirements (23 CFR 172) by completing and signing a conflict of 
interest statement prior to selection process initiation. 

 
Develop Technical Criteria for Evaluation of Proposals 

 
The Contract Administrator is responsible for developing the technical criteria, and their 
relative importance which are used to evaluate and rank the consultant proposals. In- 

145



Page 29 of 50  

State or local preference shall not be used as factor in the evaluation, ranking, and 
selection phase. All non-technical evaluation criteria, including DBE participation, shall 
not exceed 10 percent (23 CFR 172.7(a)(1)(iii)(D)). All price or cost related items which 
include, but are not limited to, cost proposals, direct salaries/wage rates, indirect cost 
rates, and other direct costs are prohibited from being used as evaluation criteria. 
The criteria and relative weights must be included in the RFP, and the same criteria and 
relative weights must be used in the evaluation sheets. Failure to include criteria and 
relative weights and to use the same criteria and weights during the evaluation will result 
in the contract costs being ineligible for federal or state reimbursement. Exhibit 10-B: 
Suggested Consultant Evaluation Sheet is a recommended evaluation sheet with criteria 
and rating points for A&E consultants, where cost is not used as a rating factor. This 
format is not mandatory, but it is recommended in the interest of developing consistency 
among the hundreds of agencies and consultants operating in the state. The local agency 
should consult with the DLAE before making major changes to the suggested approach. 

 
9. Develop Final Ranking and Notify Consultants of Results 

The selection committee evaluates each proposal; interviews the three or more 
highest ranked consultants (short listed) if noted in solicitation; and develops a final 
ranking of the highest ranked consultants. All consultants that submitted proposals 
must be informed about the final ranking of consultants. It is important that all 
competing consultants receive the same information. 

 
Most consultants will request information as to why they were not the highest ranked. 
The local agency may have an established procedure adopted for conducting 
debriefings but may also consider the following: The selection committee should keep 
notes as to why a particular consultant was not selected. When a consultant requests 
debriefing, the reasons for not being selected must be objective reasons. The 
consultant should not be compared to others and should not be provided with 
information about other consultants during this debriefing. Normally, the Contract 
Administrator does the debriefing; however, any member of the selection committee 
may be designated to do the debriefing. 

 
10.  Adoption of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Local 

Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 10: Consultant Selection 

Pursuant to 23 CFR 172.5, the NVTA, as a sub-recipient of funding from Caltrans, shall 
adopt Chapter 10 of the LAPM.  See Appendix E. 

 
11. Award of the Contract 

Unless all bids are rejected, award shall be by written or electronic notice, 
within the time for acceptance specified in the bid or extension thereof, to 
the responsible and responsive bidder whose bid, conforming to all the 
material terms and conditions of the IFB, is the lowest in price. 

 
When award is made to other than the lowest bidder, NVTA will document 
in the procurement files the reason for not choosing the lowest bid. 

146



Page 30 of 50  

 
12. Project Completion 

All original documentation related to each procurement such as the IFB, bid, 
control record, board report, ICE, background data, evaluation criteria and 
scores, meeting reports/notes, as well as the logs documenting bid opening 
dates and bid receipt dates will be submitted to the CA for storage when the 
file becomes inactive. For audit purposes, complete procurement files will 
be maintained for a minimum of five (5) years after the project is closed out 
and completed unless a different time period is mandated by a funding 
entity. 

 
13. Request for Qualifications (RFQ) / Request for Proposals (RFP) 

The Request for Proposals (RFP)/Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
competitive procurement process is used when conditions are not 
appropriate for the use of an IFB. The latter is generally the case in the 
purchase of services such as lease agreements, maintenance and service 
contracts, rental contracts, and professional service contracts. The 
RFQ/RFP process for goods and services is coordinated by the CA and 
managed by the PM. The RFQ/RFP process for professional services is 
managed by the PM and the PM shall consult the latest federal and state 
procedures for the procurement process. 

 
The RFQ/RFP process is a competitive negotiated procurement process 
that requires evaluation of offeror’s proposed costs and understanding of 
the contract performance requirements in accordance with established 
evaluation criteria. The competitive negotiated procurement process does 
not require award to the lowest offeror. 

 
a. Pre-qualified Contractor Lists 

 
NVTA staff will ensure that all lists of pre-qualified persons, firms, or products that are 
used in acquiring supplies, equipment, and services are current and include enough 
qualified sources to ensure maximum full and open competition. Also, NVTA staff will 
not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period—from the 
issuance of the solicitation to its closing date. 
NVTA may issue a RFQ or RFP in order to create a pool of qualified consultants that will 
be placed on a “pre-qualified list” for future services or consulting contracts with NVTA. 
Pre-qualified consultant lists shall not be utilized for any contract subject to award to the 
lowest responsible bidder pursuant to State law. Pre-qualified consultants will remain 
eligible for consideration and contract negotiation on an as-needed basis for three years 
from the pre-qualification notification date. This date may be extended by NVTA in its sole 
and absolute discretion for an additional two years for a total of five years. Pre- qualified 
consultants are not guaranteed a contract. NVTA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, 
to utilize other authorized procurement methods for services or consulting contracts and 
to not use the pre-qualified list process. 

147



Page 31 of 50  

NVTA may make lists of prequalified consultants available for use by it’s Member 
Agencies. Member Agencies should check with the NVTA Contract Manager to determine 
if pre-qualified lists are available. Each Member Agency must enter into an agreement 
with NVTA prior to utilizing a prequalified list that indemnifies NVTA for any liability 
resulting from the use of the prequalified list or as a result of any contract between a 
Member Agency and a pre-qualified consultant. 

 

b. Each Member Agency may issue a Request for Proposals to 
consultants on the pre-qualified list, reflecting the Member 
Agency’s individual contracting requirements and Scope of Work. 
Member Agencies are responsible for ensuring that the competitive 
process and any resulting contract meets all applicable state, local and 
federal requirements. Member Agencies will be responsible for 
processing and negotiating their RFP and any resulting contract award. 
NVTA will not be a party to any contract between a Member Agency 
and a pre-qualified consultant.  
 
Issuance of RFQP and RFP Packet 

 
The RFQ/RFP packet will include the following: 

 
i. Instructions To Proposers - General instructions concerning the 

proposal format, pre-contractual expenses, contract conditions, pre- 
proposal conferences, and other information. 

 
ii. Attachments - Required forms to be completed by the proposer and 

submitted with the proposal. 
 

iii. Exhibits - These can be documents which display key facts, 
specifications, maps, report formats, and other important information 
to clearly define the goods or services needed in order for the 
proposers to properly respond to the RFQ/RFP. 

 
iv. Scope of Work - Each RFQ/RFP will contain a statement or scope of 

work prepared by the PM which provides a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements for the materials, products, 
or services being produced. A statement or scope of work should 
only state the actual minimum needs of NVTA, and be developed in 
a manner designed to promote full and open competition. At a 
minimum, the statement or scope of work should address the 
following areas: 

 
(i)  A detailed description of the work to be performed outlining 

various tasks or phases to be performed, and defining the limits 
of the proposed project; 

 
(ii) A requirement for periodic reporting or progress on the project if 

the procurement involves consultant or professional services; 

148



Page 32 of 50  

 
(iii) A proposed delivery schedule; and, 

 
(iv) A proposed contract period. 

 
v. Evaluation Criteria – Each RFQ/RFP will contain the criteria and 

method that will be used to select the successful proposer. If the 
selection is to be made by lowest price, that will be stated in the 
solicitation documentation. If the selection process will be a “best 
value” determination, the solicitation will state so and the relative 
significance of each criteria will also be included in the solicitation 
document. 

 
(i) Evaluation criteria will be developed and fully modeled prior to 

the release of the RFP, along with the development of any 
scoring methodology/forms to be used by the evaluation panel. 
Any consideration of price in the criteria will include separate 
evaluation for operations and maintenance (O&M) costs, and 
capital/procurement costs, placing emphasis on the impact of 
O&M costs to NVTA. 

 
c. Control Record 

 
A control record will be maintained by the CA in the procurement file as 
RFP packets are distributed to prospective bidders. The control record 
profiles the following information: 

 
i. Date and time RFQ/RFP packets are distributed. 

 
ii. Names and addresses of vendors receiving the RFQ/RFP and if 

applicable vendors attending a pre-proposal conference. 
 

The control record serves as a mailing list for the issuance of addenda 
and provides a record for verification in cases of vendor protests and 
other issues. 

 
d. Pre-Proposal Conference 

 
A pre-proposal conference may be used as a means of briefing 
prospective proposers and explaining complicated specifications and 
requirements to them as early as possible after the RFQ/RFP has been 
issued and before the proposals are received. Any information 
distributed at the pre-proposal conference will be made available to all 
other prospective proposers in a reasonable time prior to the closing of 
the bid period, and a copy will be maintained in the procurement file. A 
roster of attendees at the pre-proposal conference will also be 
maintained in the procurement file as part of the control record. NVTA 
will never require vendor attendance at a pre-proposal conference as 
eligibility for submitting a qualified proposal. 

149



Page 33 of 50  

 
e. Evaluation and Selection Process 

 
Proposals submitted in response to the RFQ/RFP will be evaluated by 
an Evaluation Committee established by NVTA, in accordance with the 
criteria set forth in the RFQ/RFP. The Evaluation Committee shall score 
the proposals and make a recommendation for award of the contract. 
Original scoring forms, or summary records of the Evaluation Committee 
scoring, will be maintained in the procurement file. 

 
14. Architectural / Engineering Services Request for Qualifications 

The Architectural/Engineering RFQ/RFP process or the RFQ qualifications- 
based process will be used for the procurement of architectural and 
engineering (A/E) services and related services such as program 
management, construction management, feasibility studies, preliminary 
engineering, design, surveying, mapping, or related services. 

 
Following this method, competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the 
most qualified competitor is selected subject to negotiation of fair and 
reasonable compensation. Under this method, NVTA may not consider 
price as an evaluation factor in determining the most qualified offeror. 
Negotiation is conducted with only the most qualified offeror. This method, 
where price cannot be used as an evaluation factor and negotiations are 
conducted with only the most qualified offeror, can only be used in 
procurement of the above services. This method of procurement cannot be 
used to obtain other types of services even through a firm that provides the 
above types of services are also potential sources to perform other services. 

 
a. Issuance of an “A/E” RFQ 

 
A notice of an RFQ will be prepared by the CA and will be advertised as 
a public notice in a newspaper of general circulation and/or in an 
electronic format on a website that is accessible by the public and 
vendor community. Additional sources for posting the A/E RFP may 
include national and state print or online transit community publications. 

 
b. Pre-proposal Conference 

 
A pre-proposal conference may be used as a means of briefing 
prospective proposers and explaining complicated specifications and 
requirements to them as early as possible after the RFQ has been 
issued and before the proposals are received. Any information 
distributed at the pre-proposal conference will be made available to all 
other prospective proposers in a reasonable time prior to the closing of 
the bid period, and a copy will be maintained in the procurement file. A 
roster of attendees at the pre-proposal conference will also be 
maintained in the procurement file. NVTA will require vendor attendance 

150



Page 34 of 50  

at a pre-proposal conference. 
 

c. Evaluation and Contract Negotiation 
 
The steps to be used for proposal evaluation and contract negotiation 
for A/E and related services solicitations are as follows: 

 
i. A qualified evaluation committee shall be established by the PM to 

review eligible firms and all responses to a RFQ. The evaluation 
committee is briefed by the PM on NVTA procedures and instructed 
to maintain confidentiality about the proposal evaluation process. 

 
ii. Evaluation Committee evaluates the firms based on: 

 
(A) Professional qualifications for performance of the required 

services; 
 

(B) Specialized experience and technical competence in the type 
work required; 

 
(C) Capacity to accomplish the work in the required time; and, 

 
(D) Past performance in terms of cost control, quality of work and 

compliance with performance schedules. 
 

iii. Evaluation team ranks the proposers and if necessary holds 
discussions with the most highly qualified firms ("short list"). 

 
iv. Evaluation team prepares a selection report listing in order of 

preference, those firms that are considered to be the most highly 
qualified to perform the required services. The report should include 
a description of the discussions and evaluations by the team to allow 
the review of the basis upon which the recommendations were made. 
A copy of the selection report will be maintained in the procurement 
file. 

 
v. The final selection shall be made by the PM or ED. 

 
15. Sole Source Procurements 

Sole source procurement is a purchase accomplished through solicitation 
or acceptance of a proposal from only one source; or, if after solicitation of 
a number of sources competition is determined inadequate. A sole source 
purchase must be documented as to the reasons why only one supplier is 
acceptable. 

 
Sole source procurement may be used only when the award of a contract 
is infeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed bids, or competitive 

151



Page 35 of 50  

proposals and at least one of the following circumstances applies: 
 

a. The item is available only from a single source;  
The public exigency or emergency (i.e., a threat to public health, welfare, 
safety, property or other substantial loss to NVTA, or a situation requiring 
immediate action by NVTA, as determined by NVTA) for the requirement 
will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation; 

 
b. FTA authorizes noncompetitive negotiations; 

 
c. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined 

inadequate; or 
 

d. The item is an associated capital maintenance item as defined in 49 
U.S.C. § 5307(a)(1) that is procured directly from the original 
manufacturer or supplier of the item to be replaced. The grantee must 
first certify in writing to FTA: 

 
i. That such manufacturer or supplier is the only source for such item; 

and 
 

ii. that the price of such item is not higher than the price for such item 
by like customers. 

 
A cost analysis must be conducted before an award of sole source contract. 

 
The reasons for the sole source procurement and the cost analysis will be 
documented in the Procurement File. 

 
16. Emergency Procurements 

Emergency procurements (defined as purchases immediately necessary for 
the preservation of life or property, or to prevent an immediate termination 
of a critical NVTA function or activity) will be handled immediately and 
expedited as required. The ED has the authority to approve the purchase 
of all goods and services in emergency conditions. If the ED is unavailable 
to authorize an emergency procurement, the ED may provide the PM with 
the necessary authorization. Upon completion of the emergency 
procurement, the PM will document the actions taken and execute a proper 
requisition. 

 
17. Vendor Protest Procedures 

Protest procedures will be included directly or by reference in all 
procurements. For procurements under $100,000 vendors need to be 
directed to NVTA’s website where a copy of the protest procedures can be 
obtained. For procurements over $100,000 the protest procedures will be 
included in the procurement solicitation. 

 

152



Page 36 of 50  

NVTA Protest Procedures 
A protest must be submitted by an Interested Party no later than seven 
(7) business days prior to the date and time designated for submittal of 
bids or proposals or within 5 business days after the allegedly aggrieved 
person or party is notified of the intent to award or recommend award of 
the contract. If the fifth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday it shall 
be submitted by 5:00 p.m. the following business day. All protests must 
be in writing and shall contain the following: 

 
• the procurement title and/or number under which the protest is made; 
• the name and address of the allegedly aggrieved party; 
• a detailed description of the specific grounds for the protest and all 

supporting documentation; 
• the specific ruling or relief requested; and 
• the written protest shall be addressed to Executive Director, NVTA, 

625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559 with copies sent to all other 
bidders. 

 
1) Response to Protest. 

 
i. Upon receipt of a timely written protest, the ED will consider the 

protest in accordance with established procedures and promptly 
issue a written decision stating the reasons for the action taken 
and informing the allegedly aggrieved person of his/her right to 
appeal the decision to the Chairman of the Board. 

 
ii. The decision made by the ED shall be final and conclusive unless 

appealed in writing to the Board Chair within 5 business days of 
receipt by the protestor. The Board Chair will consider the appeal 
and promptly issue a written decision, which shall be final and 
conclusive. 

 
iii. A Protestor may not commence litigation prior to exhausting all 

administrative remedies. Failure to exhaust all administrative 
remedies shall constitute an absolute waiver of the protestor's 
right, if any, to commence litigation. 

 
iv. Failure to comply with these protests and appeal requirements 

will render a protest or an appeal untimely or inadequate and may 
result in its rejection by NVTA. 

 
v. After the exhaustion of all administrative remedies, the protestor 

shall have 10 calendar days to commence litigation. Failure to 
commence litigation within this limitation shall constitute an 
absolute waiver of the protestor's right. State laws permit NVTA 
to award and execute the Contract during this 10-day period. 

153



Page 37 of 50  

vi. Public Work/Construction Contracts. For construction contracts 
awarded by the NVTA Board, the protesting party may appear 
and be heard at the meeting during which the contract is 
scheduled for award. In the event a protesting party has been 
declared non-responsible, the protesting party is entitled to a 
public hearing before the Board. 

 
a. Written Protest Procedures for FTA Funded Projects 

 
(Only if Federal Transit Administration funds are used in the 
procurement) 

 
All disputes relating to NVTA for FTA procurements will be addressed as documented in 
Article 

 
Appeals and Remedies. In all instances where a protest is received in regards to a 
contract required to comply with PTA Circular 4220.lF, as may be amended, NVTA is 
required to disclose information regarding the protest to FTA. All protest decisions must 
be in writing. A protester must exhaust all administrative remedies with NVTA before 
pursuing a protest with FTA. 

 
FTA protest reviews will be limited to: 1) NVTA's failure to have, or to have followed, its 
protest procedures, or its failure to review a complaint or protest; or 2) violations of federal 
law or regulation. An appeal to FTA must be received by the cognizant FTA regional or 
Headquarters Office within 5 business days of the date the Protester knew or should have 
known of an adverse decision by NVTA or other bases of appeal to FTA. Violations of 
federal law or regulation will be handled by the complaint process stated within that law 
or regulation. Violations of State or local law or regulations will be under the jurisdiction 
of the State or local authorities. 

 
CHAPTER 4 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

 
F. Contract Administration Guidelines 

1. NVTA will originate the agreement. 
 

2. Once a contract has been fully executed, a Notice to Proceed will be issued 
to initiate contract work. 

 
3. All agreements will be assigned a contract number, which must be referred 

to on all orders and the contractor’s invoices. 
 

4. PM, ED and FD will approve all invoices before payment is issued. 
 

5. For each contract over $100,000 a contracting administrator will be 
assigned to monitor contract terms and conditions. The contract 
administrator and the project manager should not be the same individual. 

154



Page 38 of 50  

6. A contract amendment is necessary for a change in scope of work, term or 
compensation and must be completed before additional work or payment is 
authorized. 

 
7. A copy of the procurement document must be included with the contract 

files, including an explanation of the process used in procuring the goods or 
services. 

 
8. The ED/PM will prepare a letter of completion for the NVTA Board of 

Director’s approval and recorded with the Napa County Recorder’s office. 
 

G. Federal Procurement Requirements and State Law 

The formation of contracts shall conform to the Federal Transit Administration's 
(FTA) Third Party Contracting Guidance, as contained in FTA Circular 4220.lF, 
and applicable California State law, whichever is more stringent. Any 
subsequent changes or amendments to either the Circular or State law after the 
effective date of this Procurement Policy shall be incorporated into said Policy 
by this reference. 

 
The procurement rules dispersed throughout this Policy are extracted from, or 
fashioned after, FTA Circular 4220.F, and Third Party Contracting Guidance. 

 
The aforementioned Circular applies to all FTA grantees and sub-grantees that 
contract with outside sources under NVTA-assisted programs. This Circular sets 
forth the requirements that NVTA, as a grantee, must adhere to in the 
solicitation, award, and administration of its FT A-assisted third party contracts. 

 
If a grantee accepts FTA operating assistance, the requirements of this Circular 
apply to all transit-related third party Purchase Orders and contracts awarded 
with only that portion of operating funds specifically allocated to the property or 
services being procured. These requirements do not apply to procurements 
undertaken in support of capital or non-capital projects completely 
accomplished without PTA funds, or to those operating and planning contracts 
awarded by grantees that do not receive FTA operating and planning 
assistance. 

 
Conformance with State and Local Law. NVTA shall use its own procurement 
procedures that reflect applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided 
that the procurements conform to applicable federal law, including the 
requirements and standards identified in FTA Circular 4220.lF. 

 
Self-Certification. The FTA intends to rely primarily on grantees' ''self- 
certifications" that their procurement system meets FTA requirements to support 
the required finding that a grantee has the technical capacity to comply with 
Federal procurement requirements. Consequently, the Executive Director must 
self-certify NVTA procurement system in the FTA Annual 

155



Page 39 of 50  

Certification/Assurance Process when applying for grants. The FT A will monitor 
compliance as part of its routine oversight responsibilities. 

 

APPENDIX LIST 
 

A. FTA Required Model Clauses 
 

B. Determination of Price Reasonableness 
 

C. Procurement File Checklist 
 

D. Procurement Documentation Checklist 

156



Page 40 of 50  

APPENDIX A: FTA & FHWA Required Clauses 
 

The FTA requires certain contract provisions for each procurement depending on the 
nature, type and value of the procurement. As the federal government makes regular 
updates to procurement guidelines and the clauses required in such, the CA will reference 
the required clauses tables provided by the FTA either through the Best Practices 
Procurement Manual (BPPM) or the Triennial Review Program latest workshop workbook 
available through the FTA website. 

 
• Best Practices Procurement Manual 
• Third Party Contract Requirements – FTA Circular 4220.1F (or most recent) 
• FTA Frequently Asked Questions Procurement and Contracting 

 
 
 

The FHWA requires certain contract provisions for each procurement depending on the 
nature, type and value of the procurement. As the federal government makes regular 
updates to procurement guidelines the PM shall reference the applicable provisions as 
outlined in the current edition of the Local Assistance Procedures Manual issued by 
Caltrans. 

 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm 

157

https://www.transit.dot.gov/resources/procurement/best-practices-procurement-manual
https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%20%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/third-party-procurement/third-party-procurement-faqs
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm


Page 41 of 50  

APPENDIX B: DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS 
 
 

PO/Contract Number: (If applicable) 
 

Vendor:   
 

Items Purchased:   
 

The price(s) paid for item(s) received under this purchase are determined to be fair and 
reasonable, based on the following (as checked): 

 

Ο Adequate competition 

Ο Current price lists 

Ο Catalog price 

Ο Prices found reasonable on recent previous purchases 

Ο Advertisements 

Ο Similar items in a related industry 

Ο Independent price estimate (based on a good understanding of what the item 
should cost) 

Ο Other basis. Explain Below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By:    
 
 
 

Date:    

158



Page 42 of 50  

APPENDIX C: PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Procurement Summary Memo (utilize template) 
 

• General Description of the Procurement Item 
• Explanation of the choice of procurement being used 
• Federal Clauses and Certifications Checklist 
• Bid Number 
• Procurement Control Record 

o Date/Time RFP is distributed 
o Names/Addresses of Vendors receiving such 

• Independent Cost Estimate 
• Price/Cost Analysis 
• Bid Opening Date/Time 
• Names of Bidders 
• Bid prices 
• Determination of Responsive and Responsible Bidders 
• Bid Evaluation Information 
• Original scoring forms, or summary records of the Evaluation Committee scoring 
• Reason for not choosing the lowest bid, if such is not chosen 
• California Secretary of State Business Entity Web Page Printout 
• Santa Rosa Business License Number 
• Selection Report 

IF APPLICABLE 

• Buy America Certifications 
• Lobbying Certifications 
• SAM.gov Web Page Printouts 
• Pre-Proposal Conferences 

o List of information made available 
o List of vendors attending 

159



Page 43 of 50  

APPENDIX D: PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST 
 

Contract #:  Date: / /   
 

Project:  

Contract Term:    

TAB 1 - Project Identification: 

� Project planning and identification 
� Rationale for method of procurement 
� Selection of Contract Type 
� Written narrative of Procurement (over $100,000) 
TAB 2 - Solicitation Development: 

 
� Independent Cost Estimate 
� If only quotes required, check here 
� State or local government purchasing schedule 
� No geographic preferences 
� Solicitation and specification development 
� Appropriate supporting documentation 
� Attachment of required federal clauses and certifications 
� Bus Contract (less than five years) 
� Progress payments-Provisions for title to property (materials, work in progress, 

and finished 
� goods) 
� Other provisions (e.g. performance bond) 
TAB 3 - Solicitation and Bid Opening: 

 
� Advertisement of the solicitation (no geographic preference) 
� Approved Equals/Request for Clarifications process 
� Documentation of Pre-Bid Meeting 
� Proposal(s) opening and recording (if Sole Source, include justification) 
� Review of all proposals in accordance with selection criteria 
� Evaluation of all Proposals for responsiveness 
� Tabulation of Proposal documents including selection criteria 
� Cost or Price Analysis 
� Award Selection and Justification 
� Basis for contract price 
� No advanced payments 

o Advanced payment justification 
o FTA approval, if required 

� Progress Payments 

160



Page 44 of 50  

� Written notice of activity approval given to proceed 
TAB 4 - Award and Contract Administration: 

 
� Progress Payments 
� Contract w/appropriate clauses and certifications. 
� Document “Change Orders” and associated “Cost or Price Analysis” 
� Modify and report to oversight agency the changes to milestones and anticipated 

closeout. 
TAB 5 - Project Closeout and Reimbursement: 

 
� Request documentation to advance to reimbursement process 
� Finalize milestones 
� Begin physical and administrative closeout proceedings 
� Review final project file for completeness and file away 
� Request approval for project closeout 

 
 

Procurement Complete : (Reviewer) 
 
 

Date: / /   

161



Page 45 of 50 

APPENDIX E: CHAPTER 10 OF CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION 
LOCAL ASSISTANCE PLANNING MANUAL 

(Attach Chapter 10 Here) 

162



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Amendment 7 to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Agreement No. 
NVTA 12-08 for the Position of Executive Director 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Amendment 7 to 
the NVTA Agreement No. NVTA 12-08 (Attachment 1). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In June 2012, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority executed the above-referenced 
Agreement with Catherine Miller, Executive Director outlining the terms and conditions of 
her employment with NVTA.  The Executive Director’s employee performance evaluation 
began in February 2022 and included closed session discussion at NVTA Special Meeting 
held on May 9, 2022. The evaluation process is complete, and the parties desire to amend 
the agreement to adjust employee salary to $243,921 effective January 1, 2022.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  Yes, the contract will result in an increase to the NVTA 
budget of $13,811 annually. 

163



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM: Laura Sanderlin, Office Manager/Board Secretary  
REPORT BY: Laura Sanderlin, Office Manager/Board Secretary (707) 259-8633 / 

Email: lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov 
SUBJECT: Amendment 7 to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

Agreement No. NVTA 12-08 for the Position of Executive Director 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Amendment 7 to 
the NVTA Agreement No. NVTA 12-08 (Attachment 1). 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In June 2012, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority executed the above-referenced 
Agreement (Attachment 1) with Catherine Miller, Executive Director outlining the terms 
and conditions of her employment with NVTA.  In April 2014, the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority approved Amendment 1 to the Agreement.  In July 2015, the 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority approved Amendment 2 to the Agreement.  In June 
2016, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority approved Amendment 3 to the 
Agreement. In November 2017, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority approved 
Amendment 4 to the Agreement. In June 2019, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
approved Amendment 5 to the Agreement. In April 2021, the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority approved Amendment 6 to the Agreement.  
 
The Executive Directors performance evaluation included closed sessions on February 
16, 2022 and May 9, 2022.  The evaluation process is now complete and the Chair is 
recommending a salary increase as stated below. All other existing employment 
provisions and employee benefits would remain unchanged.  Amendment 7 to Contract 
NVTA 12-08 will amend the contract’s compensation section as follows: 
 
January 1, 2022 – the Executive Director’s salary will be adjusted to $243,921 annually 

164

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda                                 Wednesday, March 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.4 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to approve Amendment 7 to the NVTA Agreement No. NVTA 
12-08 and the current Agreement would remain in place. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
(1) Draft Amendment 7 to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Agreement No. 
NVTA 12-08 

165



 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 7 TO 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 
AGREEMENT NO. NVTA 12-08 

 
This amendment Number 7 (“Amendment”) to Agreement No. NCTPA (now NVTA) 

12-08  is made and entered into by Napa Valley Transportation Authority (“NVTA”), a joint 
powers agency organized under the laws of the State of California, and Catherine Miller 
(“Employee”) effective as of the last date of execution of this amendment as shown below. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, On June 18, 2012, NVTA executed the above-referenced Agreement 
12-08 with Employee for the position of Executive Director; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Parties amended Agreement 12-08 on April 16, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties amended Agreement 12-08 on July 15, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties amended Agreement 12-08 on June 16, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties amended Agreement 12-08 on November 11, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties amended Agreement 12-08 on June 12, 2019; and  
 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties amended Agreement 12-08 on April 21, 2021 (Agreement 

12-08 together with its amendments are collectively referred to hereinafter as the 
“Agreement”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the parties initiated the Employee performance evaluation in February 
2022 and have held closed session meetings periodically thereafter including at NVTA 
Special Meeting on May 9, 2022: and 
 

TERMS 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties amend the Agreement as set forth below: 
 
1. Section 3.1 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

3.1 Salary. Employer agrees to pay Employee a base salary of $243,921 
($117.27 per hour) effective January 1, 2022, payable retroactively to Employee for the 
period. Employee shall receive a single lump sum payment of the additional 
compensation amount owed to Employee for that period of time, to be paid no later than 
four (4) weeks after execution of this Amendment. 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

May 18, 2022 

166



NVTA Agreement No. 12-08 
Amendment 7 

Page 2 of 2 

 

2. The Parties agree that all other terms and conditions of the Agreement not
amended by this Amendment shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to the Agreement have caused this 
Amendment to Agreement to be duly executed on their behalf by their authorized 
representatives.  

Dated: ___________ By_______________________________________ 
CATHERINE (KATE) MILLER 
“EMPLOYEE” 

Dated: ___________ NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, 
a joint powers agency 

By_______________________________________ 
ALFREDO PEDROZA 
Chairman of the Board of the Directors, “NVTA” 

Attest: 

____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

Approved as to Form: 

______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

167



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) FY 2021-22 Q3 Financial Review and 
Delegated Authority Matrix. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the FY 2021-22 
Q3 Financial Review and Delegated Authority Matrix. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report provides NVTA’s financial position as of end of March 2022 and delegated 
authority contracts signed thus far in the fiscal year.  Attachment 1 includes detailed 
financial information for the first three quarters of the current fiscal year assessing the 
agency’s performance to budget.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None.   

168



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Roxanna Moradi, Senior Financial Analyst  

(707) 259-8781 / Email: rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) FY 2021-22 Q3 
Financial Review and Delegated Authority Matrix 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the FY 2021-22 
Q3 Review and Delegated Authority Matrix. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
NVTA’s financial records are composed of three (3) funds; the Planning Fund also known 
as the Congestion Management Agency (CMA) or the General Fund, the Transit Fund, 
and a fiduciary fund - the Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA).  TFCA is a pass-through 
fund and does not contribute to the agency’s financial performance.  
 
Attachment 1 summarizes the financial performance and includes detailed financial 
information assessing the agency’s performance to budget through the third quarter of 
the fiscal year.   
 
  

169

mailto:rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority            Agenda Item 10.5 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE – Q3 FY 2021-22 
 
Congestion Management Agency - Budget vs. Actuals 
 
The General Fund or Planning Fund (CMA) recognized a total of $4,989,091 in revenues, 
or 35% through the third quarter.  The main sources of revenue were from Transportation 
Development Act advances, reimbursements from Caltrans for the Soscol Junction 
project, One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) planning funds, and incremental revenues.  
 
Recognized revenues are also trending below budget due to the delay inherent in funding 
that is paid on a reimbursement basis. Staff expects to revenues to be near or at budget 
by the end of the fiscal year. 
 
Planning fund expenses totaled $4,336,326 by the end of Q3, or 31% of the expense 
budget. Staff expects to be under budget for the year due to projects not commencing by 
the end of the fiscal year.   Personnel costs were below a 75% budget marker at 52% by 
Q3, or $1,610,486, due to vacancies and are likely to stay under budget because of those 
open positions.  
 
By the end of Q3, consulting services accounted for $1,969,405 in expenses, or 19% of 
the line item’s budget at Q3.  In Q3, most of the consultant costs were related to Soscol 
Junction, Vine Trail design, and SR29 design improvements. Soscol Junction alone 
accounted for about 80% of total expenses. Significant year-to-date administration 
expenses includes shared services totaling about $112,000; legal services totaling about 
$87,000; building maintenance costs at approximately $90,000. Staff anticipates 
expenses will remain under budget for the remainder of the year. 
 
Public Transit (Transit Fund) - Budget vs. Actuals 
 
Total transit operating revenues were $9,204,718 by Q3.  The fund has received about 
100% of the annual Transportation Development Act (TDA) operating advances for transit 
for the fiscal year. Farebox at the end of Q3 totaled nearly $412,000. Federal revenues 
totaled $3,888,720 which was from federal stimulus funding for transit operations.  
Additionally, NVTA has received $223,578 in Regional Measure 2.    
 
Overall, operating expenses in the Public Transit fund totaled $7,415,155.  The primary 
expense categories were purchased transportation at $5,519,543 and fuel at $816,605 
composing 85% of the transit expenditures. It is anticipated Purchased Transportation 
costs will still be under budget by the end of the fiscal year due to reduced services as a 
result of driver shortages. The second highest budgeted expense is fuel, which at the end 
of the second quarter has an 82% utilization rate and it will likely exceed the line-item 
budget due to increased fuel costs.  
 
 

170



Napa Valley Transportation Authority            Agenda Item 10.5 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Capital Purchases 
 
Total capital expenses and revenues totaled approximately $3.8 million. The bus 
maintenance facility project received nearly $1.4 million in revenues to cover costs that 
have been incurred thus far. Imola Park and Ride has also received about $1.7 million for 
costs incurred.  Additionally, TDA capital disbursements were received for the CAD/AVL 
system and bus replacement for the Creative Bus Sales purchase, to replace Bus 253.  
The five BYD electric buses will be delivered and recognized as a capital investment in 
Q4.  
 
LTF-TDA Outlook 
 
NVTA regularly participates in sales tax meetings with HdL Companies to obtain sales 
tax projections for planning purposes for TDA as well as for Measure T.  The last meeting 
took place in the beginning of May, which included a review of receipts from the months 
of October through December 2021 (FY22 Q2).  Compared to the previous year, Q2 FY 
2022, sales tax was up by 21.8%. Most of the growth is attributed to restaurants and 
hotels increased activity and fuel stations – growth in sales tax from fuel stations for this 
quarter was notably driven by increased quantity rather than increases in prices, which 
primarily occurred in the third quarter of the fiscal year.  The recovery of sales tax 
generations persists, and staff will continue to monitor trends.  
 
 
Executive Director Delegated Authority 
 
The Board currently authorizes the Executive Director up to $49,999 in delegated 
authority for any single purchase and up to $175,000 for construction expenses. Table 1 
presents delegated authority expenditures.   

171



Napa Valley Transportation Authority            Agenda Item 10.5 
May 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Table 1: Delegated Authority Matrix for FY 21-22. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
None 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 
 
The quarterly financial update is a way to monitor agency activities and evaluate 
consistency with the annual budget in order to give the public confidence about the 
agency’s fiduciary responsibilities.   
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
(1) FY 2021-22 Q1-Q3 Financial Statements  

172



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

Consolidated  Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   YTD Total   Budget vs Actual 

 Percent of 

Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax 7,920,741 ‐  7,920,741 2,266,504             1,552,588               3,211,525           7,030,617  890,124  88.76%

41410 Sales and Use Tax ‐ Capital ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

43790 State‐Other Funding 4,759,532 ‐  4,759,532 ‐  ‐ 1,541,590           1,541,590  3,217,942 32.39%

43890 Federal‐Other Funding 8,214,787 ‐  8,214,787 649,337                2,512,250               1,433,151           4,594,738  3,620,049 55.93%

43910 County of Napa ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

43950 Other‐Governmental Agencies 2,292,440 ‐  2,292,440 ‐  227,292                  101,367              328,659  1,963,781 14.34%

45100 Interest 84,800  ‐  84,800  12,392 15,579  16,137                 44,108 40,692  52.01%

46800 Charges for Services (Farebox) 2,316,700 ‐  2,316,700 132,332                103,975                  181,188              417,495  1,899,205 18.02%

46830 Calistoga & CTBID Contribution 55,000  ‐  55,000  ‐  ‐ 40,000                 40,000 15,000  72.73%

47150 Other Grants ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

47400 Insurance Settlement ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

48100 Sale of Capital Assets ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 2,401  2,401 (2,401) 

49900 Intrafund Revenue 200,000  ‐  200,000  ‐  91,629  102,709              194,338  5,662  97.17%

4* Total Revenues 25,844,000             ‐  25,844,000             3,060,565         4,503,313           6,630,068        14,193,946                  11,650,054             54.92%

Expenses

51100 Salaries and Wages 2,032,800 ‐  2,032,800 275,845                472,704                  396,847              1,145,397  887,403  56.35%

51110 Extra Help 200,000  ‐  200,000  21,051 13,602  ‐  34,653 165,347  17.33%

51115 Overtime ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

51200 401A Employer Contribution 24,500  ‐  24,500  ‐  ‐ 12,732                 12,732 11,768  51.97%

51205 Cell Phone Allowance 9,000  ‐  9,000  1,130  1,610  1,635  4,375 4,626  48.61%

51300 Medicare 42,300  ‐  42,300  4,215  6,935  5,606  16,755 25,545  39.61%

51400 Employee Insurance‐Premiums 325,000  ‐  325,000  80,412 81,585  80,514                 242,510  82,490  74.62%

51405 Workers Compensation 7,900  ‐  7,900  ‐  ‐ 2,671  2,671 5,229  33.81%

51410 Unemployment Compensation ‐  ‐  ‐  86  71  1,785  1,943 (1,943)  0.00%

51600 Retirement 353,800  ‐  353,800  73,504 40,644  33,126                 147,274  206,526  41.63%

51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 42,000  ‐  42,000  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  42,000  0.00%

51990 Other Employee Benefits 53,700  ‐  53,700  ‐  ‐ 2,176  2,176 51,524  4.05%

51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits 3,091,000                ‐  3,091,000                456,243             617,150               537,092           1,610,485  1,480,515                52.10%

52100 Administration Services 5,000  ‐  5,000  227  212 267  706  4,294  14.11%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 84,900  ‐  84,900  8,159  37,258  27,103                 72,520 12,380  85.42%

52130 Information Technology Service 186,200  ‐  186,200  28,425 28,425  28,425                 85,276 100,924  0.00%

52131 ITS‐Communication Services 25,800  ‐  25,800  5,314  5,314  5,314  15,941 9,860  61.78%

52140 Legal Services 101,000  ‐  101,000  23,820 29,045  34,348                 87,213 13,787  86.35%

52150 Temporary/Contract Help ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

52310 Consulting Services 10,156,700                 ‐  10,156,700                 106,947                1,119,391               770,288              1,996,625  8,160,075 19.66%

52325 Waste Disposal Services 19,100  ‐  19,100  4,029  4,029  8,180  16,239 2,861  85.02%

52335 Security Services 19,700  ‐  19,700  3,389  11,192  5,716  20,297 (597)  103.03%

52340 Landscaping Services 13,500  ‐  13,500  975  7,124  975  9,074 4,426  67.22%

52360 Construction Services ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

52490 Purchased Transportation 9,548,700 ‐  9,548,700 747,960                3,204,404               1,567,178           5,519,543  4,029,157 57.80%

52500 Maintenance‐Equipment 120,000  ‐  120,000  56,248 166,618                  12,953                 235,819  (115,819) 196.52%

52505 Maintenance‐Buildings/Improvem 100,000  ‐  100,000  14,078 39,787  36,415                 90,280 9,720  90.28%

52510 Maintenance‐B&I‐PW Charges ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

52515 Maintenance‐Software 155,500  ‐  155,500  3,500  76,018  446,771              526,289  (370,789) 338.45%

52520 Maintenance‐Vehicles 57,000  ‐  57,000  12,232 19,632  43,722                 75,585 (18,585) 132.61%

52600 Rents and Leases ‐ Equipment 7,000  ‐  7,000  1,871  1,498  1,764  5,133 1,867  73.33%

52605 Rents and Leases ‐ Bldg/Land 8,000  ‐  8,000  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  8,000  0.00%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums 460,300  ‐  460,300  3,584  6,358  71,986                 81,928 378,372  17.80%

52800 Communications/Telephone 27,100  ‐  27,100  5,208  4,781  14,196                 24,184 2,916  89.24%

52810 Advertising/Marketing 114,500  ‐  114,500  1,190  8,543  36,226                 45,960 68,540  40.14%

52820 Printing & Binding 31,000  ‐  31,000  13,903 9,190  40,431                 63,524 (32,524) 204.92%

52825 Bank Charges 18,700  ‐  18,700  123  3,213  2,294  5,631 13,069  30.11%

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 8,700  ‐  8,700  3,123  1,884  1,535  6,542 2,158  75.20%

52900 Training/Conference Expenses 25,000  ‐  25,000  6,630  11,131  4,994  22,755 2,245  91.02%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 27,500  ‐  27,500  ‐  66  560  626  26,874  2.28%

53100 Office Supplies 65,100  ‐  65,100  2,621  6,322  21,789                 30,731 34,369  47.21%

53110 Freight/Postage 3,000  ‐  3,000  1,656  265 376  2,298 702 76.59%

53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 6,000  ‐  6,000  3,648  1,128  7,406  12,183 (6,183)  203.05%

53120 Memberships/Certifications 50,000  ‐  50,000  5,567  1,545  52,745                 59,857 (9,857)  119.71%

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric 31,000  ‐  31,000  4,334  26,032  10,410                 40,776 (9,776)  131.54%

53220 Utilities ‐ Water 25,000  ‐  25,000  3,673  3,146  2,518  9,338 15,662  37.35%

53250 Fuel 1,001,000 ‐  1,001,000 205,445                309,164                  302,114              816,722  184,278  81.59%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 22,502,000             ‐  22,502,000             1,277,878          5,142,716           3,559,001        9,979,596  12,522,404             44.35%

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

173



Consolidated  Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   YTD Total   Budget vs Actual 

 Percent of 

Budget 

54315 Interest on Debt ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

55200 Construction in Progress ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐ 

57900 Intrafund Expenditures 251,000  ‐  251,000  ‐  91,629  102,709              194,338  56,662  77.43%

>='54  Total for: Other Expenses 251,000  ‐  251,000  ‐  91,629                 102,709           194,338  56,662 77.43%

5* Total Expenditures 25,844,000             ‐  25,844,000             1,734,121         5,851,496           4,198,802        11,784,419                  14,059,581             45.60%

Net Surplus (Deficit) ‐  ‐  ‐  1,326,444         (1,348,183)         2,431,266        2,409,527

54600 Depreciation Expense ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

Capital Revenues

41410 Sales and Use Tax ‐ Captial 7,156,733 ‐  7,156,733 ‐  ‐ 636,147              636,147  6,520,586 8.89%
37.82%43790 State‐Other Funding 2,959,078 2,959,078 ‐  ‐ 1,119,043           1,119,043  1,840,035

43890 Federal-Other Funding 30,078,078                 ‐  30,078,078                 ‐  ‐ 1,554,777           1,554,777  28,523,301                 5.17%%

43950 Other GA 9,889,811 ‐  9,889,811 ‐  ‐ 345,422              345,422  9,544,389 3.49%

45100 Interest ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

47400 Insurance Settlement 175,094              175,094  (175,094)

4* Total Revenues 50,083,700             ‐  50,083,700             ‐  ‐  3,830,483        3,830,483 46,253,217             7.65%

Capital Expenses

55100 Land ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

55200 Construction in Progress 43,504,227                 ‐  43,504,227                 (87,415)                 31,599  3,472,078           3,416,261  40,087,966                 7.85%

55400 Equipment 6,579,473 ‐  6,579,473 ‐  ‐ 391,946              391,946  6,187,527 5.96%

55900 Capital Outlay Offset ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

57900 Intrafund Expenditures ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ ‐  ‐  ‐ 

>='54  Total for: Other Expenses 50,083,700             ‐  50,083,700             (87,415)              31,599                 3,864,023        3,808,207  46,275,493             7.60%

5* Total Expenditures 50,083,700             ‐  50,083,700             (87,415)              31,599                 3,864,023        3,808,207 46,275,493             7.60%

Net Surplus (Deficit) ‐  ‐  ‐  87,415               (31,599)               (33,540)            22,276 

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

174



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

CMA Operations/General Fund
8301001

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals 

 % of 

Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              2,865,100              ‐  2,865,100              1,000,000         535,820          1,548,065                     3,083,885  (218,785)             108%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             3,070,000              ‐  3,070,000              ‐  ‐  854,690                            854,690  2,215,310          28%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            4,327,100              ‐  4,327,100              ‐  ‐  706,018                            706,018  3,621,082          16%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  1,900,000              ‐  1,900,000              ‐  3,714               70,274                                 73,988  1,826,012          4%

45100 Interest 20,000  ‐  20,000  8,412                  9,430               10,338                                 28,181  (8,181)                 141%

46800 Charges for Services           1,750,000              ‐  1,750,000              26,676                5,864               48,388                                 80,927  1,669,073          5%

47900 Miscellaneous ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  2  2  (2)  ‐100%

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         200,000                 ‐  200,000                 ‐  91,629             69,771                               161,400  38,600                81%

Total Revenues 14,132,200          ‐$   14,132,200$        1,035,088$       646,457$        3,307,546$       4,989,091$      9,143,109$        35%

Expenses

51100 Salaries and Wages             2,032,800              ‐  2,032,800              275,845             472,704          396,847                         1,145,397  887,403              56%

51110 Extra Help 200,000                 ‐  200,000                 21,051                13,602             ‐                   34,653  165,347              17%

51200 401A Employer Contribution     24,500  ‐  24,500  ‐  ‐  12,732                                 12,732  11,768                52%

51205 Cell Phone Allowance           9,000  ‐  9,000  1,130                  1,610               1,635                  4,375  4,625  49%

51300 Medicare 42,300  ‐  42,300  4,215                  6,935               5,606                                   16,755  25,545                40%

51400 Employee Insurance ‐ Premiums  325,000                 ‐  325,000                 80,412                81,585             80,514                               242,510  82,490                75%

51405 Workers Compensation           7,900  ‐  7,900  ‐  ‐  2,671                  2,671  5,229  34%

51410 Unemployment Compensation      ‐  ‐  ‐  86  71  1,785                  1,943  (1,943)                

51600 Retirement 353,800                 ‐  353,800                 73,504                40,644             33,126                               147,274  206,526              42%

51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 42,000  ‐  42,000  ‐  42,000                0%

51990 Other Employee Benefits        53,700  ‐  53,700  ‐  ‐  2,176                  2,176  51,524                4%

Total Salaries and Benefits: 3,091,000              ‐$   3,091,000$          456,243$          617,150$        537,092$          1,610,486$      1,480,514$        52%

52100 Administration Services        5,000  ‐  5,000  227  212  267  706  4,294  14%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   70,000  ‐  70,000  8,159                  35,321             26,089                                 69,569  431  99%

52130 Information Technology Svcs    150,000                 ‐  150,000                 28,425                28,425             28,425                                 85,276  64,724                57%

52131 ITS Communication Charges      25,800  ‐  25,800  5,314                  5,314               5,314                                   15,941  9,859  62%

52140 Legal Services                 100,000                 ‐  100,000                 23,820                29,045             34,348                                 87,213  12,787                87%

52310 Consulting Services            10,156,700          ‐  10,156,700          104,782             1,111,105       753,519                         1,969,405  8,187,295          19%

52325 Waste Disposal Services        4,100  ‐  4,100  837  837  1,700                  3,374  726  82%

52335 Security Services              8,000  ‐  8,000  ‐  4,202               ‐  4,202  3,798  53%

52340 Landscaping Services           7,500  ‐  7,500  975  975  975  2,925  4,575  39%

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              25,000  ‐  25,000  9,857                  3,686               3,537                                   17,080  7,920  68%

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    75,000  ‐  75,000  14,078                39,088             36,415                                 89,581  (14,581)               119%

52515 Maint ‐ Software               50,000  ‐  50,000  3,500                  24,289             48,768                                 76,557  (26,557)               153%

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               2,000  ‐  2,000  12,232                9  34,566                                 46,807  (44,807)               2340%

52600 Rents/Leases ‐ Equipment       7,000  ‐  7,000  1,871                  1,498               1,764                  5,133  1,867  73%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           60,000  ‐  60,000  3,584                  6,358               39,903                                 49,845  10,155                83%

52800 Communications/Telephone       15,000  ‐  15,000  1,490                  1,386               3,164                  6,041  8,959  40%

52810 Advertising/Marketing          40,000  ‐  40,000  1,190                  8,119               8,690                                   18,000  22,000                45%

52820 Printing and Binding           15,000  ‐  15,000  1,557                  3,519               1,194                  6,270  8,730  42%

52825 Bank Charges 15,000  ‐  15,000  53  324  418  794  14,206                5%

52830 Publications and Legal Notices 8,000  ‐  8,000  3,123                  1,073               1,535                  5,732  2,268  72%

52900 Training/Conference Expenses   25,000  ‐  25,000  6,630                  11,131             4,994                                   22,755  2,245  91%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage        15,000  ‐  15,000  ‐  66  560  626  14,374                4%

53100 Office Supplies                65,100  ‐  65,100  2,621                  6,053               21,215                                 29,889  35,211                46%

53110 Freight/Postage                3,000  ‐  3,000  831  73  376  1,280  1,720  43%

53115 Books/Media/Subscriptions      6,000  ‐  6,000  3,648                  1,128               7,406                                   12,183  (6,183)                 203%

53120 Memberships/Certifications     50,000  ‐  50,000  5,567                  1,545               52,745                                 59,857  (9,857)                 120%

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           25,000  ‐  25,000  2,333                  23,960             6,491                                   32,784  (7,784)                 131%

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              12,000  ‐  12,000  2,550                  2,023               1,326                  5,899  6,101  49%

53250 Fuel 1,000  ‐  1,000  51  66  ‐  117  883  12%

Total Supplies and Services:  11,041,200          ‐$   11,041,200$        249,304$          1,350,831$     1,125,705$       2,725,841$      8,315,359$        25%

Total Expenditures: 14,132,200$        ‐$   14,132,200$        705,547$          1,967,982$     1,662,797$       4,336,327$      9,795,873$        31%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   329,541$          (1,321,525)$   1,644,749$       652,764$        

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

175



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only

Public Transit
83020

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals   % of Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              5,055,641             5,055,641             1,266,504          1,016,768       1,663,460              3,946,732         1,108,909         78%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             1,689,532             1,689,532             ‐  ‐  686,900                  686,900            1,002,632         41%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            3,887,687             3,887,687             649,337             2,512,250       727,133                  3,888,720         (1,033)               100%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  392,440                392,440                ‐  223,578          31,093  254,671            137,769            65%

45100 Interest 64,800                   64,800                   3,908                 6,082               5,799  15,789              49,011              24%

46800 Charges for Services           566,700                566,700                105,656             98,111             132,800                  336,568            230,132            59%

46830 Charges for Svcs ‐ Calistoga   55,000                   55,000                   ‐  ‐  40,000  40,000              15,000              73%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets         ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  2,401  2,401                 (2,401)               100%

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  32,938  32,938              (32,938)             100%

Total Revenues 11,711,800           ‐  11,711,800           2,025,405$       3,856,789$     3,322,524$            9,204,718$      2,507,082$      21%

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 14,900                   14,900                   ‐  1,937               1,014  2,951                 11,949              20%

52130 Information Technology Service 36,200                   36,200                   ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  36,200              0%

52140 Legal Services 1,000  1,000  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,000                 0%

52150 Temporary/Contract Help ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0%

52310 Consulting Services ‐  ‐  2,165                 8,286               16,769  27,220              (27,220)             100%

52325 Waste Disposal Services 15,000                   15,000                   3,192                 3,192               6,480  12,865              2,135                 86%

52335 Security Services 11,700                   11,700                   3,389                 6,990               5,716  16,096              (4,396)               138%

52340 Landscaping Services 6,000  6,000  ‐  6,149               ‐  6,149                 (149)  102%

52490 Purchase Transportation 9,548,700             9,548,700             747,960             3,204,404       1,567,178              5,519,543         4,029,157         58%

52500 Maintenance‐Equipment 95,000                   95,000                   46,391               162,932          9,416  218,739            (123,739)           230%

52505 Maintenance‐Buildings/Improvem 25,000                   25,000                   ‐  699  ‐  699  24,301              3%

52515 Maintenance‐Software 105,500                105,500                ‐  51,729             398,003                  449,732            (344,232)           426%

52520 Maintenance‐Vehicles 55,000                   55,000                   ‐  19,623             9,156  28,778              26,222              52%

52605 Rents and Leases ‐ Bldg/Land 8,000  8,000  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  8,000                 0%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums 400,300                400,300                ‐  ‐  32,083  32,083              368,217            8%

52800 Communications/Telephone 12,100                   12,100                   3,717                 3,394               11,032  18,144              (6,044)               150%

52810 Advertising/Marketing 74,500                   74,500                   ‐  424  27,536  27,960              46,540              38%

52820 Printing & Binding 16,000                   16,000                   12,346               5,671               39,237  57,254              (41,254)             358%

52825 Bank Charges 3,700  3,700  71  2,890               1,876  4,836                 (1,136)               131%

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 700  700  ‐  811  ‐  811  (111)  116%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 12,500                   12,500                   ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  12,500              0%

53100 Office Supplies ‐  ‐  ‐  268  574  843  (843)  100%

53110 Freight/Postage ‐  ‐  825  193  ‐  1,018                 (1,018)               100%

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric 6,000  6,000  2,001                 2,072               3,919  7,993                 (1,993)               133%

53220 Utilities ‐ Water 13,000                   13,000                   1,123                 1,123               1,192  3,439                 9,561                 26%

53250 Fuel 1,000,000             1,000,000             205,394             309,097          302,114                  816,605            183,395            82%

Total Supplies and Services 11,460,800$         ‐$   11,460,800$         1,028,574$       3,791,885$     2,433,296$            7,253,755$       4,207,045$       63%

54315 Interest on Debt ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  0%

57900 Intrafund Expenditures 251,000                251,000                ‐  91,629             69,771  161,400            89,600              64%

Total Expenditures: 11,711,800$        ‐$   11,711,800$        1,028,574$       3,883,514$     2,503,067$            7,415,155$      4,296,645$      63%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   996,832$           (26,725)$         819,456$               1,789,563$     

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

176



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

Vine
8302002

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals 

 % of 

Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              4,175,441              4,175,441              303,135             404,122          1,498,268         2,205,525         1,969,916         53%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             1,239,532              1,239,532              ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         1,239,532         0%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            2,682,187              2,682,187              593,322             2,176,895       725,091             3,495,308         (813,121)          130%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  392,440                 392,440                 ‐                          223,578          31,093                254,671             137,769             65%

45100 Interest                       58,700                   58,700                   (20)                      1,693               1,295                  2,969                 55,731               5%

46800 Charges for Services           464,000                 464,000                 101,266             80,464             104,979             286,709             177,291             62%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Revenues 9,012,300$          ‐$                           9,012,300$          997,703$          2,886,752$     2,360,726$       6,245,181$      2,767,119$     

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   10,000                   10,000                   ‐                          741                   403                     1,144                 8,856                 11%

52130 36,200                   36,200                   ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         36,200               0%

52310 Consulting Services            ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         #DIV/0!

52325 Waste Disposal Services        ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         #DIV/0!

52335 Security Services              11,700                   11,700                   3,389                  6,990               5,716                  16,096               (4,396)                138%

52340 Landscaping Services           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         #DIV/0!

52490 Other Professional Services    7,272,100              7,272,100              747,960             2,359,554       1,403,245         4,510,759         2,761,341         62%

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              10,000                   10,000                   ‐                          162,932          ‐                          162,932             (152,932)          1629%

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                         #DIV/0!

52515 Maint ‐ Software               100,000                 100,000                 ‐                          51,729             398,003             449,732             (349,732)          450%

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               20,000                   20,000                   ‐                          19,623             ‐                          19,623               377                    98%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           385,300                 385,300                 ‐                          ‐                        26,364                26,364               358,936             7%

52800 Communications/Telephone       2,100                     2,100                     1,018                  930                   6,644                  8,592                 (6,492)                409%

52810 Advertising/Marketing          65,000                   65,000                   ‐                          424                   27,536                27,960               37,040               43%

52820 Printing and Binding           8,000                     8,000                     11,749                5,671               35,394                52,814               (44,814)              660%

52825 Bank Charges                   3,700                     3,700                     71                       2,890               1,876                  4,836                 (1,136)                131%

52830 Publications and Legal Notices 700                        700                        ‐                          811                   ‐                          811                    (111)                   116%

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 12,500                   12,500                   ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         12,500               0%

53100 Office Supplies                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          268                   574                     843                    (843)                  

53110 Freight/Postage                ‐                             ‐                             825                     193                   ‐                          1,018                 (1,018)               

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53250 Fuel                           850,000                 850,000                 173,231             258,696          264,650             696,577             153,423             82%

Total Supplies and Services 8,787,300              ‐                             8,787,300              938,243             2,871,451       2,170,405         5,980,099         2,807,201         68%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        225,000                 225,000                 ‐                          72,244             57,935                130,179             94,821               58%

Total Expenditures: 9,012,300$          ‐$                           9,012,300$          938,243$          2,943,695$     2,228,340$       6,110,278$      2,902,022$      68%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             59,460$            (56,943)$         132,386$          134,903$         (134,903)$       

‐                            

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

177



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

VineGo
8302001

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments 

 Adjusted 

Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals 

 % of 

Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              265,000                 265,000           257,179             171,926          165,192             594,297             (329,297)                  224%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             75,000                   75,000              ‐                          ‐                        156,900             156,900             (81,900)                     209%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            714,200                 714,200           38,438                181,760          1,042                  221,240             492,960                    31%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

45100 Interest                       1,400                     1,400                 1,063                  1,170               1,265                  3,497                 (2,097)                       250%

46800 Charges for Services           57,200                   57,200              4,381                  8,993               15,816                29,189               28,011                      51%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets         ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        2,401                  2,401                 (2,401)                      

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        32,938                32,938               (32,938)                    

Total Revenues 1,112,800$          ‐$                       1,112,800$      301,060$          363,849$        375,554$          1,040,463$      72,337$                    93%

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   2,500                     2,500                 ‐                          182                   169                     351                    2,149                        14%

52130 Information Technology Service ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52140 Legal Services 1,000                     1,000                 ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         1,000                        0%

52310 Consulting Services            ‐                             ‐                         2,165                  8,286               16,769                27,220               (27,220)                    

52325 Waste Disposal Services        ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52335 Security Services              ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52340 Landscaping Services           ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52490 Other Professional Services    1,014,800              1,014,800        ‐                          247,083          44,729                291,812             722,988                    29%

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52515 Maint ‐ Software               ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               15,000                   15,000              ‐                          ‐                        9,156                  9,156                 5,844                        61%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52800 Communications/Telephone       ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52810 Advertising/Marketing          2,500                     2,500                 ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         2,500                        0%

52820 Printing and Binding           2,000                     2,000                 532                     ‐                        ‐                          532                    1,468                        27%

52825 Bank Charges                   ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

52830 Publications and Legal Notices ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

53100 Office Supplies                ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

53110 Freight/Postage                ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              ‐                             ‐                         ‐                          ‐                        ‐                          ‐                         ‐                               

53250 Fuel                           65,000                   65,000              24,881                41,979             13,485                80,346               (15,346)                     124%

Total Supplies and Services 1,102,800              ‐                         1,102,800        27,578                297,530          84,308                409,416             693,384                    37%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        10,000                   10,000              ‐                          5,857               37,024                42,881               (32,881)                     429%

Total Expenditures: 1,112,800             ‐                         1,112,800        27,578               303,387          121,333             452,298             660,502                    41%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$                           ‐$                       ‐$                       273,482$          60,462$          254,221$          588,165$        

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

178



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only

American Canyon
8302004

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals   % of Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              80,700                   80,700                   ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         80,700              0%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             150,000                150,000                ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         150,000            0%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            153,100                153,100                17,577               153,595          1,000                 172,172            (19,072)             112%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

45100 Interest                       1,500                     1,500                     515                     590                  383                     1,488                 12                      99%

46800 Charges for Services           5,500                     5,500                     ‐                          5,124               2,655                 7,779                 (2,279)               141%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Revenues 390,800$              ‐                             390,800                18,092$             159,309$        4,038$               181,439$          209,361$          46%

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          52                    ‐                          52                      (52)                    

52310 Consulting Services            ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52325 Waste Disposal Services        ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52335 Security Services              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52340 Landscaping Services           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52490 Other Professional Services    376,800                376,800                ‐                          175,576          41,040               216,617            160,183            57%

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              10,000                   10,000                   11,598               ‐                       ‐                          11,598              (1,598)               116%

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52515 Maint ‐ Software               ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52800 Communications/Telephone       ‐                             ‐                             152                     152                  304                     608                    (608)                 

52810 Advertising/Marketing          ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52820 Printing and Binding           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52825 Bank Charges                   ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52830 Publications and Legal Notices ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53100 Office Supplies                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53110 Freight/Postage                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53250 Fuel                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       15,125               15,125              (15,125)            

Total Supplies and Services 386,800                ‐                             386,800                11,750               175,780          56,470               243,999            142,801            63%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        4,000                     4,000                     ‐                          3,971               2,804                 6,775                 (2,775)               169%

Total Expenditures: 390,800$              ‐$                           390,800$              11,750$             179,751$        59,274$             250,774$          140,026$          64%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           6,342$               (20,442)$         (55,236)$           (69,335)$           69,335$           

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

179



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only

Yountville
8302005

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals   % of Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              130,200                130,200                230,147             140,000          ‐                          370,147            (239,947)           284%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             75,000                   75,000                   ‐                          ‐                       150,000             150,000            (75,000)             200%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            106,300                106,300                ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         106,300            0%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

45100 Interest                       1,000                     1,000                     586                     682                  738                     2,006                 (1,006)               201%

46800 Charges for Services           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

48100 Sale of Capital Assets         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Revenues 312,500$              ‐$                           312,500$              230,733$           140,682$        150,738$           522,153$          (209,653)$       

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   400                        400                        ‐                          104                  ‐                          104                    296                    26%

52310 Consulting Services            ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52325 Waste Disposal Services        ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52335 Security Services              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52340 Landscaping Services           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52490 Other Professional Services    259,100                259,100                ‐                          117,339          24,177               141,516            117,585            55%

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              15,000                   15,000                   11,598               ‐                       ‐                          11,598              3,402                 77%

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52515 Maint ‐ Software               ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               5,000                     5,000                     ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         5,000                 0%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52800 Communications/Telephone       ‐                             ‐                             152                     152                  304                     608                    (608)                 

52810 Advertising/Marketing          4,000                     4,000                     ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         4,000                 0%

52820 Printing and Binding           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52825 Bank Charges                   ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52830 Publications and Legal Notices ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53100 Office Supplies                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53110 Freight/Postage                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53250 Fuel                           25,000                   25,000                   1,461                 201                  ‐                          1,662                 23,338              7%

Total Supplies and Services 308,500                0 308,500                13,211               117,796          24,481               155,487            153,013            50%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        4,000                     4,000                     ‐                          2,689               1,464                 4,153                 (153)                  104%

Total Expenditures: 312,500$              ‐$                           312,500$              13,211$             120,485$        25,945$             159,640$          152,860$          51%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           217,522$           20,197$          124,793$           362,513$         

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

180



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.

St. Helena
8302006

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals   % of Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              79,400                   79,400                   200,000             140,000           ‐                           340,000                         (260,600)                     428%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             75,000                   75,000                   ‐                           ‐                         150,000             150,000                         (75,000)                        200%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            151,900                 151,900                 ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      151,900                       0%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

45100 Interest                       800                         800                         558                      676                   720                      1,954                              (1,154)                          244%

46800 Charges for Services           2,500                      2,500                      ‐                           945                   598                      1,543                              957                              62%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets         ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

Total Revenues 309,600$               ‐$                             309,600$               200,558$           141,621$         151,318$           493,497$                       (183,897)$                   159%

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   400                         400                         ‐                           117                   ‐                           117                                283                              29%

52310 Consulting Services            ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52325 Waste Disposal Services        ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52335 Security Services              ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52340 Landscaping Services           ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52490 Other Professional Services    251,200                 251,200                 ‐                           117,367           24,871                142,237                         108,963                       57%

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              15,000                   15,000                   11,598                ‐                         ‐                           11,598                           3,402                           77%

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52515 Maint ‐ Software               ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               5,000                      5,000                      ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      5,000                           0%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52800 Communications/Telephone       ‐                              152                      152                   304                      608                                (608)                             

52810 Advertising/Marketing          3,000                      3,000                      ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      3,000                           0%

52820 Printing and Binding           1,000                      1,000                      65                        ‐                         ‐                           65                                   935                              6%

52825 Bank Charges                   ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

52830 Publications and Legal Notices ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

53100 Office Supplies                ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

53110 Freight/Postage                ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              ‐                              ‐                           ‐                         ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                   

53250 Fuel                           30,000                   30,000                   2,293                  5,445                5,307                  13,045                           16,955                         43%

Total Supplies and Services 305,600                 ‐                              305,600                 14,108                123,081           30,481                167,670                         137,930                       55%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        4,000                      4,000                      ‐                           2,747                1,593                  4,340                              (340)                              109%

Total Expenditures: 309,600$               309,600                 14,108$             125,828$         32,074$             172,010$                       137,590$                    56%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                             186,451$           15,793$           119,244$           321,487$                      

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

181



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only

Calistoga
8302007

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals   % of Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              214,600                214,600                276,043             160,720          ‐                          436,763            (222,163)           204%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             75,000                   75,000                   ‐                          ‐                       230,000             230,000            (155,000)           307%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            80,000                   80,000                   ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         80,000              0%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

45100 Interest                       1,000                     1,000                     674                     789                  920                     2,383                 (1,383)               238%

46800 Charges for Services           3,500                     3,500                     10                       2,585               2,614                 5,210                 (1,710)               149%

46830 Charges for Svcs ‐ Calistoga   55,000                   55,000                   ‐                          ‐                       40,000               40,000              15,000              73%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets         ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Revenues 429,100$              ‐$                           429,100$              276,727$           164,094$        273,534$           714,356$          (285,256)$       

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   400                        400                        ‐                          143                  39                       182                    218                    46%

52310 Consulting Services            ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52325 Waste Disposal Services        ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52335 Security Services              ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52340 Landscaping Services           ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52490 Other Professional Services    374,700                374,700                ‐                          187,486          29,116               216,603            158,097            58%

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              5,000                     5,000                     11,598               ‐                       ‐                          11,598              (6,598)               232%

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52515 Maint ‐ Software               ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               10,000                   10,000                   ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         10,000              0%

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52800 Communications/Telephone       ‐                             152                     152                  304                     608                    (608)                 

52810 Advertising/Marketing          ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52820 Printing and Binding           5,000                     5,000                     ‐                          ‐                       3,843                 3,843                 1,157                 77%

52825 Bank Charges                   ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52830 Publications and Legal Notices ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53100 Office Supplies                ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53110 Freight/Postage                ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53250 Fuel                           30,000                   30,000                   3,527                 2,776               3,547                 9,850                 20,150              33%

Total Supplies and Services 425,100                ‐                             425,100                15,276               190,557          36,850               242,684            182,416           

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        4,000                     4,000                     ‐                          4,121               1,889                 6,010                 (2,010)               150%

Total Expenditures: 429,100$              ‐$                           429,100$              15,276$             194,678$        38,739$             248,694$          180,406$         

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           261,451$           (30,584)$         234,795$           465,662$         

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

182



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only

Public Transit Facilities 
8302008

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals   % of Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              110,300                110,300                ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         110,300            0%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

45100 Interest                       400                        400                        603                     550                  478                     1,630                 (1,230)               408%

46800 Charges for Services           34,000                   34,000                   ‐                          ‐                       6,138                 6,138                 27,862              18%

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Revenues 144,700$              ‐$                           144,700$              603$                  550$                6,615$               7,768$              136,932$          5%

Expenses

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services   1,200                     1,200                     ‐                          598                  403                     1,001                 199                    83%

52310 Consulting Services            ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52325 Waste Disposal Services        15,000                   15,000                   3,192                 3,192               6,480                 12,865              2,135                 86%

52335 Security Services              ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52340 Landscaping Services           6,000                     6,000                     ‐                          6,149               ‐                          6,149                 (149)                  102%

52490 Other Professional Services    ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52500 Maint ‐ Equipment              40,000                   40,000                   ‐                          ‐                       9,416                 9,416                 30,584              24%

52505 Maint ‐ Bldg & Improvements    25,000                   25,000                   ‐                          699                  ‐                          699                    24,301              3%

52515 Maint ‐ Software               5,500                     5,500                     ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         5,500                 0%

52520 Maint ‐ Vehicles               ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52605 Rents/Leases ‐ Buildings/Land 8,000                     8,000                    

52705 Insurance ‐ Premiums           15,000                   15,000                   ‐                          ‐                       5,719                 5,719                 9,281                 38%

52800 Communications/Telephone       10,000                   10,000                   2,091                 1,856               3,172                 7,119                 2,881                 71%

52810 Advertising/Marketing          ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52820 Printing and Binding           ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52825 Bank Charges                   ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

52830 Publications and Legal Notices ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53100 Office Supplies                ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53110 Freight/Postage                ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

53205 Utilities ‐ Electric           6,000                     6,000                     2,001                 2,072               3,919                 7,993                 (1,993)               133%

53220 Utilities ‐ Water              13,000                   13,000                   1,123                 1,123               1,192                 3,439                 9,561                 26%

53250 Fuel                           ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Expenditures: 144,700$              ‐$                           144,700$              8,408$               15,690$          30,302$             54,399$            82,301$            38%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           (7,805)$              (15,140)$         (23,687)$           (46,632)$          

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

183



The financial statements presented have not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only

Capital
8309000

 Adopted Budget 

 Budget 

Adjustments   Adjusted Budget   Q1 Actuals   Q2 Actuals   Q3 Actuals   FY‐T‐D Actuals 

 Adj. Budget vs. 

Actuals   % of Budget 

Revenues

41400 Sales and Use Tax              ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        

41410 Sales and Use Tax ‐ Capital      7,156,733             7,156,733             ‐                          ‐                       636,147             636,147            6,520,586         9%

43790 ST ‐ Other Funding             2,959,078             2,959,078             ‐                          ‐                       1,119,043          1,119,043         1,840,035         38%

43890 FED ‐ Other Funding            30,078,078           30,078,078           ‐                          ‐                       1,554,777          1,554,777         28,523,301       5%

43950 Other ‐ Governmental Agencies  9,889,811             9,889,811             ‐                          ‐                       345,422             345,422            9,544,389         3%

45100 Interest                       ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

47400 Insurance Settlement 175,094             175,094            (175,094)          

49900 Intrafund Transfers‐In         ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Revenues 50,083,700$        ‐$                           50,083,700$        ‐$                        ‐$                     3,830,483$       3,830,483$      46,253,217$    8%

Expenses

55100 Land          

55200 Construction in Progress 43,504,227           43,504,227           (87,415)              31,599             3,472,078          3,416,261         40,087,966       8%

55400 Equipment 6,579,473             6,579,473             ‐                          ‐                       391,946             391,946            6,187,527         6%

55590 Capital Outlay Offset ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out        ‐                             ‐                          ‐                       ‐                          ‐                         ‐                        

Total Expenditures: 50,083,700$        ‐$                           50,083,700$        (87,415)$           31,599$          3,864,023$       3,808,207$      46,275,493$    8%

Net Surplus (Deficit): ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           87,415$             (31,599)$         (33,540)$           22,276$           

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.5 

May 18, 2022

184



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Vine Transit Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the NVTA Board receives a third quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit update.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report summarizes the Vine’s operational performance during the third quarter for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22, covering the period of January 1 to March 31, 2022. The board 
memo compares the third quarter of FY 2022 (January – March) to both the third quarter 
of FY 2021 and to the previous quarter (October - December) to highlight the differences 
between the same time period last year and to recent months of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

185



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT:   Vine Transit Update 
______________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the NVTA Board receives a third quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit update. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Summary of Early Pandemic-Related Operational Changes (2020 – 2021) 
 
In March 2020, NVTA made a number of service changes in response to reduced 
ridership demand associated with the coronavirus pandemic and public health orders 
issued by the State and County of Napa. Specifically, service hours were reduced, fare 
payment was suspended, seat spacing was introduced, and buses began using rear door 
only boarding whenever feasible to ensure the safety of riders and drivers.  
 
In mid-March of 2020, weekday service hours on Routes 10 and 11 were reduced to a 
Saturday schedule. Routes 10X and 11X were suspended – after already showing mixed 
ridership performance in the months preceding the pandemic. On April 27, 2020, local 
fixed route services in the City of Napa (A-H) were suspended and transitioned to Stop to 
Stop On-Demand service for local trips. All of these service changes remained in effect 
until August 15, 2021. 
 
Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, NVTA supported auxiliary Emergency Operation 
Center (EOC) functions that included meal delivery to residents in isolation and 
quarantine sites, food bank distribution when distribution centers were closed to the 

186

mailto:xxxxx@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.6 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
public, and related transportation. These operations ceased on August 15, 2021.   NVTA 
returned to higher level of service and Napa County EOC operations slowed down.  
 
On May 9, 2021, the Vine returned to a weekday schedule on the Routes 10 and 11 (had 
been running on Saturday schedules since March 2020); implemented a fixed-route/on-
demand hybrid which introduced two new fixed routes (Routes N and S), and maintained 
the existing on-demand service in the City of Napa. The Yountville Trolley and Calistoga 
Shuttle also extended hours on Friday and Saturday nights. 
 
On August 15, 2021 the Vine reintroduced the Route 11X in response to the Vallejo 
Ferry’s new service in July; and added Routes E and W in the City of Napa. in the  
Calistoga and American Canyon shuttles and fixed route school trippers in St. Helena 
and American Canyon were reinstated.   
 
In response to bus driver shortages, additional service changes were made on November 
21, 2021. These changes included extending run times to 45 minutes (previously 30 
minutes) on Routes W and S. On-demand services in the City of Napa became limited to  
only where fixed route service was not available, and low performing trips on the Routes 
21, 11 and 11X were suspended.  Also, in response to a request from Rohllfs Manor, the 
Route N was extended to provide fixed route service to Rohllfs Manor and the Napa 
Senior Center once again.  
 
 
Temporary Emergency Service Reductions (Early 2022) 
 
Vine Transit experienced a short-term reduction in the number of available bus drivers 
during the winter COVID wave from January 22 to February 21, 2022. Due to those 
conditions, NVTA took steps to reduce service to minimize missed trips.  

 
NVTA returned to its regular schedule on February 21st.  
 
Vine Transit continues to follow health and sanitation requirements. Vine buses are 
thoroughly sterilized each day and frequently touched areas, such as handrails, are 
cleaned several times each day. While NVTA is no longer requiring masks on  Vine buses 
and at Vine facilities, masks are still encouraged.    
 
Vine Transit Performance 
The first four tables compare ridership across different services in the third quarter of FY 
2021-22 (January to March) to the same period in the prior fiscal year. The first two 
months of the third quarter brought on some declines in ridership due to the winter COVID 
wave and the emergency service reductions that were implemented. However, ridership 
rapidly rebounded and several fixed routes & on-demand services experienced their 
highest ridership month (March) of the current fiscal year. Staff expects the current 
upswing trend in ridership to continue into the final quarter of the fiscal year. 

187



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.6 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Table 1 shows a significant increase of 112.78% in ridership from 13,361 to 28,429 in the 
City of Napa from the third quarter of FY 2020-21 to the current fiscal year. This increase 
is most likely due to the re-introduction of fixed routes (N, S, W & E) in the City of Napa. 
In the prior fiscal year, there was only on-demand service. One of the purposes of re-
introducing fixed routes was to increase ridership and ease pressure on the on-demand 
services by transferring riders to fixed routes.  
 
 
Table 1: City of Napa– Comparing Q3 of FY21 & FY22 

  FY 20/21 FY 21/22 % 
Difference 

Numerical 
Difference 

Napa Local On-Demand 13,361 4,653 -65.17% -8,708 
Route N N/A 12,296 N/A 12,296 
Route S N/A 4,352 N/A 4,532 
Route W N/A 6,351 N/A 6,351 
Route E N/A 777 N/A 777 
Total Rides 13,361 28,429 112.78% 15,068 

 
Table 2 indicates an overall increase in ridership on the regional and express routes (10, 
11, 11X, 21 and 29). The increase in the third quarter between fiscal years 2020-21 and 
2021-22 was approximately 29%. Route 10 showed the largest percentage increase in 
ridership (35.24%) of all of the regional and express routes.  
 
 
Table 2: Routes 10, 11, 11X, 21 and 29 Ridership – Comparing Q3 of FY21 & FY22 

  FY 20/21 FY 21/22 % 
Difference 

Numerical 
Difference 

Route 10 20,225 27,353 35.24% 7,128 
Route 11 19,876 26,037 30.99% 6,161 
Route 11X  N/A 726 N/A 726 
Route 21 4,014 4,051 0.91% 37 
Route 29 6,928 7,698 11.11% 770 
Total 51,044 65,865 29.03% 14,821 

 
 
Table 3 shows the ridership patterns on the four community shuttles. The combined 
shuttle ridership is up significantly at 81.47% compared to the same quarter in the prior 
fiscal years. Ridership increased across all the community shuttles in the third quarter of 
the current fiscal year. The overwhelming increase on American Canyon Transit (ACT) is 
largely driven by the students who take the shuttle to school. Last fiscal year all classes 

188



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.6 
May 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
were taught virtually, therefore driving down the demand for ACT.  Also, only one ACT 
shuttle ran in last fiscal year, but two shuttles ran in the third quarter this year. 
 
Table 3: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q3 of FY21 & FY22 

 
FY 20/21 FY 21/22 % 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

Calistoga Shuttle 1,541 3,071 99.29% 1,530 
St. Helena Shuttle 1,060 1,250 17.92% 190 
Yountville Trolley 1,154 1,359 17.76% 205 
American Canyon 
Transit 1,679 4,181 149.02% 2,502 

Total 5,434 9,861 81.47% 4,427 
 
VineGo ridership is also rebounding (76.17%) compared to the same time last year as 
shown in Table 4. NVTA still has a reduced number of vehicles serving VineGo as 
ridership remains well below pre-COVID levels. However, programs that used to generate 
large amounts of VineGo trips pre-pandemic have begun to re-open and VineGo 
applications, re-certifications, and auto-renewals have consequently increased. Staff 
expects the VineGo ridership to continue to climb during the remainder of the fiscal year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 4: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY21 & FY22 

 
FY 20/21 FY 21/22 % 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

VineGo 705 1,242 76.17% 537 
 
Tables 5, 6 and 7, compare the second quarter of FY 2021-22 (October – December) to 
the third quarter of FY 2021-22 (January – March) to provide additional context on 
ridership changes.  
 
Table 5 shows an overall increase in ridership (11.12%) in the City of Napa. The decline 
in the Napa Local On-Demand service is attributed to riders shifting their trips to the fixed 
route services.  This was a forced change by NVTA in November of 2021, when NVTA 
added ride restrictions to the on-demand service on rides that could be taken by fixed 
route. The reason for this change was to use on-demand resources for those trips that 
are only served by on-demand and to minimize the wait times. As previously stated, the 
months of January and February ridership declined due to the winter COVID wave, 

189



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.6 
May 18, 2022 
Page 5 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
however, ridership rebounded and March was the highest ridership month of the current 
fiscal year for all four local routes. 
 
Table 5 City of Napa Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY22 & Q3 of FY22 

 
Q2 FY 22 Q3 FY 22 % Difference Numerical 

Difference 
Napa Local On-Demand 6,316 4,653 -26.33% -1,663 
Route N  9,365 12,296 31.30% 2,931 
Route S  3,084 4,352 41.12% 1,268 
Route W  5,955 6,351 6.65% 396 
Route E  865 777 -10.17% -88 
Total 25,585 28,429 11.12% 2,844 

 
Ridership slightly decreased over the prior quarter on the regional routes by 1.40% as 
seen in Table 6.  Route 11 is the only route where ridership went up, however it was only 
by about two percent. Route 11X experienced the most significant decline at 52.36%. 
Route 11X service was temporarily suspended during the Emergency Service Reduction 
from January 22 – February 21st. Additionally, driver shortages resulted in canceling the 
Route 11X numerous times. To ensure that riders depending on the service are not 
stranded, we allow those riders to board a Route 29 bus instead and the driver will drop 
the passenger off at the Vallejo Ferry Terminal. Whenever this occurs, messaging is 
placed on the Route 11X webpage to alert riders and Route 29 bus drivers are notified 
so they can communicate and act on the change. 
 
 
 
 
Table 6: Routes 10, 11, 21 & 29 Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY22 & Q3 of FY22 

  Q2 FY 22 Q3 FY 22 % 
Difference 

Numerical 
Difference 

Route 10 27,415 27,353 -0.23% -62 
Route 11 25,482 26,037 2.18% 555 
Route 11X  1,524 726 -52.36% -798 
Route 21 4,185 4,051 -3.20% -134 
Route 29 8,194 7,698 -6.05% -496 
Total 66,800 65,865 -1.40% -935 

 
Ridership increased 7.88% on the community shutles and on most services, ridership 
rose compared to the second quarter of the current fiscal year as shown in Table 7. After 
initial declines in January and February, the St. Helena Shuttle, Yountville Trolley and 
American Canyon Transit experienced the highest ridership month (March) of the current 
Fiscal Year. The decline in ridership in Calistoga over the two quarters is cyclical in nature 

190



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.6 
May 18, 2022 
Page 6 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
as the number of tourist’s decreases in the winter months and only one shuttle operates 
in Calistoga from the beginning of November through the end of March. 
 
 
Table 7: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q2 of FY22 & Q3 of FY22 

 
Q2 FY 22 Q3 FY 22 % 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

Calistoga Shuttle 3,324 3,071 -7.61% -253 
St. Helena Shuttle 1,181 1,250 5.84% 69 
Yountville Trolley 984 1,359 38.11% 375 
American Canyon Transit 3,652 4,181 14.49% 529 
Total 9,141 9,861 7.88% 720 

 
 
VineGo ridership slightly decreased compared to the previous quarter of the current fiscal 
year as seen in Table 8. January and February had the lowest ridership months of the 
entire fiscal year which is attributed to the Winter surge of COVID cases. However, just 
like other services, ridership rebounded in March and it is expected to continue to increase 
as stated earlier.  
 
 
 
Table 8: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY22 & Q3 of FY22 

 
Q2 FY 

22 
Q3 FY 

22 
% 

Difference 
Numerical 
Difference 

VineGo 1,330 1,242 -6.62% -88 
 
In recent reports, staff did not provide a table showing on-time performance for the nine 
fixed route services that NVTA operates. This was due to the transition between the old 
Avail Computer Aided Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle Locator (CAD/AVL) system to the new 
GMV Syncromatics CAD/AVL system.  Now that the GMV system has been implemented 
as of February 1, 2022 and data has been collected, staff will routinely provide on-time 
performances in its Vine Transit Updates and work to improve upon this baseline with the 
goal of 90% on time performance. 
 
 
Table 9: On-Time Performance of All Fixed Routes 

 % On Time % Early % Late 

Route N 59.9% 11.6% 28.5% 
Route S 44.9% 14.7% 40.4% 
Route W 28.8% 53.2% 18.1% 
Route E 75.0% 25.0% 0.0% 

191



Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 10.6 
May 18, 2022 
Page 7 of 7 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Route 10 53.1% 13.1% 33.8% 
Route 11 64.2% 13.0% 22.8% 
Route 11X 66.1% 10.5% 23.4% 
Route 21 52.7% 28.8% 18.5% 
Route 29 50.2% 27.0% 22.8% 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

None 

192



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.7 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) 3 Call for Projects 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board open the One Bay Area 
Grant (OBAG) 3 Call for Projects and adopt the related materials including the OBAG 3 
Application and Evaluation Criteria. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted the OBAG 3 policy 
framework in January 2022. The OBAG 3 program will fund projects in Fiscal Years (FYs) 
2023 through 2026.  MTC also released funding targets for each county.  Funding for the 
Napa County call for projects is $6.143 million which is 120% of the county target.  This 
approach was adopted by MTC to address Federal Highway Administration guidelines 
which requires a regional approach and to avoid a formula distribution of funds.  . NVTA 
has already committed $4.2 million in OBAG 3 funds, as several projects were deferred 
to address the Calistoga to St. Helena Vine Trail funding shortfall.  The balance available 
for OBAG 3 programming is $1,943,000 (Table 1).   

Project applications are due to NVTA by June 17, 2022, NVTA staff will review and 
evaluate project applications during July and August 2022 and present a list of project(s) 
to the TAC at its September 1, 2022 meeting for review and recommendation. The NVTA 
Board will consider the project nominations for approval at its September 21, 2022 Board 
meeting.  Project nominations are due to MTC by September 30, 2022.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 

193



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.7 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Planner 
(707) 259-5968 / Email: aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) 3 Call for Projects 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board open the One Bay Area 
Grant (OBAG) 3 Call for Projects and adopt the related materials including the OBAG 3 
Application and Evaluation Criteria. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) reviewed this information at its May 5th 
meeting and recommended that the Board adopt the Application and Evaluation Criteria 
and release the OBAG 3 call for projects.  

BACKGROUND 

Table 1. NVTA OBAG 3 Funds 

NVTA OBAG 3 Fund Distribution 
OBAG 3 Funds 
Available  

$6,143,000 

City of Napa Five-way 
Intersection 

($2,000,000) 

St. Helena Main Street 
Pedestrian 
Improvement 

($1,200,000) 

American Canyon Green Island Road ($1,000,000) 

Remaining funds for new projects $1,943,000 

194

mailto:aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda                                     Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.7 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 
 
On March 23, 2022, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) approved the 
One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) Cycle 3 guidelines for local and county shares. NVTA 
developed local evaluation criteria aligned with MTC’s guidelines to screen projects.  
Jurisdictions that want to nominate a project for funding will need to complete a project 
application and evaluation criteria (Attachment 1). The project has to fall within one of four 
program categories*: 
 

1. Planning & Program Implementation  
2. Growth Framework Implementation  
3. Climate, Conservation, and Resilience 
4. Complete Streets and Community Choice 

*See Exhibit A in Attachment 1 for more details on program categories and project examples 
 
Project applications are due to NVTA by June 17, 2022.  NVTA staff will evaluate project 
applications during July and August 2022 and present a list of recommended projects to 
the TAC at its September 1, 2022 for review and recommendation to the Board. Staff will 
present the proposed projects to the Board for consideration of approval at its September 
21, 2022 meeting. 
 
 
Table 2. OBAG 3 Project Nomination/Approval Timeline 
 

County Program Timeline 
 

April 7, 2022 TAC receives overview of the OBAG 3 program guidelines 

May 1, 2022 MTC releases OBAG 3 Call for Projects 

May 5, 2022 TAC  recommends release of Call for Projects to NVTA Board 

May 18, 2022 NVTA Opens OBAG 2 Call for Projects   

June 15, 2022  OBAG 2 Applications due to NVTA 

September 1, 2022 TAC reviews NVTA staff project recommendations for Board 
approval 

September 21, 2022 NVTA Board OBAG 3 project nomination approval 

September 27, 2022 NVTA staff submits project nominations to MTC 

October – Dec 2022 County & Local Program – Regional Project Evaluation & 
Project Prioritization 

195



NVTA Agenda           Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.7 

Page 3 of 6 

• MTC evaluation of nominations
• CMAQ emissions benefits & cost effectiveness (for eligible
projects)
• MTC & CTA discussions of preliminary staff recommendation

October 1, 2022 First year of OBAG 3 funding availability for ongoing planning and 
programming activities, Regional Programs 

January 2023 County & Local Program – MTC Project Selection 
• MTC staff recommendations for Commission consideration &
approval
• Programming of County & Local Program projects into 2023 TIP
(est. February 2023)

October 1, 2023 First year of OBAG 3 funding availability for County & Local Program 
projects 

The One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) program establishes the policy and programming 
framework for investing federal Surface Transportation Program (STP), Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Program, and other funds throughout the 
Bay Area. The OBAG program focuses transportation investments in Priority 
Development Areas (PDAs) and in jurisdictions producing and planning for new housing 
under the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) process and other strategies.  

The framework also consolidates funding sources and increases local agency flexibility 
to advance priority projects. Following the initial success of OBAG 1 and OBAG 2, the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted the OBAG 3 policy framework 
in January 2022.  

Highlighted changes for OBAG 3 include the following: 

• Funding will be 50/50 split between regional and county programs – an increase
from 55/45.

• MTC will conduct the final project selection process on locally submitted
projects.  Prior cycle project selection was prioritized by the counties within the
OBAG policy framework.

• PDA supportive projects must be within 1 mile of a priority development area
(PDA) boundary but with allowance of exceptions on a case-by-case basis.  Prior
OBAG cycles allowed projects that were considered proximate to the PDA.

• A project sponsor must have a Local Road Safety Plan or equivalent plan in place
by December 2023.  Safety plans were not a requirement in prior OBAG cycles.

• MTC set aside $25 million regionwide for Safe Routes to School (SRTS)
investments which will be distributed on a competitive basis.  This replaces a
county-specific SRTS investment, and is a takedown from the total funds

196



NVTA Agenda                                     Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.7 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
available to counties in the OBAG 3 county targets.  Counties will be eligible to 
compete for this funding.  

• OBAG 3 includes a $200 million regionwide active transportation investment 
target.  No targets for active transportation projects were established in prior 
OBAG cycles. 

 
Revenue Estimates 
OBAG 3 programming estimates are based on anticipated federal transportation program 
apportionments from STP/CMAQ programs for a four-year cycle covering FY 2022-23 
through FY 2025-26. MTC estimates $750 million of STP/CMAQ funding over the four-
year OBAG 3 period. MTC expects there will be additional funds from the recently passed 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) and will adjust the program amount accordingly.  
 
County & Local Programs 
Fifty percent of available OBAG 3 funds (or $375 million) is for local and county projects 
prioritized through a call for projects process selected by MTC. MTC increased the share 
of funds directed to local projects to 50%, up from 45% in OBAG 2.  
 
 
Table 3. OBAG 3 Program Categories and Funding 
 
Program Category  
 

County & Local Programs Details Funding 
(millions) 
 

Planning & Program 
Implementation 
 

• Countywide planning, programming, and 
outreach activities 

 

$35 
 

Growth Framework 
Implementation 
 

• Regionwide call for projects, with projects 
selected for funding by MTC 

• CTAs assist with initial outreach, project 
screening, and developing prioritized list of 
project nominations 

• Wide range of project eligibilities, with a focus 
on investing in PDAs and community-identified 
projects in EPCs 

• Investment targets for active transportation, 
Safe Routes to School (SRTS), and PDA 
investments 

• Project sponsors must comply with various 
policy requirements related to housing, 
complete streets, safety plans, and pavement 
management programs. 

Local Programs Total $375al $375 
 

$340 
 

Climate, Conservation, 
and Resilience 
 
Complete Streets and 
Community Choice 
 
Multimodal Systems 
Operations and 
Performance 
County & 

197



NVTA Agenda                                     Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.7 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
County & Local Programs Total $375 

 
NVTA created an OBAG 3 evaluation process and is now requesting to open a call for 
projects.  Project nominations and a detailed description of public outreach compliance 
for the county program are due to MTC by September 30, 2022.  
 
NVTA Proposed Programming Process 

NVTA is soliciting project applications and will conduct an initial screening and 
prioritization of projects. Since Napa County is considered a small county in the program, 
NVTA project list must meet the 50% Priority Development Area (PDA) investment 
requirement. In addition, NVTA will prioritize projects that align with regional plans and 
policies.  As such, projects will: 

1. Be located in PDAs or Transit-Rich Areas (TRAs), identified in locally adopted 
plans for PDAs, or support preservation of Priority Production Areas (PPAs) 

2. Be located in jurisdictions with affordable housing protection, preservation, and 
production strategies, including an emphasis on community stabilization and anti-
displacement policies with demonstrated effectiveness  

3. Invest in historically underserved communities, including projects prioritized in a 
Community-Based Transportation Planning (CBTP) or Participatory Budgeting 
process, or projects located within Equity Priority Communities with demonstrated 
community support 

4. Address federal performance management requirements by supporting regional 
performance goals for roadway safety, asset management, environmental 
sustainability, or system performance  

5. Implement multiple Plan Bay Area 2050 Strategies  
6. Demonstrate consistency with other regional plans and policies, including the 

Regional Safety/Vision Zero policy, Equity Platform, Regional Active 
Transportation Plan, Transit Oriented Communities (TOC) policy update, and the 
Blue Ribbon Transit Transformation Action Plan 

7. Demonstrate public support from communities disproportionately impacted by past 
discriminatory practices, including redlining, racial covenants, urban renewal, and 
highway construction that divided low-income and communities of color 

8. Be completed in accordance with MTC’s Regional Project Delivery Policy (MTC 
Resolution No. 3606, Revised) and can meet all OBAG 3 deadlines, and federal 
and state delivery requirements  

 
After completing initial project screening and evaluations, NVTA will submit prioritized 
project nominations and required documentation to MTC by September 30, 2022. 
Prioritized nomination lists must be approved by the NVTA Board prior to submission to 
MTC. A panel of MTC staff will evaluate all project nominations and develop a 
recommended program of projects for Commission consideration and approval.  
 

198



NVTA Agenda           Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item 10.7 

Page 6 of 6 

MTC’s evaluation panel will score projects as follows: 
1. County transportation agency (CTA) Prioritization (75 points): Relative CTA project

rank or score, which may be scaled and normalized across CTAs to allow for
region-wide comparison

2. Regional Impact (15 points): Alignment with Plan Bay Area 2050 strategies,
anticipated effectiveness in advancing regional objectives, and contribution to
regionally significant networks or facilities

3. Deliverability (10 points): Sponsor capacity to deliver the project through the
Federal-aid process, including consideration of prior performance of OBAG
projects and anticipated risk to the project development schedule or funding plan

4. Air Quality (10 points): Projects eligible for Congestion  Mitigation and Air Quality
Improvement Program (CMAQ) funding will also be evaluated for estimated
emissions benefits, including priority for projects that reduce fine particular matter
(PM2.5), as well as the relative cost-effectiveness of the project to reduce
transportation emissions

ALTERNATIVES 

1. The Board could decide not to approve opening the OBAG 3 call for projects and
return $6,143,000 in federal funds to MTC.

2. The Board could decide to delay the approval to open the OBAG 3 call for projects
and review material; however postponing the call for project may result in missing
MTC’s application deadline.

ATTACHMENT(S) 

(1) NVTA OBAG 3 County Local Program Application and Evaluation Criteria
(2) Appendix A-1 County and Local Program Call for Projects Guidelines

199



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Board Agenda Item 10.8 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Federal and State Legislative Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors and the State 
Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors and act on bills included on the State 
Bill Matrix. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached memos from Platinum Advisor/K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors 
summarize the federal and state legislative activities respectively.     

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

200



May 18, 2022 
NVTA Board Agenda Item 10.8 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislative Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors (Attachment 1) and the 
State Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors (Attachment 2) and act on bills 
included on the State Bill Matrix (Attachment 3). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Federal Update:  
The Department of Transportation announced pending releases of a number of Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law (BIL) notices of funding opportunities (NOFOs) including the Safe 
Streets and Roads for All Grant Program which will provide $5-6 billion in grants over 5 
years and supports regional, local, and Tribal initiatives to prevent roadway deaths and 
serious injuries; the Bridge Investment Program, which provides $12.5  billion over 5 
years to replace, rehabilitate, preserve or protect one or more bridges on the National 
Bridge Inventory, and to replace or rehabilitate culverts to improve flood control and 
improve habitat connectivity for aquatic species.  In addition, the Strengthening Mobility 
and Revolutionizing Transportation (SMART) grant program which provides $500 million 
over a 5-year period for rural midsized and large communities to conduct demonstration 
projects focused on advanced smart city or community technologies and systems.   

FHWA also announced the available of $300 million in FY22 for the new Rural Surface 
Transportation Grant Program which will provide competitive grants to state and regional 
transportation planning organizations, local governments, and Tribal governments to 
improve and expand the surface transportation infrastructure in rural areas.  The 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission adopted a regional Bipartisan Infrastructure 

201

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 10.8 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
______________________________________________________________________ 

Law Regional Grant Strategy and the Rural Surface Transportation Program is being 
prioritized for the SR 37 improvements. 

State Update:  

On April 18th the Legislature returned from its Spring Recess.  The policy committee 
deadline for fiscal bills and non-fiscal bills was April 29th and May 6th respectively.   

The budget surplus has now ballooned to an estimated $68 billion.  The actual budget 
figure will likely be influenced by the Gann limit or state appropriations limit which is a 
constitutional limit on the amount that the state and local governments can spend in a 
fiscal year.  The Gann limit, intended to keep spending at 1978-79 levels or below, 
stipulates that if the budget exceeds the Gann limit over 2 years, the state is required to 
split the excess between taxpayer rebates and schools.  The FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-
23 is expected to exceed the Gann limit by at least $2.6 billion – the estimate 
established in January by the Administration.   

The Governor released the May Revision on May 10 and additional information will be 
presented to the Board at its May 18th meeting. 

In the meantime, the Senate released its budget priorities and the transportation related 
priorities are outlined below.  

• $13.8 billion over four years for transit infrastructure, including:  Roughly $11.8
billion for transit projects, split between Southern California and the balance of
the state, with out years allocated by formula.

• $2 billion for grade separation projects.
• $2.9 billion over four years for climate investments, including: o $2 billion for

Active Transportation projects, which would include Highways to Boulevards and
safety projects such as those outlined by the Administration.

• $875 million over four years for local climate adaptation planning and projects.
• The package also proposes to set aside $150 million per year in IIJA funds, as

allowed under IIJA, for adaptation projects on the state highway system.
• $2.1 billion over four years for freight and workforce investments o $1.2 billion for

port infrastructure, as proposed by the Administration
• $110 million for a workforce training center, as proposed by the Administration
• $790 million over four years in additional funding for the Trade Corridor

Enhancement Program
• $1.25 billion over four years for congestion mitigation and bridge repair and

replacement
• $700 million over four years in additional funding for the Solutions for Congested

Corridors Program.

202



Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 10.8 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

• $550 million over four years to augment federal and local funding for high-cost 
local bridge repair and replacement.  

 
There are two new bills on the bill matrix for board action: 
 
AB 2428 (Friedman) would align certain state funding with state plans, including the 
recently adopted Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure and require that 
the California Transportation Plan be fiscally constrained.  Staff is recommending that 
the board take a WATCH position on this bill. 
 
SB 1121 (Gonzales) – requires that the California Transportation Commission biennially 
prepare a needs assessment to understand costs associated with the maintenance and 
future growth of the state and local transportation system over a 10-year horizon and 
provide a report to the legislature before January 1, 2024.  Staff is recommending that 
the Board take a SUPPORT position on this bill. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) May 2, 2022 Federal Update (K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors) 
(2) May 2, 2022 State Budget Update (Platinum Advisors) 
(3) May 2, 2022 State Bill Matrix (Platinum Advisors) 
 
 
 
 

203



ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 10.8 

MAY 18, 2022 
 

 
   

 

 MEMO 
 

TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

FROM: George Riccardo, K&L Gates 
Jess Aune, Platinum Advisors 

DATE: May 2, 2022 

RE: April Monthly Report  

State of Play and Congressional Update 
 
The House and Senate returned to DC after a two-week spring recess with a long legislative to-
do list and limited time before the campaign season officially kicks off this summer.  
 
Before the recess, Senate Majority Leader Chuck Schumer and Senator Mitt Romney announced 
a bipartisan deal for a $10 billion COVID aid package. However, this deal quickly fell apart when 
Republicans in the Senate moved to attach a controversial vote over the Biden Administration’s 
decision to stop using Title 42 expulsions. Foreseeing that this vote would likely split the 
Democratic caucus and put the Senate at odds with the White House, Leader Schumer decided 
to pull the entire package. The White House continues to emphasize the need for additional 
COVID funding to fund additional vaccines and treatments in preparation of a possible new variant 
and Democratic Leadership will continue to explore avenues to pass this package - including 
possibly tying it to additional aide for Ukraine. However, the White House has a real legislative 
problem with its insistence on pushing through with its Title 42 decision.   
  
The Administration’s decision to end Title 42 has caused frustration among moderate Democratic 
members as well as members facing difficult elections this fall. Many have expressed that the 
Administration should not end Title 42 until there is a plan in place to deal with the increase of 
migrants expected to arrive at the border. Meanwhile, Secretary Mayorkas testified at the end of 
April before the House Appropriations Homeland Security Subcommittee and House Judiciary 
Committee and was questioned about the situation at the border and how the agency will handle 
the dramatic increase in migrants. Secretary Mayorkas testified of his department, “It is not built 
to manage the current levels and types of migratory flows…Only Congress can fix 
this.”  Immigration reform has been a longstanding issue that Congress has attempted to address 
over the years through bipartisan negotiations that have repeatedly failed. The most recent effort 
on this front began with an initial meeting on April 28 between Senators Durbin, Cornyn, Tillis, 
Padilla and Grassley to discuss potential pathways forward. This first gathering did not produce 
any concrete plans, but both sides agreed to continue the conversation.   
  
Senate Majority Leader Schumer and Senate Minority Leader McConnell also agreed to a path 
forward to begin the formal conference for the China competiveness package - alternatively 
referred to as The United States Innovation and Competition Act (USICA) or The America 
Creating  Opportunities to Meaningfully Promote Excellence in Technology, Educations, and 
Science Act of 2007 (America COMPETES). Senate leaders agreed on 28 Motions to Instruct, 
which are nonbinding but politically difficult votes that proceed the formal conference. The 

204



2 

negotiations to reconcile the House and Senate version of this package is expected to be lengthy, 
considering how vast the differences are between the two bills. This is an issue with significant 
bipartisan support in the Senate, and there is significant appetite to reach a deal on both sides.  

At the end of April, Senator Manchin also spoke with reporters laying out his priorities for a 
possible reconciliation package, including an increase of the corporate tax rate and capital gains 
tax, closing tax loopholes, and using that revenue to pay down the debt. This could open the door 
to beginning negotiations again on a reconciliation package. However, with Senator Machin’s 
strict guidelines on what he is willing to support, it will be difficult for all factions of the Democratic 
caucus to reach an agreement on a package. Also, while Senator Manchin has signaled he is 
open to a reconciliation package, it is clear he will not be the driving force behind the effort and 
would be fine not reaching a deal. The White House and Democratic Leadership may be hesitant 
to begin negotiations that may fail again especially after the fallout from last year’s Build Back 
Better negotiations. The odds of reaching a deal on a reconciliation package will also likely 
lengthen the closer we are to the midterm elections.  

Pending Legislation of Interest 

S.3011 - State, Local, Tribal, and Territorial Fiscal Recovery, Infrastructure, and
Disaster Relief Flexibility Act
Sponsor: Senator John Cornyn (R-TX)
Cosponsors: 11
Status: Passed Senate
Summary: This bill allows states, tribes, territories, and localities to use certain COVID-
19 relief funds for new categories of spending, including for natural disasters and
infrastructure projects. Specifically, recipients may use funds for emergency relief from
natural disasters and associated negative economic impacts of natural disasters. In
addition, recipients may use a portion of their COVID-19 relief funds for designated
infrastructure projects, such as nationally significant freight and highway projects.
Furthermore, the bill allows recipients to expend COVID-19 relief funds on these types of
infrastructure projects until September 30, 2026.
Outlook: The House companion (H.R.5735) has been introduced and is gaining
cosponsors, though there has not been any movement.

Department of Transportation (DOT) Updates 

This month, the DOT announced the following tentative release dates for upcoming Notice of 
Funding Opportunity announcements in 2022, found here and below: 

205

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/senate-bill/3011?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22State%2C+Local%2C+Tribal%2C+and+Territorial+Fiscal+Recovery%2C+Infrastructure%2C+and+Disaster+Relief+Flexibility+Act%22%2C%22State%2C%22%2C%22Local%2C%22%2C%22Tribal%2C%22%2C%22and%22%2C%22Territorial%22%2C%22Fiscal%22%2C%22Recovery%2C%22%2C%22Infrastructure%2C%22%2C%22Disaster%22%2C%22Relief%22%2C%22Flexibility%22%2C%22Act%22%5D%7D&s=1&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/5735?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22State%2C+Local%2C+Tribal%2C+and+Territorial+Fiscal+Recovery%2C+Infrastructure%2C+and+Disaster+Relief+Flexibility+Act%22%2C%22State%2C%22%2C%22Local%2C%22%2C%22Tribal%2C%22%2C%22and%22%2C%22Territorial%22%2C%22Fiscal%22%2C%22Recovery%2C%22%2C%22Infrastructure%2C%22%2C%22Disaster%22%2C%22Relief%22%2C%22Flexibility%22%2C%22Act%22%5D%7D&s=1&r=2
https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/upcoming-notice-funding-opportunity-announcements-2022#.Yksqpy1RhYc.linkedin


 3  
  
 

 
 
 
Additionally this month, Transportation Secretary Pete Buttigieg, Energy Secretary Jennifer 
Granholm, National Climate Advisor Gina McCarthy, and Senior Advisor and Infrastructure 
Coordinator Mitch Landrieu convened major automotive leaders to discuss deploying electric 
vehicles and chargers across America. Administration and automaker leaders agreed that EV 
charging is an essential public good and are committed to achieving President Biden’s goal of 
50% EVs by 2030. Automaker leaders emphasized the key role of government and industry 
working collaboratively to ensure a reliable national EV charging network that could support all 
Americans in all communities as well as a domestic supply chain for batteries and critical materials 
that will power our future transportation system. The Administration has held 15 stakeholder 
sessions, received more than 500 comments through an informational portal, and has established 
a Joint Office of Energy and Transportation to serve as a one-stop shop for input and technical 
assistance. More details from this meeting can be found here. 
 
The DOT announced the availability of over $44 billion in funding over the next five years for rural 
communities to rebuild and modernize roads, bridges, transit, ports and airports under President 
Biden’s Bipartisan Infrastructure Law. The Department also announced that it has reconvened 
the Rural Opportunities to Use Transportation for Economic Success Council to lead the DOT's 
efforts to engage rural communities, implement the BIL’s new rural funds, and coordinate a whole-
of-government approach to rural infrastructure. More updates on these initiatives can be found 
here. 
 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
 
The FHWA announced a new program that unlocks $6.4 billion in formula funding for states and 
localities over five years. The new Carbon Reduction Program (CRP), created under the 
President’s Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), will help states develop carbon reduction 
strategies and address the climate crisis. States can use the funds in CRP to expand 
transportation options for American families that can help them save money on gas. Eligible 
projects include on- and off-road trail facilities for pedestrians, bicyclists, and other non-motorized 
forms of transportation and projects that support the deployment of alternative fuel vehicles. In 
total, the DOT has sent $52.5 billion to states for FY22 for Federal-aid Highway Program 
apportionments. More information about the new Carbon Reduction Program can be found here. 
 
 

206

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=55fbcb138c&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=9613591e82&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=8cd15bcd3c&e=3e8de9a970


 4  
  
 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA)  
 
The FTA announced a more than $20 billion investment in American transit, thanks to the BIL. 
The funding levels, detailed by FTA in apportionment tables for each of 30 programs for FY22, 
will provide 58% more funding, enabling transit agencies to modernize and expand services for 
residents in communities large and small. The FY22 full-year apportionment, which supports all 
of FTA’s diverse competitive and formula programs, supersedes partial-year tables posted in 
February 2022. The full-year amounts significantly increase funding for many programs, including: 
$6.9 billion for the Urbanized Area Formula Program; $4.1 billion for the State of Good Repair 
Formula Program; $893 million for Rural Area Formula grants; $422 million for the Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities program; $45 million to support to transit 
programs run by tribal governments; and $49 million for State Safety Oversight. More information 
can be found here. 
 
The FTA has published a $1 million Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for an organization 
or partnership to develop standards for exportable power systems from electric and fuel cell-
powered buses, which can supply electricity to community buildings, emergency shelters and 
hospitals during power disruptions. The Bus Exportable Power Systems (BEPS) Program is one 
of the first steps in an initiative to build community resilience through transit. It supports the 
Administration's investment in America's infrastructure and commitment to support communities 
during emergencies, which are occurring more frequently due to climate change. The BEPS 
NOFO seeks an organization or partnership to develop interoperable national standards for 
power generation so a variety of manufacturers' systems can use the same technology and 
applications for bus power generation. More details can be found here. 
 
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) 
 
NHTSA announced new, landmark fuel economy standards that follow President Biden’s 
Executive Order to drive American leadership forward on clean cars. The new Corporate Average 
Fuel Economy (CAFE) standards require an industry-wide fleet average of approximately 49 mpg 
for passenger cars and light trucks in model year 2026, the strongest cost savings and fuel 
efficiency standards to date. The new standards will increase fuel efficiency 8% annually for model 
years 2024-2025 and 10% annually for model year 2026. They will also increase the estimated 
fleet-wide average by nearly 10 miles per gallon for model year 2026, relative to model year 2021. 
The new CAFE standards for model year 2024-26 will reduce fuel use by more than 200 billion 
gallons through 2050, as compared to continuing under the old standards. More details can be 
found here. 
  
Additionally, NHTSA is teaming up with safety partners nationwide to remind drivers to avoid using 
phones and other distractions behind the wheel. NHTSA’s U Drive. U Text. U Pay. high-visibility 
enforcement campaign runs April 7-11 and aims to save lives by preventing distracted driving. 
Law enforcement officers will be stopping drivers who are texting behind the wheel and educating 
them on the risks of driving distracted. The campaign, now in its 8th year, is supported by a $5 
million national media buy in English and Spanish on television, radio, and digital platforms. 
NHTSA data shows that more than 29,000 people died in crashes involving a distracted driver 
from 2012 to 2020. In 2020, distracted driving crashes accounted for 13% of all injury crashes 
and 3,142 deaths nationwide. More on this initiative can be found here. 
 
In its latest public education campaign, NHTSA is urging all parents and caregivers to make sure 
they remember “Where’s Baby? Look Before You Lock” when driving with young passengers. 
May 1 is National Heatstroke Prevention Day, an opportunity to remind everyone of the dangers 

207

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=43767ddd6f&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=f4939c2053&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=b15bd3c57b&e=3e8de9a970
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=f3f769ed5a&e=3e8de9a970


 5  
  
 

that hot vehicles pose to children. NHTSA’s initiative is a $3 million campaign to remind drivers to 
never leave children unattended in cars, and to lock their cars when unoccupied to prevent 
children from entering unlocked vehicles. More information can be found here. 
 

208

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=c670a7455b&e=3e8de9a970


ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.8 

MAY 18, 2022 
 

1 
 

 
 
May 2, 2022 
 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
FR: Steve Wallauch 
 Platinum Advisors 
 
RE: Legislative Update          
Spring Break:  The Legislature returned from its Spring Recess on April 18th for a busy 
couple of months both in terms of legislation as well as the budget. The policy committee 
deadline for fiscal bills was April 29 and for non-fiscal bills is May 6th. The governor must 
release his May Revision on or before May 10 at which time the budget subcommittees 
will ramp up voting on the governor’s and their own proposals. The Legislature must pass 
the 2022-23 Budget Act on or before June 15. Trailer bills and additional budget bills may 
follow until the end of session on August 31st.  
 
Budget goes BOOM: General Fund revenues continue to surpass projections in 
comparison to the 2022-23 governor’s budget forecast released in January.  While the 
May Revision will be released in less than two weeks, Senate leadership announced that 
surplus revenues over the current and budget year will total $68 billion!  However, the 
Senate leaders caution exact numbers will not be known until the release of the May 
Revision.  A summary of the Senate’s spending plan is below. 
 
Through the month of March cash receipts for the first nine months of the 2021-22 fiscal 
year were $17.35 billion above the 2022-23 Governor’s Budget forecast released in 
January, and April is not slowing down.  As we near the end of April, income tax receipts 
have reached $25 billion for the month, nearly double the $13.6 billion forecast for April.  
Below is the Controller’s daily tracking chart.  With May being another big revenue month, 
surplus revenues continue to far exceed projections, and increase concerns about Gann 
Limit restrictions. 

209



ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.8 

MAY 18, 2022 
 

2 
 

 
 
Gann Limit/State Appropriations Limit: The May Revision is an opportunity for the 
administration to update revenue numbers, present new budget proposals, and amend 
existing proposals which may have changed since January based on input from 
stakeholders, the Legislature, or other factors.  

This year’s May Revision is likely to be focused on the Gann limit, also referred to as the 
state appropriations limit. The Gann limit is a constitutional limit on the amount of tax 
money that state and local governments, including school districts, can legally spend. The 
limit applies a formula designed to keep spending below 1978-79 levels adjusted for a 
number of factors, including population growth and inflation.  

When the state exceeds the Gann limit over two consecutive years, the Constitution 
requires the state to split the excess between taxpayer rebates and additional spending 
on schools. Spending that does not count toward the Gann limit includes infrastructure 
spending and emergency spending dedicated to an account for expenditures relating to 
that emergency.  
 
In January, the administration estimated that the Gann limit was likely to be exceeded in 
both 2020-21 and 2021-22 by a total of $2.6 billion, and stated that they would update the 
numbers as part of the May Revision. Revenue numbers continue to be positive, and the 

210



ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.8 

MAY 18, 2022 
 

3 
 

Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) released their updated analysis regarding how the 
Gann limit will impact ongoing budget numbers last week.  
 
The bottom line, according to the LAO, is that the governor’s budget is unsustainable 
whether revenues increase or decrease. The Legislature will have to determine both 
short-term and long-term how to approach the Gann limit as it will impact the budget 
enormously. 
 
Once the state reaches the Gann limit, for each dollar of General Fund revenue over the 
limit, the state must both provide constitutionally required funding to schools based on the 
Proposition 98 guarantee (about 60 cents per dollar) as well as spend the amount of 
revenue over the Gann limit on schools and tax rebates. The Constitution requires the 
state to dedicate all revenues above a certain threshold to Gann limit requirements, no 
matter how much revenues grow. In practical terms, this means that for each dollar the 
state receives over the Gann limit, it owes $1.60 in constitutionally required spending.  In 
other words, even as revenues grow, the state may be forced to cut spending in other 
areas in order meet the Gann Limit requirements.  
 
In the short-term, there are some appropriations such as federal and court mandates, 
subventions to local governments, and spending on capital outlay projects that do not 
count toward the Gann limit.  This is why there is a focus on spending funds on capital 
projects.  However, the LAO urges the legislature to reject about $10 billion in proposed 
spending in the Governor’s budget, and set those funds aside in order to meet future 
Gann Limit requirements.   
 
Another approach to addressing the Gann limit would be to change the definition of 
subventions, i.e., counting more funding at the local level instead of at the state level. The 
LAO estimates that if the state excludes all funds to local governments, there is about 
$10 billion in spending that would no longer count toward the state’s limit, but instead 
count against the county, city, or special district level Gann limit.  LAO estimates that few 
local governments are likely to exceed their limits under this scenario.  
 
Long-term solutions would require either reducing taxes to slow revenue growth or 
requesting that voters change the limit in some way.  The Senate’s recently released 
spending plan includes a proposed Constitutional amendment for the 2024 ballot that 
would “modernize and harmonize” the Gann limit calculation.  Exact details on the 
Constitutional amendment are not available at this time. 
 
Sputtering Fuel Relief:  Following up on Governor Newsom’s announcement to allocate 
$11 billion to provide Californians some relief from soaring fuel prices, the Department of 
Finance posted draft language on April 6th outlining a proposal to provide free transit 
service, rebates to vehicle owners, and suspending specific fuel tax adjustments. 
Enacting the suspension of the fuel tax inflation adjustment needed to be completed by 
the end of April.  It is now May 2nd  and the legislature has not amended any budget bills 

211

https://lao.ca.gov/reports/2022/4583/SAL-Implications-033022.pdf


ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.8 

MAY 18, 2022 
 

4 
 

to include this proposal.  While it might be possible enact these changes in early May, the 
legislature has expressed little support for suspending the inflation adjustment and 
suspending a portion of the diesel sales tax. 
The remaining pieces of the Governor’s proposal include a rebate to registered vehicle 
owners and creating a grant program to fund 3 months of free transit service.  Both 
proposals are part of the budget negotiations.  The Governor proposed providing a $400 
rebate to each registered vehicle owner, with a limit of two rebates per person, along with 
excluding vehicles over an unspecified value.  Legislative leadership has been focusing 
on a proposal to provide rebates based on income levels, which is outlined under the 
Senate spending plan summary. 
 
To recap the free transit proposal, the Governor’s proposal would appropriate $750 million 
to CalSTA to provide grants to transit operators, both bus and rail.  The funds would be 
used to provide 3 consecutive months of free fares.  While the language does not 
mandate operators to participate, the grant amount would be based on the operator’s 
proportional share of overall fare revenue collected in the 2019-20 fiscal year, as 
contained in the annual Controller’s report.  The draft language specifies that the 3 months 
of free fares must commence within 60 days after enactment of the legislation. 
 
More Sputtering:  Several measures that have been introduced to suspend part or all of 
the fuel excise tax have gained zero traction, but a new bipartisan group is going to try 
yet again to move the idea of suspending the excise tax as a means of reducing fuel 
prices.  This proposal is not in print, yet, but it would suspend the excise tax for one year 
and use general fund revenue to backfill the loss.  This proposal would also include 
language somehow directing the Department of Justice to ensure the price drop makes it 
to the pump.  This proposal is being pursued by a group of 12 Republican and moderate 
Democrat members, calling themselves the Problem Solver Caucus.  Updates to follow. 
 
Putting Wealth to Work:  In anticipation of the release of the May Revision, Senate Pro 
Tem, Toni Atkins and her leadership team unveiled their Putting Wealth to Work spending 
plan, which outlines how they would spend the $68 billion in surplus, up from $29 billion 
included in the January budget.  The announcement includes a lengthy PowerPoint that 
outlines the plan, but does not go into detail.  Senate Budget Subcommittees are expected 
to provide more details and act on this package this week.  The following is a brief 
summary of the proposal; however, it does not include many programs where funding 
amounts were not specified, such as zero emission vehicle program and workforce 
development programs: 
 

• Building up total reserves to $43.1 billion. 
• $8 billion to provide $200 rebates per taxpayer, plus $200 for dependents, with 

incomes less than $125,000 single filers and $250,000 for joint filers. 
• One-time grant to CalWORKS families and SSI/SSP recipients. 

212

https://sbud.senate.ca.gov/sites/sbud.senate.ca.gov/files/Putting%20Wealth%20to%20Work%20Senate%20Budget%20Plan.pdf


ATTACHMENT 2 
AGENDA ITEM 10.8 

MAY 18, 2022 
 

5 
 

• Augment the Governor’s $5 billion transportation proposal by $15 billion, for a total 
allocation of $20 billion over 4 years.  However, the 3rd and 4th year of this plan is 
subject to future budget appropriations.  The outline does not specify how these 
funds would be allocated. 

• Allocate a total of $18.4 billion for the Climate Package, which is primarily for 
infrastructure and capital projects.  This includes: 

o $7.5 billion drought and water projects and programs. 
o $6.6 billion for the Wildfire Package. 
o $3.3 billion for sea level rise projects. 
o $1 billion for climate projects benefiting disadvantaged communities. 

• Provides unspecified amount of funding for Home-to-School transportation, with 
the goal of phasing in universal free home-to-school transportation.  SB 878 
(Skinner) would be the implementing legislation for this program. 

• $2.7 billion for affordable housing and home ownership programs. 
• $3 billion over three years to enhance existing homelessness investments 

 
 

213



1 
 

 
 

May 2, 2022 
 

TABLE 1: BOARD ACTION ITEMS 

 Subject Status Recommended 
Position 

AB 2438 
(Friedman D) 
Transportation 
funding: 
alignment with 
state plans 
and 
greenhouse 
gas emissions 
reduction 
standards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB 2438 would require specified state 
transportation funding programs to align with 
state climate plans and goals and requires 
the California Transportation Plan (CTP) to 
be fiscally constrained.  While AB 2237 
focusing local and regional plans, AB 2438 
would place similar requirements on state 
transportation plan and programs. 
 
AB 2438 would require the following 
programs to align with the California 
Transportation Plan (CTP), Climate Action 
Plan for Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI) 
and SB 375: 

• State Highway Operation and 
Protection Program (SHOPP) 

• State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) 

• Solutions for Congested Corridor 
Program (SCCP) 

• Trade Corridor Enhancement Program 
(TCEP) 

• Local Partnership Program (LPP) 
• Local Streets and Roads Program 

(LSR) 
 
The bill would also require CalSTA, Caltrans, 
and the California Transportation 
Commission (CTC) in consultation with 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) and 
the Strategic Growth Council to submit a 
report to the Legislature on or before January 
1, 2025, evaluating transportation program 
funding levels, projects, and eligibility criteria 
with the objective of aligning the largest 

ASSEMBLY 
APPR 

Recommended 
Position: Watch 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.8 

May 18, 2022 
 

214

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202438');
https://a43.asmdc.org/


2 
 

 Subject Status Recommended 
Position 

AB 2438 
(Continued) 

funding programs with the CTP, CAPTI, SB 
375 and greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
standards. 
 

SB 1121 
(Gonzalez D) 
State and 
local 
transportation 
system: needs 
assessment. 

SB 1121 would require the CTC to biennially 
develop a needs assessment of the cost to 
operate, maintain, and provide for the future 
growth and resiliency of the state and local 
transportation system.  The bill defines “state 
and local transportation system” to include 
public transit systems, including operations, 
as well as bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  
The CTC would also be required to consult 
with transit operators, transportation planning 
agencies, and local governments in 
developing the assessment. 

SENATE APPR Recommended 
Position: 

SUPPORT 

 
 
 
BOARD POSITION ITEMS 

 
Bills 

Subject Status Client 
Positions 

AB 1638 
(Kiley R) 
Motor Vehicle 
Fuel Tax Law: 
suspension of 
tax. 

AB 1638 originally proposed to suspend 
the excise tax on gasoline for six months 
and then backfills the loss of revenue 
with General Fund dollars equivalent to one-
half of the amount of gasoline taxes 
collected in the 2020-21 fiscal year. 
 
After a contentious hearing full of outrage, 
AB 1638 was amended and approved by the 
Assembly Transportation Committee over 
the objections of the author, and the 
Republican members of the committee.  
While the amendments are still not in print, 
the changes would remove the current 
content and insert language imposing an 
excess profits tax on the petroleum industry.  
The t=new tax revenue would then be 
rebated back to consumers. 
 

ASSEMBLY 
APPR 

OPPOSE 

215

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202438');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%201121');
https://sd33.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=xCGKriITpGcw5l%2fJxT4nLGL%2f2v08mH29o0ieJsF%2bc77OvPxEYdtNm6J8BIkNp80e
https://ad06.asmrc.org/


3 
 

AB 1713 
(Boerner 
Horvath D) 
Vehicles: 
required stops: 
bicycles. 

AB 1713 would permit a person over 18 
years of age riding a bicycle approaching a 
stop sign on a two lane road with stop signs 
at all intersections to yield the right-of-way to 
any vehicles that have stopped at the 
entrance of the intersection, have entered 
the intersection, or are approaching the 
intersection, and to continue to yield the 
right-of-way until it is reasonable to proceed.   
 
This allows a cyclist to treat a stop sign as a 
yield sign if the intersection is clear and the 
cyclist has the right-of-way.  This change 
does not allow a cyclist to ignore a stop sign, 
but simply allows a cyclist to maintain some 
momentum and avoid a foot down stop. 
 
AB 1713 would sunset on January 1, 2029.  
The bill requires the California Highway 
Patrol to submit by January 1, 2028, a report 
on the effects of cyclists using the safety 
stop 

ASSEMBLY   APP
R. 

WATCH 

AB 1778 
(Garcia, 
Cristina D) 
State 
transportation 
funding: 
freeway 
widening: 
poverty and 
pollution. 

AB 1778 would prohibit state funds or 
personnel time from being used to fund or 
permit freeway projects, as specified, within 
or adjacent to census tracts that fall within 
the zero to 50th percentile on the “California 
Healthy Places Index” as calculated using 
certain housing and environmental variables.  
This would essentially halt freeway 
expansion projects in most urbanized areas.   

ASSEMBLY 
APPR 

WATCH 

AB 1909 
(Friedman D) 
Vehicles: 
bicycle 
omnibus bill. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB 1909 is titled the Bicycle Omnibus Bill, 
which is intended to include various non-
controversial provisions relating to operating 
a bicycle.  AB 1909 includes the following 
provisions: 

• Existing law prohibits class 3 electric 
bicycles from operating on a bicycle 
path or trail, bikeway, bicycle lane, 
equestrian trail, or hiking or recreation 
trail.  AB 1909 eliminates the 
statewide ban of class 3 electric 
bicycles on a bicycle path or trail, 
bikeway, bicycle lane, equestrian trail, 

ASSEMBLY 
FLOOR 

WATCH 

216

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201713');
https://a76.asmdc.org/
https://a76.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=KypmvM9tLoZ3AJm0OEpDQtbYwpRhh0Hza63XleaCl4J%2fJ7cdwXWFLfHxJFeb6Idd
https://a58.asmdc.org/
https://a58.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=jnd7oKR5S3nXPqxPX2ieNnQK5%2faLFGzJGcZsO9%2bZVz%2boL8b8jURLcATzlSAB4Hmz
https://a43.asmdc.org/


4 
 

AB 1909 
(continued) 

or hiking or recreational trail, and 
eliminates local authority to ban the 
use of Class 1 and 2 electric bikes on 
bike paths.  AB 1909, however, would 
authorize a local authority having 
jurisdiction over an equestrian trail or 
hiking or recreational trail to prohibit 
the operation of an electric bicycle of 
any class on that trail. 

• AB 1909 would allow the operator of a 
bicycle facing a pedestrian control 
signal displaying a “WALK” or 
approved “Walking Person” symbol 
may proceed across the roadway in 
the direction of the signal. 

• Require the driver of a motor vehicle 
overtaking or passing a bicycle that is 
proceeding in the same direction and 
in the same lane of travel shall make 
a lane change if another lane of traffic 
if available. 

• A local government that operates a 
bicycle license program shall not 
prohibit the use of unlicensed 
bicycles. 

 

AB 1919 
(Holden D) 
Transportation: 
free student 
transit passes. 

As currently drafted, AB 1919 to require all 
transit operators to provide free passes to all 
persons 25 years old and younger in order to 
be eligible for State Transit Assistance (STA) 
and other funding programs.  The bill does 
propose a funding program to offset the cost 
of this mandate, but the appropriation of 
funds is not tied to the mandated free 
passes.   
Amendments were added to require the 
Controller to determine if sufficient funding is 
available before the free pass mandate 
takes effect; however, this does not 
sufficiently address our concerns. 
 
Assemblyman Holden has indicated that he 
is considering amendments that would 
remove the punitive language that ties STA 
funds to providing free passes, but the bill 
would continue to mandate operators to 
provide free youth transit. 

ASSEMBLY 
APPR – Suspense 
File 

OPPOSE 

217

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=jnd7oKR5S3nXPqxPX2ieNnQK5%2faLFGzJGcZsO9%2bZVz%2boL8b8jURLcATzlSAB4Hmz
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201919');
https://a41.asmdc.org/


5 
 

AB 1938 
(Friedman D) 
Transit and 
Intercity Rail 
Recovery Task 
Force. 

AB 1938 directs CalSTA to create the 
Transit Recovery Task Force.  The Task 
Force would be comprised of 
representatives from the University of 
California, local governments, Metropolitan 
Planning Organizations (MPOs), transit 
operators, labor, bike and pedestrian groups, 
and transportation advocacy groups.  AB 
1938 was approved by the Assembly 
Transportation Committee with bipartisan 
support. 
 
The goal is for the Task Force to submit a 
report to the Legislature by January 1, 2025, 
that includes a detailed analysis of existing 
funding sources, existing transit performance 
metrics, and overall transit service provided.  
The report must also include 
recommendations on improving transit 
procurement efficiencies, replacing the fare 
box recovery ratios, and whether the state 
should create a new funding source for 
transit operations. 
 
The bill also requires the report to include 
recommendations on topics that would be 
difficult craft on a statewide basis.  These 
topics include recommendations on how to 
grow transit, fare coordination or single fare 
payments systems within zones, transit 
consolidation and/or having a network 
manager to coordinate routes, and how to 
improve transit frequency and reliability. 

ASSEMBLY 
APPR – 
SUSPENSE FILE 

WATCH 

AB 1944 
(Lee D) 
Local 
government: 
open and 
public 
meetings. 

AB 1944 would allow members of a 
legislative body to continue to participate in a 
Brown Act meeting remotely, and if from a 
non-public location the member is not 
required to disclose the address. In addition, 
AB 1944 requires the governing body if it 
chooses to allow for remote participation of 
its members, to also provide video streaming 
and offer public comment via video or 
phone. 

ASSEMBLY   L. 
GOV. 

WATCH 

218

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201938');
https://a43.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201944');
https://a25.asmdc.org/


6 
 

AB 1993 
(Wicks D) 
Employment: 
COVID-19 
vaccination 
requirements. 

Assemblywoman Wicks has announced that 
she will not be moving AB 1993 forward this 
year. 
This bill would require an employer to 
require each of their employees or 
independent contractors that is eligible to 
receive the COVID-19 vaccine to 
demonstrate that they have been vaccinated 
against COVID-19. Employees or 
independent contractors that have been 
deemed ineligible to receive the vaccine for 
either medical or religious reasons are 
exempted from the bill. 
Starting on January 1, 2023, each employer 
is required to affirm, in a form and manner 
provided by the state, that each employee or 
independent contractor complied with these 
provisions, 

ASSEMBLY L & E WATCH 

AB 2097 
(Friedman D) 
Residential 
and 
commercial 
development: 
remodeling, 
renovations, 
and additions: 
parking 
requirements. 

AB 2097 is the reintroduction of AB 1401, 
which was held on the Senate Appropriation 
Suspense File last year.   
AB 2097 would prohibit public agencies from 
enforcing minimum automobile parking 
requirements for residential, commercial, 
and other developments if the parcel is 
located within one-half mile walking distance 
of either a “high quality transit corridor” or a 
“major transit stop.” 

• “Major transit stop” includes an 
existing rail or BRT station, ferry 
terminal, or the intersection of two or 
more bus routes with peak commute 
period headways of 15 minutes or 
less. 

• “High-quality transit corridor” includes 
a corridor with fixed route bus service 
with peak commute headways of less 
than 15 minutes. 

• If a development voluntarily includes 
parking a local entity may require 
spaces for car share vehicles, require 
the spaces to be shared with the 
public, or require owners of parking 
spaces to charge for parking. 

ASSEMBLY 
APPR 

SUPPORT 

219

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201993');
https://a15.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=gGZxzFG9zDm4MpM37qWITz9N%2fgnoGau%2b%2fMWhqNecsLCCWtXwGQ56%2b9X%2bIv%2fJz%2bV6
https://a43.asmdc.org/


7 
 

AB 2120 
(Ward D) 
Transportation 
finance: 
federal 
funding: 
bridges. 

AB 2120 restores a previously used formula 
to distribute dedicated federal bridge funding 
from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs 
Act (IIJA) to state and local projects. It 
ensures continued investment in local 
bridges and flexible highway funds.  
In addition, the bill will help close the funding 
gap for needed repairs and replacement of 
local bridges and prevents further 
deterioration and funding projects that add 
safe multimodal access to local bridges. 

ASSEMBLY 
APPR – 
SUSPENSE FILE 

SUPPORT 

AB 2147 
(Ting D) 
Pedestrians 

AB 2147 amends existing law to direct that a 
peace officer shall not stop a pedestrian for 
a violation involving an illegal crossing the 
street unless a reasonably careful person 
would realize there is an immediate danger 
of a collision with a moving vehicle or other 
device moving exclusively by human power. 

ASSEMBLY   APP
R. 

WATCH 

AB 2237 
(Friedman D) 
Transportation 
planning: 
regional 
transportation 
improvement 
plan: 
sustainable 
communities 
strategies: 
climate goals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB 2237 would condition state and local 
transportation funding on a project’s 
consistency with the applicable Sustainable 
Communities Strategy (SCS) and state 
climate goals.  The author’s intent with this 
measure is to make the changes necessary 
to reach the emission reduction targets 
expected under SB 375.  AB 2237 includes 
the following elements: 

• Requires each regional agency or 
county commission to rank all 
transportation projects and prioritize 
projects based on their adherence to 
its most recently adopted SCS and 
the state’s climate goals. 

• Requires CARB, in consultation with 
the CTC, to determine whether each 
project is consistent with the most 
recently adopted SCS and the state’s 
climate goals. 

• Requires each regional agency or 
county commission to submit a report 
on local transportation tax measures 
to the CTC on or before March 30, 
2023. 

• Requires the CTC, in consultation 
with CARB, to conduct an analysis 
and propose recommendations to 

ASSEMBLY 
APPR 

WATCH 

220

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=iFURmY2K5EywG1J4Zv8lAdJSeFmiB42IVWaUT7cTVC35jGOSyOZJvVgBLSwX%2b3rF
https://a78.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202147');
https://a19.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202237');
https://a43.asmdc.org/


8 
 

AB 2237 
(Continued) 

align local tax measures with the 
state’s climate goals 

• Prohibits a regional agency or county 
commission from funding a project or 
program determined to be 
inconsistent with its most recently 
adopted SCS or the state’s climate 
goals by CARB 

AB 2336 
(Friedman D) 
Vehicles: 
Speed Safety 
System Pilot 
Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB 2336 would establish a five-year pilot 
program to give local transportation 
authorities in the Cities of San Jose, 
Oakland, Los Angeles, Glendale, Palm 
Springs, and the City and County of San 
Francisco the authority to install speed 
safety systems.   
AB 2336 would allow the placement of a 
speed safety system in school zones, and on 
streets with the highest injuries and fatalities, 
or on street determined to have a high 
number of vehicle speed exhibitions.  In 
addition, the speed safety system may not 
continue if after 18 months the percentage of 
violations has not dropped by 25%.   
On April 21st AB 2336 was amended to 
make the following changes to address 
concerns expressed by opponents regarding 
privacy and equity impact of the pilot 
program. 

• Data about the number of violations 
issued and the speeds at which they 
were issued are not “administrative 
records” under the bill, and therefore 
do not have to be deleted within 120 
days. 

• Section 4 and 5 are removed from the 
bill, which authorized a lien to be 
placed on a vehicle for failure to pay 
for offenses detected by a speed 
safety system. 

• Requires flashing beacons on the 
school zone speed limit signs to 
indicate the times during which the 
school zone speed limit is enforced 
with a speed safety system, and 
clarifies that the cameras may be in 

ASSEMBLY   P. & 
C.P. 

Recommended 
Position: 
SUPPORT 

221

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202237');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202336');
https://a43.asmdc.org/


9 
 

AB 2336 
(Continued) 

use up to two hours before and after 
school. 

• Extends from 30 to 60 days when 
warning citation must be issued rather 
than notices of violation when speed 
safety systems are first installed. 

AB 2449 
(Rubio, 
Blanca D) 
Open 
meetings: local 
agencies: 
teleconference
s. 

AB 2449 would authorize the use of 
teleconferencing without noticing and 
making available to the public 
teleconferencing locations if a quorum of the 
members of the legislative body participates 
in person from a singular location that is 
noticed and open to the public and require 
the legislative body to offer public comment 
via video or phone. 
 

ASSEMBLY LOC 
GOV 

WATCH 

AB 2622 
(Mullin D) 
Sales and use 
taxes: 
exemptions: 
California 
Hybrid and 
Zero-Emission 
Truck and Bus 
Voucher 
Incentive 
Project: transit 
buses. 

AB 2622 would extend the exemption from 
the state portion of the sales tax the 
purchase zero emission transit vehicles.  
This bill is sponsored by the California 
Transit Association. 
 
As approved by the Assembly Committee on 
Revenue & Taxation, the bill was amended 
to reduce the extension from 10 years to 2 
years.  As amended the bill extends the 
sunset date on the sales tax exemption from 
January 1, 2024, to January 1, 2027. 

ASSEMBLY R & T SUPPORT 

ACA 1 
(Aguiar-
Curry D) 
Local 
government 
financing: 
affordable 
housing and 
public 
infrastructure: 
voter approval. 

Identical to last session’s proposal, which 
NVTA supported, ACA 1 would lower the 
voter threshold for property tax increases, 
parcel taxes and sales taxes to 55% if the 
funds are used for affordable housing and 
infrastructure projects.  This includes capital 
improvements to transit and streets and 
highways.   
 
However, ACA 1 does not allow for the 55% 
local measure to use the tax revenue for 
transit operations. 
 

ASSEMBLY LOC 
GOV 
 
(Hearing 
deadlines do not 
apply to 
Constitutional 
amendments) 

Support 

SB 674 
(Durazo D) 
Public 

SB 674, until January 1, 2027, requires the 
Labor and Workforce Development Agency 
(LWDA) to create the California Jobs Plan 

ASSEMBLY 
FLOOR 
 

WATCH 

222

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202336');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202449');
https://a48.asmdc.org/
https://a48.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202622');
https://a22.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%201');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20674');
http://sd24.senate.ca.gov/


10 
 

Contracts: 
workforce 
development: 
transportation-
related 
contracts. 

Program and the United States Jobs Plan 
Program.  The intent of the bill is to 
incentivize more high-quality transportation, 
manufacturing, and infrastructure jobs 
through the public contracting process.  
The Assembly Appropriations Committee 
amended SB 674 to specify participation by 
local transportation entities would be 
optional.  However, the bill would still apply 
to purchases made by Caltrans.  These 
amendments and concerns likely expressed 
by the Administration resulted in the author 
making it a two-year bill.  Senator Durazo 
intends to work with opposition during the 
interim to reach a consensus on the bill. 
Previously, the author has accepted several 
amendments to address concerns 
expressed by CalACT and CTA, such as 
requiring FTA approval before the new 
requirements start.  However, significant 
concerns remain regarding how this program 
would be implemented, the ability to verify 
the promises made are achieved, and the 
likelihood of procurement delays due to a 
rise in award protests. 

Inactive File 

SB 852 
(Dodd D) 
Climate 
resilience 
districts: 
formation: 
funding 
mechanisms. 

SB 852 would create the Climate Resilience 
Districts Act.  The intent of this bill is to 
provide the ability for local governments to 
create districts for the purpose of addressing 
climate change effects and impacts through 
activities and actions that include mitigation 
and adaptation. 
  
This bill would allow cities, counties, and 
special districts to create a district to finance 
a wide range of climate resilience projects, 
including addressing sea level rise, wildfire, 
and drought.  These districts would be 
authorized to utilize tax increment financing, 
as well as existing benefit assessment 
financing tools. 
   

SENATE FLOOR SUPPORT 

SB 878 
(Skinner D) 
School 
transportation. 

SB 878 would create a program to provide 
home-to-school transportation to all 
students, and it was approved by the Senate 
Education Committee.  The bill is sponsored 

SENATE APPR – 
SUSPENSE FILE 

WATCH 
 

223

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=nDorpB1QNLMoRlNjXmzjKo8JmoBDpjCYon7x8WKnZyn%2bGUbcAZP8aI2SIhZ3Kfa5
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20878');
http://sd09.senate.ca.gov/


11 
 

by the California School Employees 
Association.   
 
Under this bill school agencies that do not 
provide transportation services are directed 
to work with parents, teachers, transit 
operators, and air districts and others on 
developing a transportation plan that 
ensures all students have free transportation 
to school.  Funding for this program is 
dependent on a budget appropriation, and 
the allocation formula is not specified but 
would be based on a per mile 
reimbursement.   
 

SB 917 
(Becker D) 
Seamless 
Transit 
Transformation 
Act. 

SB 917 directs MTC to work with transit 
operators to develop the Connected Network 
Plan, adopt an integrated transit fare 
structure, develop a comprehensive regional 
transit wayfinding system, and establish an 
open-source real-time transit information 
system.   
 
Recent amendments do address some of 
the concerns expressed by Bay Area 
operators with respect to the time deadlines.  
However, there remains concerns regarding 
the integrated fare plan requirements, which 
would limit each operator’s oversight of their 
budgets.  In addition, the bill requires MTC to 
consult with the Regional Transit 
Coordinating Council (RTCC) referred in 
existing law.  However, the RTCC is not well 
defined with respect to membership, and 
MTC is not required to incorporate any 
findings made by the RTCC in the regional 
fare plan. 
 
The bill was approved by the Senate 
Transportation Committee with the 
understanding that Senator Becker will 
continue to work with the operators to 
address their concerns. 
 

SENATE TRANS SUPPORT IF 
AMENDED 

224

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=dlybNgHmX7iUaV5UqxOBPnS3YvKf0Kl2vHXBU%2bciDsgaxn8Xzbp7tsYvOh4x9ikn
http://sd13.senate.ca.gov/


12 
 

SB 922 
(Wiener D) 
California 
Environmental 
Quality Act: 
exemptions: 
transportation-
related 
projects. 

SB 922 expands the application of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
exemptions for various transportation-related 
projects and sunsets those exemptions on 
January 1, 2030. 
 
Specifically, the bill makes the following 
changes: 

• Exempts from CEQA, until January 1, 
2030, active transportation plans 
and pedestrian plans, if the lead 
agency holds noticed public hearings  

• For the SB 288 projects, this bill 
extends the January 1, 2023, sunset 
until 2030, but these projects shall not 
add infrastructure or striping that 
increases automobile capacity. 

Expands the type of transit prioritization 
projects. 
 

SENATE FLOOR SUPPORT 

SB 942 
(Newman D) 
Low Carbon 
Transit 
Operations 
Program: free 
or reduced 
fare transit 
program. 

SB 946 would allow transit agencies who 
use Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 
(LCTOP) moneys to fund free or reduced 
fare transit programs to continue using those 
moneys for ongoing operating costs. It 
further eliminates the requirements to 
annually demonstrate greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emission reductions and document 
other program details when using LCTOP 
funds for transit passes. 
 

SENATE FLOOR SUPPORT 

SB 1049 
(Dodd D) 
Transportation 
Resilience 
Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Similar to proposed budget trailer bill 
language, SB 1049 would establish the 
Transportation Resilience Program within 
Caltrans.  This program would be funded in 
the annual Budget Act from 15% of the 
available federal National Highway 
Performance Program funds and 100% of 
the available federal Promoting Resilient 
Operations for Transformative, Efficient, and 
Cost-Saving Transportation program funds.  
The Governor’s budget proposes allocating 
$400 million in general fund revenue for the 
Climate Adaptation Grant Program. 
SB 1049 would allocate funding through the 
CTC for the following purposes: 

SENATE   APPR. 
SUSPENSE FILE 

SUPPORT 

225

javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20922');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20942');
https://sd29.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=y0vY3beiKJ%2baZ8SiMHwEUB3bn1VPgOnm%2fSPu%2bd%2bFvIn%2bx3zGde7QHSAWGkBUu9wa
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/


13 

SB 1049 
(Continued) 

• Not less than 10% for climate
mitigation planning activities

• Not less than 75% for resilience
improvements, with a yet to be
specified amount for state highway
system resilience projects.

SB 1050 
(Dodd D) 
State Route 37 
Toll Bridge 
Act. 

SB 1050 would create the SR-37 Toll  
Authority that would be administered by the 
Bay Area Infrastructure Financing Authority. 

In short, the bill would require the Authority 
to operate and maintain tolling infrastructure, 
including installing toll facilities, and collect 
tolls for the use of the Sonoma Creek 
Bridge.  The revenues from the toll bridge 
would be used for capital improvements to 
repair or rehabilitate the toll bridge, to 
expand toll bridge capacity, to improve toll 
bridge or corridor operations, and to 
increase public transit, carpool, vanpool, and 
nonmotorized options on the toll bridge or in 
the segment of State Route 37 corridor. 

SENATE APPR – 
SUSPENSE FILE 

SUPPORT 

SB 1100 
(Cortese D) 
Open 
meetings: 
orderly 
conduct. 

SB 1100 would authorize the removal of an 
individual from a public meeting who is 
“willfully interrupting” the meeting after a 
warning and a request to stop their behavior. 
“Willfully interrupting” is defined as 
intentionally engaging in behavior during a 
meeting of a legislative body that 
substantially impairs or renders infeasible 
the orderly conduct of the meeting in 
accordance with law. 

SENATE FLOOR WATCH 

SB 1156 
(Grove R) 
Motor Vehicle 
Fuel Tax: 
Diesel Fuel 
Tax: inflation 
adjustment. 

In order to address the decreasing value of 
fuel taxes over time, SB 1, starting on July 1, 
2020, and each year thereafter, directed the 
annual inflationary adjustment of the fuel tax 
amount. 

While the Governor’s budget has proposed 
to suspend the inflation adjustment for one 
year only, SB 1156 would prospectively 
repeal the annual inflation adjustment. 

SENATE GOV & 
FIN 

OPPOSE 

226

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=y0vY3beiKJ%2baZ8SiMHwEUB3bn1VPgOnm%2fSPu%2bd%2bFvIn%2bx3zGde7QHSAWGkBUu9wa
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=QtMIB9GyjrzE13DLVyx0njiRaiZjZPWKWQvH5DMtusfjGOQ8YCii%2f5BI4lDE6V1h
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%201100');
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=0WCyZo2PRpEb6jy0NkS%2b7%2fN%2fpiwxsdEC6SlKwLnm2lMJCJ5ZgsSoAd8A2LEg1QRv
https://grove.cssrc.us/

	00NVTA Agenda Only 05 18 22
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 01-2022
	0003_1_Draft Minutes
	0004_1_Staff Report
	9.2_AB 361 Requirements for Remote Meetings_Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.2_AB 361 Requirements for Remote Meetings_Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.2_AB 361 ATTCH 1 Resolution 22-14

	0005_1_Staff Report
	9.3 Operations and Maintenance Agreement for TSP_Cover-KM changes-need to complete contract number
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Resolution No. 22-16 Operations and Maintenance Agreement between State of California Department of Transportation and the Napa Valley Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and Maintenance of Transit Signal Priority System
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	Transit Signal Priority (TSP) reduces travel time and increases bus reliability by giving priority to buses at intersections when a bus is behind schedule. Installation of equipment is need on buses as well as inside of traffic control cabinets to act...
	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.3 Operations and Maintenance Agreement for TSP_Memo-KM changes - need to complete contract number
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 22-16 Operations and Maintenance Agreement          between State of California Department of Transportation and the         Napa Valley Transportation Authority for Installation, Operation, and        Maintenance of Transit ...
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.3 Operations Agreement for TSP_Attch 1
	A RESOLUTION OF THE
	NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA)
	AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF TRANSIT SIGNAL PRIORITY SYSTEM

	9.3 Operations Agreement for TSP_Attch 2

	0006_1_Staff Report
	9.4 LCTOP FY 21-22 Grant Application (revised)_Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Resolution No. 22-13, Revised, Authorizing the Execution of the Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



	9.4 LCTOP FY 21-22 Grant Application (revised from April)-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.4_LCTOP FY 21-22 Grant Application Attch 1 Resolution 22-13_Revised DRAFT
	RESOLUTION No. 22-13, REVISED


	0007_1_Staff Report
	10.1_Chair & Vice Chair Nominating Committee Cover-KM change
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.1_Chair & Vice Chair Nominating Committee Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION



	0008_1_Staff Report
	10.2_Adoption Biennial Budget FY23 FY24_Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.2_Adoption Biennial Budget FY23 FY24_Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	The Paratransit Coordinating Council reviewed the Vine Go paratransit budget on May 5, 2022. No comments were received.


	10.2_Attach 1 Resolution 22-15 Budget Approval-KM
	10.2_Attach 2 FY23 and FY24 budgets Forecast DRAFT FINAL ADOPTION
	Budget - Total Public Transit
	Budget - CONSOL
	Budget - CMA
	Projects List
	Capital Project List
	Budget - Total Vine
	Budget - Vine Go
	Budget -AmCan Shuttle
	Budget - Yountville Trolley
	Budget - St. Helena Shuttle
	Budget - Calistoga Shuttle


	0009_1_Staff Report
	10.3_NVTA Procurement Policy Refinements_Cover_KM no changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Delegated Authority to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Policy Manual Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve refinements to the delegated signature authority dollar amount increase(s) to NVTA Policy Manual Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	At the March 16, 2022 Board of Directors meeting, the Executive Director was granted newly delegated procurement authority amounts.  After an enhanced legal review, it has come to staff’s attention that some of those delegated authority amounts are in...

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.3_NVTA Procurement Policy Refinements_Memo_KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT: Delegated Authority to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA)      Policy Manual Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve refinements to the delegated signature authority dollar amount increase(s) to NVTA Policy Manual Chapter 5: Contracting & Procurement Policy.

	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.3_Attach 1 - Chapter 5_Contract & Procur Policy_DRAFT (redlined version)
	CHAPTER 1 PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION
	CHAPTER 2 GENERAL PROCUREMENT POLICY STANDARDS
	A. Step-by-Step Guide
	B. Delegated Authority and Method of Procurement

	CHAPTER 3 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RESPONSIBILITIES
	Implementation
	C. Procurement Policies
	d. Cooperative Procurement
	Warranty of the Work
	D. Procedures
	E. Competitive Procurement Process
	Procurement by Sealed Bids/Invitation for Bid (IFB)
	a. Pre-qualified Contractor Lists
	b. Each Member Agency may issue a Request for Proposals to consultants on the pre-qualified list, reflecting the Member

	CHAPTER 4 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
	F. Contract Administration Guidelines
	G. Federal Procurement Requirements and State Law

	APPENDIX LIST
	APPENDIX A: FTA & FHWA Required Clauses

	APPENDIX B: DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS
	APPENDIX C: PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST
	APPENDIX D: PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST
	TAB 2 - Solicitation Development:
	TAB 3 - Solicitation and Bid Opening:
	TAB 4 - Award and Contract Administration:
	TAB 5 - Project Closeout and Reimbursement:

	APPENDIX E: CHAPTER 10 OF CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL ASSISTANCE PLANNING MANUAL

	10.3_Attach 2 - Chapter 5_Contract & Procur Policy_DRAFT (clean version)
	CHAPTER 1 PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION
	CHAPTER 2 GENERAL PROCUREMENT POLICY STANDARDS
	A. Step-by-Step Guide
	B. Delegated Authority and Method of Procurement

	CHAPTER 3 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES RESPONSIBILITIES
	Implementation
	C. Procurement Policies
	d. Cooperative Procurement
	Warranty of the Work
	D. Procedures
	E. Competitive Procurement Process
	Procurement by Sealed Bids/Invitation for Bid (IFB)
	a. Pre-qualified Contractor Lists
	b. Each Member Agency may issue a Request for Proposals to consultants on the pre-qualified list, reflecting the Member

	CHAPTER 4 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
	F. Contract Administration Guidelines
	G. Federal Procurement Requirements and State Law

	APPENDIX LIST
	APPENDIX A: FTA & FHWA Required Clauses

	APPENDIX B: DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS
	APPENDIX C: PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST
	APPENDIX D: PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST
	TAB 2 - Solicitation Development:
	TAB 3 - Solicitation and Bid Opening:
	TAB 4 - Award and Contract Administration:
	TAB 5 - Project Closeout and Reimbursement:

	APPENDIX E: CHAPTER 10 OF CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL ASSISTANCE PLANNING MANUAL


	0010_1_Staff Report
	10.4_Amendment 7 to NVTA Agreement 12-08 Executive Director_COVER
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.4_Amendment 7 to NVTA Agreement 12-08 Executive Director_MEMO
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION


	10.4_Amendment 7 NVTA Agreement 12-08 Executive Director Attch 1

	0011_1_Staff Report
	10.5_FY22 Q3 Fin Review Cover-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.5_FY22 Q3 Fin Review and Delegated Authority Matrix Memo_DRAFT
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.5_Attach 1 FY22 Q3 Fin Reports_FINAL

	0012_1_Staff Report
	10.6_ Vine Transit Update_Cover-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.6_ Vine Transit Update_Memo
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the NVTA Board receives a third quarter FY 2021-22 Vine Transit update.
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND



	0013_1_Staff Report
	10.7_OBAG 3_COVER-KM changes 
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted the OBAG 3 policy framework in January 2022. The OBAG 3 program will fund projects in Fiscal Years (FYs) 2023 through 2026.  MTC also released funding targets for each county.  Funding for the N...


	10.7_OBAG 3 Memo_AE-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	NVTA created an OBAG 3 evaluation process and is now requesting to open a call for projects.  Project nominations and a detailed description of public outreach compliance for the county program are due to MTC by September 30, 2022.
	NVTA Proposed Programming Process
	NVTA is soliciting project applications and will conduct an initial screening and prioritization of projects. Since Napa County is considered a small county in the program, NVTA project list must meet the 50% Priority Development Area (PDA) investment...
	1. Be located in PDAs or Transit-Rich Areas (TRAs), identified in locally adopted plans for PDAs, or support preservation of Priority Production Areas (PPAs)



	0014_1_Staff Report
	10.8_Legislative Update 01_Cover_ka
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.8_Legislative Update 02_Memo_ka
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.8_Legislative Update 03 ATTACH 1 Federal Report
	10.8_Legislative Update 04 ATTACH 2 State Report ka
	10.8_Legislative Update 05 ATTACH 3 State Matrix ka
	SB 922 expands the application of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) exemptions for various transportation-related projects and sunsets those exemptions on January 1, 2030.





